

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 139 East Fourth Street P O Box 960 Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960

John J. Finnigan Jr. Senior Counsell 513.287.3601 513.287.3810 fax

VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Ms. Elizabeth O'Donnell

May 3, 2006

RECEIVED

Executive Director Kentucky Public Service Commission 211 Sower Boulevard P.O. Box 615 Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615

Re: Application of the Union Light, Heat and Power Company For a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity To Construct Gas Distribution Facilities Within Its Service Territory Case No. 2006-00101

Dear Ms. O'Donnell:

Enclosed please find an original and six copies of the responses of The Union Light, Heat and Power Company d/b/a Duke Energy Kentucky to the Kentucky Public Service Commission Staff's first set of data requests in the above-referenced case. Please note that we included three copies of the attachment binders to KyPSC-DR-01-004 as specified in the data request instead of the original and six copies as specified in the *First Data Request of Commission Staff to The Union Light, Heat and Power Company.*

Please file-stamp and return the two extra copies of this letter in the enclosed over-night envelope.

If you have any questions, please call me at (513) 287-3601.

Sincerely,

John J. Finnigan, Jr. Senior Counsel

MAY 0 4 2006

KyPSC-DR-01-001

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

REQUEST:

.

1. Provide, for each module, the length, the type of material, and the diameter of the pipes that will be replaced, the costs of replacement, and the name of the contractor.

RESPONSE:

Please see Attachment KyPSC-DR-01-001.

Original

Duke Energy Kentucky Response Data Request--KPSC-01-001

					_	Material Us	sed For Repla	acement				
	Projection	Total	2 Inch	3 Inch	4 Inch	6 Inch	8 Inch	2 Inch	4 Inch	6 Inch	8 Inch	12 Inch
<u>Job Name</u>	Cost (1) Contractor	Footage	<u>Plastic</u>	<u>Plastic</u>	<u>Plastic</u>	<u>Plastic</u>	<u>Plastic</u>	<u>Steel</u>	<u>Steel</u>	<u>Steel</u>	<u>Steel</u>	<u>Steel</u>
Module 311 (2)	2,159,083 KS	14,070	748		5,678	6,403	1,241					
Module 312 (2)	1,425,970 AMS	11,970	93	8	5,993	4,210			228	836	31	571
Module 319 (2)	699,899 KS	6,757	1,999		2,039	2,719						
Module 341 (2)	224,736 Infrasource	2,345	1,020	23	1,302							
Module 348 (2)	1,873,351 Brewer	14,839	5,302		7,358	1,372	749	58				
Module 351 (2)	297,869 Brewer	1,965	1,037		523				405			
Module 352 (2)	1,104,425 Infrasource	10,876	4,576		5,901	356			43			
Module 371 (2)	1,485,381 Brewer	10,866	123	3,709	5,666	1,368						
	9,270,714	73,688	14,898	3,740	34,460	16,428	1,990	58	676	836	31	571

Notes:

(1) Includes contractor labor, materials, company labor, other and loadings.

(2) Contracts have been awarded.

ULH&P Case No. 2006-00101 Attachment-KyPSC-DR-01-001 Page 1 of 1

KyPSC-DR-01-002

REQUEST:

2. Provide the estimated line lengths and costs for the proposed CIMOS replacements, BSMOS replacements, and service line replacements.

RESPONSE:

Projections for CIMOS and Street Improvement jobs that were included in the CPCN filing in March 2006 have changed. Duke Energy Kentucky has received several requests by governmental bodies for Street Improvement jobs that were received after the estimates were calculated for the March 2006 filing. Duke Energy Kentucky expects to install approximately 3,700 feet of main at an estimated cost of about \$740,000 for these new Street Improvement requests received to date.

KyPSC-DR-01-003

REQUEST:

3. Did ULH&P conduct a competitive bid process to select the contractors for its proposed construction? Explain the response.

RESPONSE:

Yes. Duke Energy Kentucky competitively bid all jobs awarded to date and expects to competitively bid the remaining jobs.

KyPSC-DR-01-004

REQUEST:

4. Provide three copies of the latest ULH&P construction manual that was provided to the construction contractors and inspectors.

RESPONSE:



Please see Attachment KyPSC-DR-01-004. Attachment KyPSC-DR-01-004 is made up of two binders: Gas Department-150, which is the Gas Department's Construction Procedures and Standards and the AMRP 2006 Bid Specifications.

Л

1

KyPSC-DR-01-004

REQUEST:

4. Provide three copies of the latest ULH&P construction manual that was provided to the construction contractors and inspectors.

RESPONSE:

Please see Attachment KyPSC-DR-01-004. Attachment KyPSC-DR-01-004 is made up of two binders: Gas Department-150, which is the Gas Department's Construction Procedures and Standards, and the AMRP 2006 Bid Specifications.

KyPSC-DR-01-005

REQUEST:

5. Refer to the Supplemental Application, page 2. Provide an estimated cost of operation and maintenance for the proposed facilities. This estimated cost should be ULH&P's best estimate of operations and maintenance costs based on previous AMRP construction modules or projects or other projections that the company determines to be reasonable.

RESPONSE:

Duke Energy Kentucky estimates spending \$804,322 for 2006 in Account 887 "Maintenance of Mains." This estimated amount is approximately \$24,000 less than Duke Energy Kentucky spent in 2005.

RECEIVED

MAY 0 4 2006

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

ULH&P Case No. 2006-00101

Attachment KyPSC-DR-01-004

AMRP 2006 Bid Specifications

Specifications for the 2006 Gas Main Replacement, Relocation, and Extension Projects_{RECEIVED}

MAY 0 4 2006

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Co. The Union Light, Heat, & Power Co.

September 21, 2006

Instructions to Bidders Standard Terms and Conditions Technical Specifications List of Units Hourly Labor and Equipment Welding Specifications GD-150 Construction Specifications Gas Standards

ίų.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

P	aol
1 4	121

1.0 GENERAL	. 1
1.1 Scope of Work	. 1
1.2 Standards	. 1
1.3 Video Taping	. 1
1.4 Construction Drawings	. 2
1.5 Permits.	. 2
1.6 Meetings	. 2
1.7 Training	. 2
1.8 Site Safety	. 2
2.0 MATERIALS	. 4
2.1 Cinergy Supplied Materials	. 4
2.1.1 Material Delivery and Tracking	. 4
2.2 Contractor Supplied Materials	. 4
2.3 Contractor Requirements for Coiled Pipe Delivery & Handling	. 4
2.3.1 Coiled Pipe Trailer Capacity Specifications	. 5
2.3.2 Coiled Pipe Loading System	. 5
2.3.3 Coiled Pipe Re-rounding/Taming Equipment	. 5
3.0. JOINING PIPE	6
3.1 Welding Steel Pine	• 0
3.2 Joining Plastic Pipe	• -6
	. 0
4.0 MAIN INSTALLATION	. 7
4.1 Inspection	. 7
4.2 Depth and Location of Main	. 7
4.3 Installation Methods	. 7
4.3.1 Direct Bury	. 7
4.3.2 Insertion	. 7
4.3.3 Directional Drilling	. 7
4.4 Damage to Gas Facilities	. 8
4.5 Strength Testing	. 8
4.6 Restoration	. 8
5.0 GAS MAIN TIE-INS	. 9
6.0. CAS SEDVICES	10
6.1 Main to Curb (M C) Service	10
6.2 Curb to Meter (C M) Service	10
	10
7.0 BID ITEMS	12
7.1 Length of Gas Main	12
7.2 Boring-No Casing	13
	- (

7.3 Boring - with Casing	13
7.4 Valve Assembly	13
7.5 satisfactory Test Welds / Fusions	13
7.6 Services	13
7.6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service	14
7.6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service	14
7.6.3 Test & Re-Light	14
7.6.4 Meter Relocation	15
7.6.5 Pressure Conversion Projects	15
7.7 Main Tie-Ins	15
7.8 Rock Excavation	16
7.9 Extra Depth	16
7.10 Bankrun Sand	16
7.11 CDF	16
7.12 Restoration	16
7.12.1 Soft Restoration	16
7.12.2 Hard Surface Restoration	17
7.12.3 Tie-In Restoration	17
7.12.4 Service Renewal Restoration	17
7.12.5 Restoration Not Included on Bid	17
7.12.6 Warranty of Restoration	17
7.13 Miscellaneous	18
COMPLETION OF WORK	19
INVOICING	20

8.0

9.0

1.0 <u>GENERAL</u>

1.1 Scope of Work

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and The Union Light, Heat & Power Company (hereafter "CG&E") both initiated a program in 2001 to replace cast iron and bare steel natural gas mains and residential service lines. The projected completion year for the program is 2010 in Kentucky and 2015 in Ohio.

The total project will consist of the replacement of approximately 1457 miles of cast iron and bare steel natural gas mains with plastic or coated steel pipe, and the renewal and updating of the associated gas services. Work will be required in most communities within the service territory and will be more specifically identified with each years work. Service areas will be broken into modules consisting of approximately 3 to 5 miles of main replacement work using plastic pipe. Most 12-inch diameter or larger pipe replacement work will be let as individual projects and not as a module.

In addition to the replacement work, there are approximately 30 miles of relocation and gas main extensions which are constructed by CG&E each year. These specifications will be used for all Cinergy gas projects except joint trench projects.

Cinergy reverses the right to remove any portion of a project as deemed necessary. This will mainly occur on AMRP modules if a pending street improvement is known or due to budget constraints.

As necessary, Cinergy reserves the option to impose a 10% retainer to all invoices. If the retainer is imposed, the Gas Contractor will be notified prior processing the invoice.

1.2 Standards

All facilities must be installed in accordance with this specification, The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company's Gas Division specification GD–150 composite, CFR part 192, and all other applicable specifications. Welding shall be completed in accordance with the enclosed specifications.

1.3 Video Taping

Cinergy recommends that the Contractor videotape every project prior to starting. The video is extremely important in settling disputes with governing agencies. If the project is not videoed and there is a dispute between the contractor and the customer, Cinergy will side with the customer.

When videoing, addresses must be indicated verbally or pictorially.

1.4 Construction Drawings

Construction drawings are done by both CG&E employees and by outside design firms (Novak Engineering of Jackson, Michigan; and Energy Management Services of Lexington, Kentucky). Each drawing will provide the name and telephone number of the designing engineer on the prints so the engineer can be contacted for any questions during the replacement work.

1.5 Permits

All permits for the replacement work will be obtained by CG&E, and will be provided to the Contractor prior to the start of work. CG&E will pay all permit fees except cut/fill fees. Cut/fill fees required for dumpsites will not be paid by Cinergy except for material dumped for Tie Ins where the contractor is paid on a time and material (T&M) basis. The Contractor will be responsible for all tree and landscaping damage unless the damage was a result of a direct order by a CG&E employee. Additional compensation will not be paid for any restricted hours identified prior to the bid submittal, whether in the permit book or posted on street signs.

1.6 Meetings

The Contractor will be required to hold weekly on site meetings with the community representatives and the Cinergy inspector to insure immediate handling of all customer concerns. The Contractor will be required to provide the inspector with a proposed schedule prior to the start of work as well as weekly progress reports. Various communities also require a final walk through at the completion of the project.

1.7 Training

CG&E will require polyethylene qualification on all fusion and mechanical connections. Renewal of fusion cards are the responsibility of the contractor. Adequate time must be given by the contractor to CG&E so classes can be scheduled. CG&E will provide training to the Contractor on the renewal of services by insertion and mechanical, installation of meter sets, turn off, turn on and appliance light up. Contractors will be trained for free on Cinergy policies associated with spotting unacceptable meter locations and the identification of tin meters and mercury regulators. Only CG&E personnel shall handle mercury regulators. Safety procedures, grounding procedures and a review for sizing services will also be covered in the training.

1.8 Site Safety

The Contractor will be required to provide emergency numbers to the dispatcher to assure 24/7 coverage. The Contractor will also be required to leave door hangers with business cards, sewer tags and phone numbers for customer contact during and after working hours. A customer notification log must be filled out and returned to the on site inspector prior to the start of any construction.

Picture ID's are required for all Contractor employees. Contract personnel are required to show their ID when asked by customers or CG&E Personnel.

ĺ

If a block of sidewalk is to be open for more than 48 hours, class 53 temporary asphalt must be used. All tripping hazards are to be avoided in sidewalk areas and where necessary foot traffic will be re-routed when blocking any sidewalk.

2.0 <u>MATERIALS</u>

2.1 Cinergy Supplied Materials

CG&E will provide all piping and associated pipe materials required for the replacement work. All 2", 4", 6" and 8", and some 12" mains shall be yellow medium density polyethylene (MDPE) or epoxy coated steel Grade B or stronger. 12" and 16" coated steel pipe will typically have a wall thickness of 0.219" and 0.250", respectively. Cinergy shall specify the grade and wall thickness of all steel pipes on the construction drawings.

2.1.1 Material Delivery and Tracking

The contractor will be responsible for requesting material as it is needed. The contractor must allow 21 days for material deliveries. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to meet the truck and to track material received and to provide weekly reports showing material received, material used and material remaining. The material assigned to a module is to be used on that module only. At the end of the project, all surplus materials are to be returned to the storeroom or a credit requisition completed allocating the material to another job. The material must be returned or requisitioned to another job in the same condition that it was received. A 10 % overrun in the quantity of pipe will be allowed for waste. All other unaccounted, damaged or material left unprotected will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Service Material will be delivered to each Contractor yard. Each Contractor will be required to provide an adequate shelter area with shelves to organize all the service material. The Contractor will provide a person to receive material, organize and reorder material as needed. The Contractor will accept responsibility to ensure reorder is completed as necessary and faxed to 513 287-5434. At the end of each year the Contractor will be required to inventory all service related material including job sites and truck inventory. The material will then be charge credited to the following year service work codes.

2.2 Contractor Supplied Materials

The Gas Contractor is required to provide all materials and equipment other than as indicated on the construction drawings, which is necessary to construct the project. Spray paint used by the contractor for markings must be water soluble and capable of being removed if needed. CDF, CLSM or Flashfill must meet the specifications of the appropriate governing agency (Hamilton Co./Cincinnati, ODOT or KDOT specifications). All welding materials such as welding rods. grinding wheels, clamps, etc is to be provided by the Contractor.

2.3 Contractor Requirements for Coiled MDPE Pipe Delivery & Handling

Pipe trailers will be a requirement for handling coiled pipe. Brecon, Cinergy's material storage facility, does not have the equipment necessary to deliver 6 inch coiled pipe to the job site. CG&E will make every effort to have the large diameter coils delivered to the Contractors'

material holding area at the start of each project. If CG&E is unable to make these arrangements, it will be necessary for the large diameter coils to be picked up at Brecon. Cinergy will pay the Contractor for pick up and delivery in these cases.

2.3.1 Coil Pipe Trailer Capacity Specifications

The coil dimensions of the current Performance Pipe (Driscopipe/Plexco) product that the trailer will need to be able to accommodate is:

Pipe Size	Coil Footage	Wt. Per Coil	Min. Coil ID	Max. Coil OD	Width
2″	500'	315 lbs.	51″	78″	13″
4 ′′	500′	1110 lbs.	68″	94″	41"
6″	500′	2040 lbs.	84″	120″	50″

The capacity of the trailer must be able to accept all current known coil sizes from all major manufacturers of 2", 4" and 6" PE pipe.

2.3.2 Loading System

The trailer will need to have some form of loading mechanism in which the trailer can be field loaded from a Brecon material truck at the job site or loaded at the pipe yard, at the Brecon facility. If the trailer does not have a loading mechanism then the Contractor should make provisions to have the necessary equipment available to safely load the coils without damaging the pipe.

2.3.3 Rerounding/Taming equipment

The Trailer shall be equipped with the necessary equipment to re-round the coiled pipe and remove the curvature conditions created in the pipe by the coiling process. There are no definable parameters to the approved straightness. However, pipe should be able to lie flat in a trench when straightening is complete, as well as not cause additional stress to the pipe when inserting.

3.0 JOINING PIPE

3.1 Welding Steel Pipe

All welds will be made in accordance with CG&E's Gas Division welding specifications:

Specification No. 501-2	Standard Welding Procedure SA-II-A-II: For Steel Pipe with O.D. from 2 3/8" to, and including 12 ³ / ₄ " and wall thickness 0.188", up to, but not including 0.250"
Specification No. 501-3	Standard Welding Procedure SA-III-A-III: For Steel Pipe with O.D. greater than 12 ³ / ₄ " and wall thickness 0.250", up to, but not including 0.344"
Specification No 501-20	Standard welding Procedure SA-F1-A-V: for fillet welds on steel pipe for socket –weld couplings, slip-on flanges, and full encirclement welding sleeves.

All welders must be pre qualified in accordance with CG&E's Gas Division specifications prior to the start of construction. All testing for welders will be in accordance with API Standard 1104, Section 6.3, at the Contractor's cost.

The contractor must have a copy of the welding specifications for all steel pipeline projects, if not they should request one. F/L projects will have the welding specifications noted on the cover sheet of projects. Contractor can question the specification if they are not in agreement with the required process.

3.2 Joining Plastic Pipe

Butt fusion will be considered the primary method of joining longitudinal sections of plastic main. Rotary scrapers will be required when joining 4" and larger pipe in the ditch. Electro-fusion may be used at the discretion of the on site inspector. Electro-fusion couplings have been ordered for joining insertion or directional bored mains at intervals of 500 feet. Bar clamps should be used to secure 2" coiled pipe when joined by electro-fusion. Vice-grip clamps can not be used when joining runs of plastic mains together.

Two couplings are required per Cinergy Gas Standards when joining directionally drilled pipe. Personnel found joining pipe without the proper line up clamps and fusion equipment will lose their fusion cards., NO SECOND CHANCES WILL BE GIVEN FOR SHORT CUTS WHEN JOINING PIPE.

4.0 MAIN INSTALLATION

4.1 Inspection

CG&E will provide a Gas Inspector on all projects. The inspector will have multiple assignments.

4.2 Depth and Location of Main

All mains are to be installed at a minimum of 30 inches of cover in the sod, 36 inches under hard paving, or additional depths where permits or drawings specify. The State of Ohio Department of Transportation requires 48-inch of cover if the main is within 12-foot of the pavement, The State of Kentucky requires 42 inches of cover when in the road right-of-way and street improvement projects will set the depth or elevation of the main to be installed. Refer to attached letter (Appendix A).

4.3 Installation Methods

Acceptable methods of gas main installation are direct bury, insertion, pipe bursting or splitting, and directional drill.

4.3.1 Direct Bury

Spoil is to be used as backfill whenever practical.

4.3.2 Insertion

Pipelines installed by the insertion method shall include all costs associated with installation including mobilization, stringing, saw cutting of pavement, excavation at the service and tie in connections, removal of spoil, backfill, fusion, compaction, test wires and connections, pipe supports, foam sealing, squeezing off, excavation for utility location, temporary restoration and all final grass restoration, (which includes seed). Also included in the installation cost will be the air testing and the removal of segments of pipe associated with insertion and service reconnection activities. These segments must be removed from the job site and disposed of in an approved landfill. Pipelines will be leak surveyed by the on site inspector in accordance with CG&E standards. Insertion projects will require all customers to be back in service the same day. Crew hours will be paid for main line tie-ins only.

4.3.3 Directional Drilling

Directional drilling is an accepted method for pipe installation and must comply with all the guidelines set forth in this specification. The Gas Engineering Sponsor must approve all directional drilling of standard pressure pipe, pipe that will be drilled in rocky conditions. pipe placed within 3 feet of a paralleling a 3rd party utility, within 3-ft of a City of Cincinnati curb or within 5-ft of any Metropolitan Sewer or Clermont County water or sewer line.

The location and depth of all sewer laterals shall be determined and documented prior to directional drilling gas main to insure there is no conflict between the proposed gas main and the existing sewer. A plan for locating sewer laterals must be submitted to CG&E and approved prior to the Contractor performing any directional drill work; this cost is to be included in the installation price. Acceptable methods for locating the laterals are using a camera or physically uncovering the lateral. The contractor must install a sewer tag on every clean out if the main is directional drilled. Cinergy will provide the tags.

The Contractor must record the location and depth of the directional-drilled gas main at an interval of not less than every fifty (50) feet. The contractor shall excavate two test holes for every 300-500 foot bore to verify the location and depth of the gas main.

Spot holes or locate holes for 3^{nt} party utilities, under hard pavement for directional drill bores should be done with a vacuum truck to eliminate 4 ft. x 2 ft. restoration holes. The City of Cincinnati does require a 1-foot cut back for small restoration areas.

4.4 Damage to Gas Facilities

The Contractor is not to repair any active services or mains that may be damaged during construction. If the Contractor encounters any leaks or anything questionable the inspector is to be notified.

4.5 Strength Testing

The Contractor must supply all test gauges and test recorders (minimum chart size no less than 8 inches) with the appropriate certification sent to CG&E Gas Engineering prior to performing any air test on piping facilities. The testing equipment must be certified annually and the certification sent to Gas Engineering. The Contractor will also be required to have certified purging equipment.

4.6 Restoration

Clean up and restoration on all projects must be in compliance with the local governmental agencies and must be approved by the CG&E inspector. If the permitting agency requires restoration other than Cinergy's standards, a written request must be submitted to the job sponsor prior to the final restoration being preformed.

All final restoration of longitudinal cuts should be rolled even if grind and pave is a requirement of the permit. Cinergy will require all uneven restorations to be redone.

Permits requiring grind and pave will be done at Cinergy's expense, unless it is do to poor workmanship. In some cases the grind and pave would have been waived if the final restoration was smooth.

5.0 GAS MAIN TIE INS

CG&E intends to do all tie-ins with CG&E crews, but the Contractor might be required to redirect contractor crews to complete tie ins in certain situations. Tie-ins will require the installation and tapping of TD Williamson fittings, squeezing polyethylene mains and installing the appropriate saddles and making appropriate taps for connecting to cast iron mains. The Contractor will be required to have the following equipment:

- T D Williamson equipment up to 4-inch. The Contractors are not required to purchase 6 thru 12 inch T D Williamson and other pertinent equipment; however, Cinergy would like the Contractor to own this equipment.
- guillotine saws
- Pressure gages
- Squeeze-off equipment for 2-inch through 8-inch polyethylene
- Stopper bags for 2-inch through 12- inch cast iron
- Pertinent equipment necessary to tie in 2-inch through 6-inch mains steel and polyethylene.

If the contractor assists CG&E crews with tie-ins, the Contractor will be compensated at an hourly rate for the use of tie in equipment. The Contractor will be compensated one additional hour, over and above the tie in time for the transportation and cleaning of the T D Williamson equipment. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to meet with the Cinergy inspector, prior to scheduling any tie in work, to discuss the equipment and personnel necessary to perform the work. Cinergy will provide pressure crews to assist on tie in and purging activities.

Wipe tests are required when performing tie-ins over 4" in diameter, however, should the Contractor see any liquid condensate, the on site inspector must be notified. Cinergy will provide roll off containers to the contractor. The Contractor is responsible to provide a space for a roll off container to collect possible PCB contaminated pipe. The contract personnel are responsible to keep the roll off container covered at all times.

6.0 GAS SERVICES

The Gas Contractor will be required to renew costumer services from the gas main to the customer's service meter, as needed. Customer service lines are broken into two portions: the main to curb cock portion (M-C) and the curb cock to service meter portion (C-M). The Gas Contractor is required to complete all associated Job Completion Forms (JCF's) with the service work. The completion of the JCF's is required within one day of the completion of the service work. JCF's which are not filled out correctly will be returned to the contractor for correction.

6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service

Main to Curb services will be classified as either short-side M-C or long-side M-C. M-C short side services are less than 15 feet in length, regardless of the installation conditions. M-C long side services are 15 feet or longer in length and usually cross under roadways. It is possible to have all long side (crossover) services on a project. The main to curb portion of the service lines must be installed at the depth of 36 inches unless otherwise indicated. Street improvement plans typically contain cross section sheets which should be used to determine the depth of services.

In some insertion projects, it may be possible to reconnect the existing polyethylene main to curb service, should it pass the required pressure test, to the new gas main. This item will be paid on a lump sum basis as a M-C short side service.

When encountering a gas street lamp, the service to this will be considered M-C only and the actual connection to the lamp will be done by the Cincinnati Gas Light Company.

6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service

Within the Cinergy natural gas service territory, the customer currently owns the C-M portion of the service line. Curb to meter services that do not pass the required pressure test or services that are metallic (steel or copper) will be renewed. The renewal work shall include turning on and off the services, separating existing facilities for testing, excavating, air testing, rebuilding of the meter set, setting a new meter bracket, replacing the meter as required, and re-lighting the customer appliances. One extra hole will be paid to dig and separate the existing C-M when needed. Renewed C-M service lines shall be installed at a minimum depth of 18 inches on customer owned property. Gas Contractors are to gas track their own service work and it must be done by someone other than the installer. Every C-M service renewal or meter replacement must be gas tracked the same day it is installed. No leaks will be tolerated on inside meter sets, cards will be pulled.

Existing polyethylene services shall be reconnected to the new mains if it passes testing. The Gas Contractor will be required to turn off and to re-light customer appliances in accordance with the planned service replacement work and the Contractor must notify the Cinergy Inspector of any damaged or faulty appliances. The inspector will then call for a Service Mechanic who will then red tag the appliance if necessary.

Conversion projects where gas services must be converted from standard pressure to intermediate or high pressure will require the installation of regulators and vent piping.

The Gas Contractor will be required to replace tin meters and regulators associated with the renewal of curb to meter services. This replacement cost must be included in the curb to meter renewal unit price. CG&E will train Gas Contractors for free on the policies associated with spotting unacceptable meter and house service line locations and the identification of tin meters and mercury regulators. Only Cinergy personnel shall handle mercury regulators. If the household service lines or meters are found in an unacceptable location, the meters may be relocated to the outside.

7.0 **BID ITEMS**

CG&E is willing to review Contractor proposed alternatives to the bid items listed in the proposal. CG&E will require the Contractor to provide hourly rates for all labor and equipment such that payment can be made for work not anticipated on the contract.

7.1 Length of Gas Main

The length of gas main will be **paid on a linear foot basis** based on the type and size of pipe and method of installation. Payment will only be made for main that has been placed into service. The bid will specify direct bury or directional drill for 2, 4 or 6 inch main installations. The unit price received for 8 inch and larger mains will be accepted on the basis of direct bury unless otherwise specified by the Contractor. The designer must approve all changes.

Each size pipe shall be measured along the centerline of the pipe through fittings and casements from end to end. Where the pipe changes size, the particular size pipe shall be measured to the center of the transition fitting. The length of gas main installed by the Contractor shall be reported for payment under the units of gas main construction on the Units Work Completed Report. Each unit length of gas main installed shall include costs for:

- Mobilization
- Flag-persons or any arrow-boards
- Incidental items such as landscaping, trees and traffic loops
- Hydroseeding or seed and straw
 - Hydroseeding or seed and straw for tie-in holes should be included in the pipe price.
- Stringing
- Saw cutting of pavement
- Excavating & excavation for utility location
- Removal of spoil
- Joining pipe
- Placing backfill
- Compaction
- Anode installation
- Test connections
- Couplings
- Coating welds and couplings
- Temporary Restoration will be required for sidewalk installation and will consist of Class 53
- Air testing & purge point installation at ends of main (including installation of 8" valve box if backfilled
- Installing a 1 ¼ inch high volume tee to assist in the purging process of SP mains
- Blowing pigs through the new main
 - Two pigs are required for pigging with each lined up nose to nose
- Performing "Gas and Goes"

7.2 Boring – No Casing

This unit will apply to 8 inch and larger facilities. The installation price for 2, 4 or 6-inch bores (shall be included in the main installation unit price. This unit is to be reported for payment by size groups of the pipe installed in the bore regardless of the size of the bore and shall include all costs associated with completing the bore as well as setting up the bore machine. The cost of installing the gas main in the bore is in addition to the cost of the actual bore and should be reported for payment under length of gas main installed. Payment for driveway bores will be calculated on the basis of edge to edge, for trees drip line to drip line and landscaped areas from edge to edge.

7.3 Boring – With Casing

This unit is to be reported for payment by the size of the casing that is installed in the bore regardless of the size of the bore and shall include joining, excavation, installation of all insulators, seals and vents in accordance with Engineering Standard 2.12.1. The cost of installing the gas main in the casing is in addition and shall be reported as length of gas main installed. Boring through rock shall not be included in this unit but should be negotiated by the Contractor and the Purchaser at the time such rock is encountered.

Where boring has been specified on the construction plans, boring will be the expected method of installation. The contractor must receive prior written approval from Gas Engineering if directional drilling is to be used in place of boring.

7.4 Valve Assembly Complete

Each valve must be reported for payment on the basis of the size of the valve installed. The unit price for each valve installation includes setting the valve box to proper grade and the installation of pressure stems in accordance with the appropriate standard. For steel valves, the cost of welding the companion flanges, bolting the valve to the companion flange or welding the valve directly onto the line is included in the valve installation unit.

On plastic valve installations, electro fusion couplings will no longer be allowed to be used on the in line portion of a plastic valve. A 3 ft. pup piece must be butt fused on each side of the valve.

7.5 Satisfactory Test Welds / Fusions

Each satisfactory test weld / fusion must be designated by the size of pipe before reporting for payment. The cost of removing the weld / fusion from the line and re-welding / reconnecting the line shall be included in this payment. This unit will not be paid should the weld or fusion fail.

7.6 Services

Main to curb and curb to meter service renewal shall be paid on a lump sum basis. Included in the lump sum payment for main to curb or curb to meter is the associated paperwork, soft

restoration, and traffic control. The Contractor will be required to complete all associated JCF's. Any hard surface restoration required for main to curb or curb to meter service installations will be paid as a separate item. The number of services installed must be reported for payment. The inspector must be notified after a failed service line has been repaired so a record of the event can be logged and the inspector can verify that the repair was adequate.

7.6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service Line

The main to curb service will be paid on a lump sum basis by service size (1", 1-1/4", 2" or larger) and method of installation (direct bury, drill or insertion). The lump sum unit cost shall include excavating at the curb valve for reconnecting to the curb to meter portion of the service, and installing weld-o-let, service tee, service piping, curb cock, cap, setting of the curb box to grade, air test, soft restoration, and C-M tie-in. Curb cocks should not be installed in the sidewalk without the inspectors' approval prior to installation. Payment will be made on main to curb services when they are tested with the main.

7.6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service Line

Curb to Meter service renewal will be paid on a lump sum basis for 1" or 1-1/4" service lines based on the type of installation (direct bury, drill, or insertion). The curb to meter price shall include turning on and off appliances, separating existing facilities for testing, excavating, air testing, rebuilding of the meter set (including setting a new meter bracket and replacement of the meter as required), and re-lighting the customer appliances. This lump sum price will apply to a C-M service up to 70 feet in length. Any footage required over 70 feet will be paid at the price of \$7.00 per foot (excluding insertions). Payment for curb to meter services will be made when they are placed into service and the restoration and appropriate paperwork is complete on a street. Any additional holes excavated for an outside meter set or changes in elevation, required for renewal of C-M by insertion only, will be paid at a set price of \$75 per hole.

Large Service Reconnection – The reconnection of polyethylene or coated steel services 2" and larger to the main to curb will be paid on and hourly basis.

Large Service Renewal – The renewal of services 2" and larger will be paid as a bid item. This price shall include turning on and off appliances, separating existing facilities for testing, excavating, air testing, rebuilding of the meter set (including setting a new meter bracket and replacement of the meter as directed by the Gas Inspector), and re-lighting the customer appliances. This price will apply to a C-M service up to 70 feet in length. Any footage required over 70 feet will be paid at the price of \$15.00 per foot. Payment for curb to meter services will be made when they are placed into service and the restoration and appropriate paperwork is complete on a street.

7.6.3 Test & Relight

Curb to Meter services that are polyethylene and pass the required pressure test <u>will not</u> be renewed. Test & Re-Light work will be paid on a lump sum basis for polyethylene C-M service lines that pass the required pressure test. The Test & Re-Light work includes turning on and off

the gas service, separating existing facilities for testing, air testing, re-connecting the meter set, and re-lighting the customer appliances according to CG&E approved procedures.

If flexible risers are encountered, they will be replaced at the time of the test and relight unit price plus \$75.00 for each additional hole excavated. See attached (Appendix B) sketches for pay item clarification.

If old style regulators with 3/4" vents are encountered, they will be replaced with a new regulator (1" vent). The new 1" vent pipe shall not be reduced to 3/4".

Where dwellings with multiple meters are encountered, the contractor will be paid a test & relight price for the first meter and \$50 for each additional meter.

7.6.4 Meter Relocation

The cost to move meters from an unacceptable location shall be included in the C-M service unit cost; no additional payment will be made. Any house-line piping that must be relocated will be paid for on a time and material basis. In the case where the meter is in an acceptable location, and the customer asks the Gas Contractor to relocate the meter outside, the Gas Contractor must negotiate a price with the customer for any house line piping that must be relocated. When moving remote meters to the outside, the Contractor must reuse the existing meter and reattach the remote reader and verify that reads of the meter and the remote are the same. When moving meters outside make sure to replace a non-temp compensated meter with a temp compensated meter.

7.6.5 Pressure Conversion Projects

Replacement projects where gas services must be converted from standard pressure to intermediate or high pressure will require the installation of regulators and vent piping. The installation of regulator vent piping will be paid on a pre-set lump sum basis for piping up to 10-feet in length (\$55.00) and be paid on a pre-set linear footage basis for lengths over ten feet (\$2.50 per foot). Any additional excavation holes will be paid at pre-set price of \$75.00 each.

Bid Unit ID 55A-RPR, "Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2", includes the excavation, installation. soap test, backfill, soft restoration and the relight.

7.7 Main Tie Ins

The time associated with separating the existing facilities and reconnecting to the new main will be paid on an hourly basis. Flag-persons, arrow-boards, and plates required for tie in work will be paid on a time and material basis. Cinergy reserves the right to allocate work to company personnel at any time to provide assistance with the tie-ins, to insure completion in a timely manner.

Tie-in costs shall include the preparation of any and all by-pass requirements, the installation of fittings, such as TD Williamson, excavation, preparing cast iron mains by installing appropriate

saddles and making appropriate taps in accordance with standards, and the abandonment of the existing facilities to include purge and sealing the ends, in accordance with standards.

7.8 Rock Excavation

Refer to specification GD-150 section 10, 10.9.1 to 10.9.5 (GD-147, Contractor's schedule of unit cost) included in this specification.

7.9 Extra Depth

Refer to specification GD-150 section 10, 10.10.1 (GD-147, Contractor's schedule of unit cost) included in this specification.

7.10 Backfill – Bankrun Gravel or Sand in Open Trench (Tons)

The Contractor must provide the number of tons of bankrun gravel or sand installed in an open trench to receive payment under this bid item. The cost of hauling excavated material will not be paid as an extra and must be included in this bid.

7.11 CDF, CLSM or Flashfill

CLSM must be used as required by the appropriate governmental agency or as directed by CG&E. Within the hard surface areas, payment will be made to within 11 inches of final grade. The Contractor must provide the number of cubic yards installed in an open trench to receive payment under this item. The cost of hauling excavated material will not be paid as an extra and must be included in this bid item.

7.12 Restoration

Restoration shall be reported for payment under the appropriate unit cost item. The restoration will be bid on a class basis and must be completed in accordance with CG&E Standard 2.14, Specification GD-161 and the appropriate governmental agency requirements. Common restoration units not identified on the bid will be paid at the pre-set price shown on the attached list (Appendix C).

7.12.1 Soft Restoration

All final soft restoration, seed and straw, shall be included in the length of main installed. Twelve (12) inches of topsoil will be required if granular material is used as a backfill. The Contractor will be required to hydro-seed all soft areas, except when a Cinergy or community Inspector instructs you to seed and straw based on drought conditions. A seed mixture Spec is included. Topsoil is a separate bid item. All service holes outside the pavement area are to be covered with ¾" pływood and flasher barricade or snow fencing. Soft restoration of tie-in holes should be included in the pipe installation cost regardless of whether CG&E crews or contractor crews perform the tie-in.

l

7.12.2 Hard Surface Restoration

Restoration for asphalt pavement (street or driveway) will be paid in lineal feet in accordance with the unit price received. This price will apply to restoration completed in conjunction with the lineal feet of excavation required for installing the main and will be based on 2 feet of width. Equivalent footage two feet wide will be calculated for payment for service cuts and bell holes. Any sidewalk removal must be temporarily restored in accordance with local governmental requirements.

Curb ramps may be required at the intersections of streets. All restoration must be in compliance with the municipalities. Cost associtiated with this activity should be included in the integral curb with sidewalk pay item.

Bores under driveways and walkways are not considered hard paving when they are crossed. The entire bore is paid as sod. If the bore crosses a roadway it will be paid at the hard paving rate. Payment for restoration and backfill for directional-drilled facilities will only be made for necessary cuts and not for the entire length of main. Should the Contractor choose to directional drill and pop a driveway, payment will be made for the driveway restoration only and no payment will be made for boring without casing. Should the Contractor pop a street, payment will only be made for a 2 foot wide restoration strip, as would be required for open cut.

7.12.3 Tie-In Restoration

Restoration associated with tie-ins or other areas will be paid on a square yard basis.

7.12.4 Service Renewal Restoration

Any hard surface restoration required for main to curb or curb to meter service installations will be paid as a separate item.

7.12.5 Restoration Not Included on Bid

An addendum letter must be submitted prior to performing the work to the Job Sponsor. Prices on the pre-set small restoration unit price list should be used, refer to (Appendix C). Small restoration units will be paid cumulatively if completed in the same week.

7.12.6 Warranty of Restoration

The Contractor shall warrant materials and workmanship for a minimum period of one year from the final acceptance date of the project. All necessary repairs or replacements shall be made at

the Contractor's expense. If after a period of one year, the surrounding area does not deteriorate and the repaired area does, the Contractor will be partially responsible for making a new repair.

7.13 Miscellaneous

- 1- Consideration will be made to pay a welder to cut streetcar tracks. There will be no down time for the crew. The concrete removal will be paid in accordance with the rock unit after the first 11-inches from the street.
- 2- Northern Kentucky Sanitation District has requested that they be contacted when their facilities are damage. Refer to attached letter (Appendix D).
- 3- Test Holes will be paid as follows:

In Sod \$75, includes seed restoration

In Pavement \$150, restoration will be paid as a separate item

Any test hole required to spot utility crossings and to verify depth on directional drills will not be paid.

- 4- Traffic loops will be the responsibility of the contractor and should be included in the pipe price.
- 5- All railroad crossing permits were applied for by CG&E assuming that the crossings will take place with cased pipe bored at minimum 5.5' of cover below tracks. If the Contractor want to directional drill the crossing, the main has to be 10 below the tracks. If the change to directional drilling creates a problem with the original permit the Contractor will not be reimbursed for any down time. It is the contractor's responsibility to notify CG&E of their intention to directional drill the crossing and to allow adequate time to obtain a change in the railroad permit. If time does not allow for a change in the permit the contractor is expected to bore the crossing.
- 6- The City of Covington has submitted a restoration requirement for brick streets. Refer to attached letter (Appendix E).
- 7- The City of Cincinnati has submitted a general guideline of their traffic control requirements and usage of LSM and concrete. Refer to attached notes (Appendixes F).

8.0 <u>COMPLETION OF WORK</u>

No work shall be completed unless it is accepted by the authorized agent of the Contractor and (the authorized agent of CG&E. Work must comply with the proposal and any written negotiations associated therewith. The completion report is a listing of units installed or total number of hours of worked to complete the job.

The purchaser will track units of work completed as well as the associated hours such that productivity data can be collected for future cast iron and bare steel modules.

All work must be completed in the field by December 1, 2005 and all invoices received by December 15, 2005. However, all 12-inch main work must be completed in the field by October 27, 2005.

9.0 INVOICING

Contractors must meet with Inspectors on a weekly basis to complete sign off sheets on all projects (preferably Friday evening or Monday morning). The Inspector's copy is immediately forwarded to the invoice desk. The Contractor's copy is forwarded with the invoice to the invoice desk. Only one project can be billed on an invoice. Do not send two or more projects on one invoice or the invoice will be rejected. Do not add any items after the document has been signed. If there are additional items, sign out an additional sheet with the inspector. If the restoration is not completed when an invoice is payable, the payment will be held until the Supervisor accepts the completed work.

Items which were not bid (addendums) should not be invoiced with items that were bid. Also, any time and material (T&M) requests should be invoiced separate of bid items. T&M invoices should be accompanied by the daily sheets for each date that T&M was requested. The daily sheets should clearly identify the start and stop times for the T&M on each date along with the inspector's signature for approval on that date.

All invoices must be submitted such that the units to be invoiced, previous units invoiced and total units invoiced are shown. All invoicing must be submitted in this manner. A sample invoice is enclosed. Send all invoices to:

Cast Iron / Bare Steel Invoice Desk, 139 East 4th Street, Room 405-A Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

(

é

(ĺ

(

RFQ DOCUMENT

MAIN RFQ

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

REVIEW FILES

EXHIBIT A - Certification Of Bidder Regarding Collective Bargaining

EXHIBIT B - The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Contractor Corporate Safety Assessment Form

EXHIBIT C - Certified Minority & Women Business Enterprises Contracting Report

- EXHIBIT D CPE-10- Cinergy Contractor Labor Rate and Evaluation Form
- EXHIBIT E -The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Standard Terms and Conditions Construction of Gas Facilities.
- EXHIBIT F Specifications for the 2006 Gas Main Replacement, Relocation, and Extension Projects
- EXHIBIT G Welding Specifications (See Specifications for 2006 Gas Main Replacement, Relocation, and Extension Projects Note Book Dated September 21, 2005)

EXHIBIT H – Gas Standards – Separate Note Book

EXHIBIT I – Gas Operations' Specification GD 150

PACKAGE FILES

CinergyGasBid.exe

GasBid.hlp

G-4934.zip

Confidential and Proprietary
I. INTRODUCTION

A. <u>Request for Quotation Terminology</u>

Throughout this Request for Information, terminology is used as follows:

"Supplier" refers to all companies that are invited to participate in the RFQ

"Bidder" refers to all companies that participate in the RFQ

"Company" or "Contractor" means the firm or corporation to whom the RFQ originator has awarded the contract, the selected vendor

B. <u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of this Request for Quotation (RFQ) is to invite potential suppliers to participate in an Online Bid for The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Gas Installation Project:

Job Number	Job Name	Engineer	Start Date
Module 312	05-8312-0	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Module 362	05-8362-5	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Module 353	05-8353-4	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Module 319	04-8319-8	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Module 331	05-8331-0	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Module 354	05-8354-2	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Module 311	05-8311-2	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Plainfield Rd.	02-7338-3	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Wm. H. Taft	04-1019-1	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
E. Mitchell	04-1005-0	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006
Hamilton Ave	04-1069-6	Dan Schuler	1/1/2006

Each Job will be awarded as a separate project.

All facilities must be installed in accordance with The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company's Gas Operations' Specification GD-150 composite, CFR Part 192, The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Standard Terms and Conditions Construction of Gas Facilities, and all applicable specifications.

The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, orders, ordinances, regulations, and other requirements applicable to the Work and the performance thereof, including the Operator Qualification (OQ) rule (49 CFR 192 & 195).

Any contract performing pipeline construction for The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company must submit a copy of their drug and Alcohol Testing Program in accordance with 49A C.F.R. Parts 199 and 40 to:

Coordinator, DOT

Energy Delivery Safety & Techincal Traininng CSC

139 East Fourth Street Room M77 Main

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

All excavation work must be done in compliance with OSHA Construction Standards for Excavations, Subpart P.

The Standard Terms and Conditions, and Technical Specifications are attached.

C. Confidentiality

Suppliers who participate in this Pantellos RFx must keep all information provided by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and Pantellos confidential. All information provided by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company or Pantellos, whether written, oral, observed, or in electronic form, should be considered confidential. This includes all bidding information submitted and witnessed in the online marketplace.

Any supplier who does not honor these confidentiality provisions may be excluded from participating in any The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and Pantellos supply opportunities as well as be liable for other remedies provided The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company by Iaw. In addition, if a supplier observes practices that are unethical or counterproductive to the fair operation of the online marketplace, they should notify The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company or Pantellos immediately. Unless directed otherwise by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and Pantellos, all RFQ documentation, including all copies thereof in whatsoever form or medium, should be destroyed at the conclusion of this bidding process.

- D. Submitting Your Bids
 - a. The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company intends to bid using this RFx tool and award only to suppliers who participate using this RFQ mechanism, and will not award this business to any non-participating supplier.
 - b. Suppliers who participate in this Pantellos RFx agree to:
 - i. Furnish Supervision, Labor, and Equipment for the hauling of material and the complete installation of gas mains and services in accordance with The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company drawings and specifications listed in this bid proposal.
 - ii. All Work shall be performed in accordance with the Company's Standard Terms and Conditions Construction of Gas Facilities, Cinergy Gas Standards, Welding Specifications, Specification GD-150, Technical Specifications, Bid Document, Construction Drawings, and any other documents, drawings, specifications or other instruments ("Documents"), which are to be used and considered by Contractor, as applicable, for the performance of the Work herein. The Terms and Conditions and the

Specifications GD 150 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein. All other Documents shall be obtained by Contractor and/or provided to Contractor by Company or other party upon request, and all such Documents shall be incorporated herein by reference. Contractor shall ensure that it has any and all such Documents for the performance of the Work prior to the commencement of such Work.

- iii. Test(s); 90 to 100 psig Air, 24 hours.
- iv. The expense of incidental hauling material will be included with the rest of the bid package and not paid as an item.
- v. The unit cost prices shall include all cost incidental to quantities itemized above. Any other unit work not included shall be submitted by the Contractor in advance of performing the work. Extra work beyond the scope of the project will be allowed upon approval of the Superintendent, Contractor Construction Management or Project Engineer, or both, at the bid prices.
- vi. Invoices rendered for any work done on orders resulting from this proposal shall distinguish between materials, and labor.
- vii. Note: If a copy of current insurance coverage has not been submitted, please submit a copy of your certificate of insurance to our Purchasing Department before completing your bid.
- viii. The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Contractor Corporate Safety Assessment Form must be completed and submitted.
- ix. A specific contract will be issued to the awarded contractor for this project.
- x. In the future, electronic invoice settlement will be implemented at The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company. Notice is given that it shall be necessary for the Contractor to have the capabilities to transmit invoices and/or receive payment in electronic form. Electronic invoice and receipt settlements will assist both Parties in reducing transaction cost

E. <u>Cinergy Contact Information</u>

Please direct all questions relating to this RFQ must be submitted using the Question Function in the Pantellos RFx Tool.

II. SCHEDULE

The schedule for this Event is as follows:

RFQ distribution Bids due

September 21, 2005 October 10, 2005 at 2 PM EST

The above dates are subject to change by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company or Pantellos at any time.

III. RFQ INSTRUCTIONS AND RULES

Review the attached instructions in **Preview Files** and **Package Files** use the **Gas Bid Application**.

Please complete the Gas Units Bid amounts with some practice numbers using CinergyGasBid.exe and then uploading the below file to the RFx Management tool;

G-4934Return"yourname".zip

Please also summit a filled out; "The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Contractor Corporate Safety Assessment Form", "Certified Minority & Women Business Enterprises Contracting Report", "CPE-10- Cinergy Contractor Labor Rate and Evaluation Form", and "Certification Of Bidder Regarding Collective Bargaining" along with the "G-4934 Return"<u>yourname</u>".zip."

VI. RIGHTS OF BUYER AND SELLER

- A. The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company reserves the right to award all or none of the volume via this RFQ process.
- B. The Supplier's bid is binding for 120 days following the RFQ per the terms of this contract. Should The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company decide to accept the Supplier's bid, the Supplier is obligated to sign a contract that meets its lowest bid price with the same terms and conditions as this RFQ. Each contract will be binding for the period of performance associated with the terms of the lot.
- C. Subbidders
 - a. It is the Bidder's responsibility to gather, copy, and dispense all information to its subbidders regarding provisions of this specification and any other information the subbidder may require preparing its proposal. However, no specification, drawing or other bid document shall be reproduced or disclosed to third parties for purposes other than stated herein without The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company consent.
 - b. Contact between subbidders and The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company shall be only through the Bidder, and the Bidder shall so inform its subbidders to that effect.
 - c. The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company will not enter into a contract with Bidder's subbidders, and Bidder will so inform its subbidders to that effect.
 - d. Bidder shall list subbidders, if any, to be used during the project in the proposal. Subbidders shall be listed in the pricing section or on separate sheets attached to the proposal.
- D. The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids.
- E. Although price is the significant driver, The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company reserves the right to consider other factors in making its final decision to award the contract.

VI. Women and Minority Business Enterprises

As a member of the National Minority Supplier Development Council and its affiliate councils, Cinergy has made a strong commitment to assist in the development of minority and women-owned businesses. It is our goal to

increase the number and capacity of minority and woman-owned firms, to broaden their experience and expand their abilities. Therefore, Cinergy will favorably evaluate the opportunities provided to certified minority and womanowned firms when selecting suppliers and contractors from which we purchase goods and services. Cinergy requires suppliers to provide an opportunity to certified minority and woman-owned businesses; thus, information provided with your proposal which describes your commitment to utilizing minority and womanowned firms to fulfill this agreement will be a consideration during evaluation. Please submit along with other bid information a sub-contracting plan outlining the methods, services and suppliers you will utilize in fulfilling this contract should it be awarded to your company. Failure to return this completed form and all other documentation relative to this project may invalidate your bid.

V. Pre-Bid Meeting And Site Inspection

- A. A pre-bid meeting and site inspection will be held on Thursday, September 21, 2005 at 9:00 A.M., at Front and Rose in the upstairs meeting room. Bidder attendance at the pre-bid meeting and site inspection is mandatory unless specifically exempted by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company's Representative.
- B. Minutes of the pre-bid or proposal review meetings may be prepared by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and any decisions or agreements reached therein shall become part of the Contract or Purchase Order.

VI. Terms Of Payment

The payment shall be paid by The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company to Contractor Net Forty Five (45) days after the date of receipt of the invoice statement.

VII. Proposal Distribution

All RFQ responses, questions and answers must be submitted using the webbased RFx solution. If you need assistance using RFx, please contact Pantellos Support at 1-877-777-4888. This Attachment requires the BIDDER to disclose organizations with which it has collective bargaining agreements.

CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

Bidder's Company Name:

Address:

.

.

1. Bidder will perform the work described by this proposal under a valid, existing collective bargaining agreements with one or more labor organizations? YES NO.

If yes, list the name of the collective bargaining agreement and the applicable organizations:

	NAME	LOCAL #
2.	Labor wages included in the "bid price" comply with Federal trade rates currently prescribed?YES	Labor Standards and prevailingNO.
	DATE:	
	Signature of o	fficer or agent

(This attachment must be completed and returned with the proposal documents; failure to do so may result in bid disqualification.)

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Contractor Corporate Safety Assessment

Do you have a safety mission statement	? If yes,	, Please state		
Do you have annual safety goals?	If yes, your go	als are:		
OSHA 200 Safety history for the most Use the following formula for incident/	recent 3 years. accident rate:	RATE =	INJURIES X 20	<u>)0.000</u> S WORKED
	Year	05	04	03
1. OSHA recordable incident rate				
2. Number of recordable injury cases .	9 9 5 9 6 6 9 7 7 7 1			
3.Lost time accident rate				
4. Number of lost time accidents				
5. Total number of hours worked				
6.Number of fatalities				
⁷ .Your Experience Modification Rate (EMR)			
Aas your company received an OSHA	citation within the	last 3 years?	If yes, expla	in the nature of each citation
and list the citation amount. (Attach e	xtra sheet if needed	d.)		
Does your company have safety meetir	ngs for field employ	yees? If s	o how often? Dail	y / Weekly / Monthly?
Do you conduct field safety inspection	s? If sc	by whom _ H	ow often? Quarterl	y / Annually?
Does your crew hold daily job briefing	s? Are	they recorded?		
How many hours of safety training/orig	entation are conduc	cted for field per	sonnel? H	ow often?
Do you have a safety incentive program	n?			
Do you maintain inspection records on	your equipment?			
Do you have a feedback system for safe	ety concerns arisin	ig from hazard a	ssessments/field in	spections?
If yes. Please explain				
CONTRACTOR:			<u></u>	
Sign:				
Print:	<u>La - portunam philaidh a scinn an a</u>			
Title:			·	
Address:				
Date [.]				

•

CERTIFIED NORITY, WOMEN AND DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERFT CRES SUB-CONTRACTING REPORT

I. GENERAL INFORMATION	
DATE	YEARS IN BUSINESS?
SUPPLIER NAME	HAVE USED M/W/SDBs ON PREVIOUS PROJECTS?
TYPE OF BUSINESS	PREVIOUS YEARS DOLLARS CONTRACTED TO
PROJECT NAME	CERTIFIED M/W/SDBs? MBE \$
ANNUAL SALES \$	WBE \$
VALUE OF CONTRACT \$	SDB \$
INDICATE IF YOU ARE A CERTIFIED: MBE 🗍 🛛 WBE 🗍 SDB 🗍	
MBE: MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE WBE: WOMAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE S	DB: SMALL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS
(ATTACH PROOF OF CERTIFICATION AND COMPLETE ONLY SECTION II)	

II. CERTFIED MBE/WBE/SDB INFORMATION

LIST ALL MBE/WBE/SDB SUBCONTRACTOR(S) CONTRACTED AND TO BE USED ON THE PROJECT AND SUBCONTRACT PRICE

NAME & PHONE NUMBER	SERVICE/GOODS TO BE PROVIDED	AMOUNT \$	% OF CONTRACT	MBE	WBE	SDB

III. SOURCING EFFORT FOR CE	RTIFIED MBE/WBE/SDB					
LIST ALL MBE/WBE/SDB SUBCONT	RACTORS CONTACTED THAT WILL NOT BE US	ED ON THE PROJECT		<u> </u>	CHECK ONE	
NAME	ADDRESS	PHONE NUMBER	CONTACT PERSON	MBE	WBE	SDB

IV. LIST ANY ORGANIZATIONS, AGENCIES, OR GROUPS THAT YOU CONTACTED TO SOURCE CERTIFIED MBE/WBE/SDB BUSINESSES

(SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR SUGGESTED ORGANIZATIONS)

NAME	ADDRESS	PHONE NUMBER	CONTACT PERSON



NO

YES 🗌

CHECK ONE

	JGGESTED SOURCES
	SC

.

SOUTH CENTRAL OHIO MINORITY BUSINESS COUNCIL	4
INDIANA REGIONAL MINORITY SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL	0
CITY OF CINCINNATI DEPT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT	0
NATIONAL MINORITY SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL	08
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF WOMEN IN CONSTRUCTION	90
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MINORITY CONTRACTORS OF INDIANAPOLIS	t -
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MINORITY CONTRACTORS OF SOUTHERN OHIO	32

.

CPE-10 Cinergy Contractor Labor Rate and Evaluation Form

SPECIFICATION: LOCATION: STATE: CONTRACT PERIOD: FROM: TO:	CRAFT JOB TITLE: TRADE UNION IF APPLICABLE: INDICATE LOCAL IF APPLICABLE: CONTRACT WAGE EXPIRATION DATE:		
	Straight Time Calculation	Premium Ti	me Calculation
Enter the \$/Hr for both Craftsman Wages & Fringe Benefits:		Time & 1/2	Double Time
BASERATE - Wage Portion (Actual Contract Wage Rate) \$/Hr.	\$/HR (Baserate)	\$/Hr.	<u>\$/Hr.</u>
Fringe Benefits (Contractual Contributions) \$/Hr	\$/Hr (Rate for Hours Worked)	(Rate for Hours Paid)	\$/Hr (Rate for Hours Paid)
Total Wages and Fringe Benefits	\$0.00 \$/Hr	\$0.00 \$/Hr	\$0.00 \$/Hr
For the Items Listed Indicate Cost as a percentage of the BASERATE: Insurance & Taxes: SUTA Statutory Rate:; Proposal Rate:	Percent of Baserate	% of Payrate	% of Payrate
FUTA Statutory Rate:; Proposal Rate:; FICA	Percent of Baserate	% of Payrate % of Payrate	% of Payrate % of Payrate
Work.Comp Statutory Rate:; Proposal Rate: Insurance - PL & PD	Percent of Baserate Percent of Baserate	% of Payrate % of Payrate	% of Payrate % of Payrate
Supplies & Small Tools Consumable Supplies [Define on attachment] Small Tools ** [Define on attachment] Field Office Overhead Cost (without time extension)	Percent of Baserate	% of Payrate % of Payrate	% of Payrate % of Payrate
Superintendent, Timekeeper, Planner, and others	Percent of Baserate	% of Payrate	% of Payrate
Total Percent of BASERATE for insurance, Tax, and Field Overhead.	0.00 % of Baserate	0.00 % of Payrate	0.00 % of Payrate
Contractor Direct Cost Subtotal	<u>\$0.00</u> \$/Hr.	\$0.00 \$/Hr.	\$0.00 \$/Hr.
Per Diem, Overhead & Profit Living Expense/ Per Diem [Define on attachment] Home Office Overhead [Define on attachment] Profit or Fee	Percent of Baserate Percent of Baserate Percent of Baserate	% of Baserate % of Baserate % of Baserate	% of Baserate % of Baserate % of Baserate
Total Percent of BASERATE for Per Diem, Overhead and Profit	0.00 Percent of Baserate	0.00 % of Baserate	0.00 % of Baserate
SUBTOTAL Gross Receipts Tax (if applicable) 1.2%	\$0.00 percent	\$0.00	\$0.00 percent
Total Billable Rate to Owner	\$0.00 \$/Hr.	\$0.00 \$/Hr.	\$0.00 \$/Hr .

** Small tools are defined as construction equipment costing less than \$2,000.



DATE:

TITLE: THE PARTY OF THE PARTY

.

A.11. AM

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Standard Terms and Conditions Construction of Gas Facilities

.

í

٠

	Article	Page No.
1.	Scope	4
2.	General	4
3.	Definitions	4
4.	Time and Order of Completion	5
5.	Construction Schedule	6
6.	Indemnification	6
7.	Release and Reimbursement	7
8.	Limitation of Liability and Action	7
9.	Independent Contractor	7
1 0.	Assignment and Delegation	8
11.	Protection of Material and Work	8
12.	Removal of Equipment	8
13.	Work Performed at Contractor's Risk	8
14.	Inspection and Right of Access	8
15.	Damaged or Defective Work	9
16.	Modifications of Methods and Equipment	9
17.	Discontinuance of Work by Representative	9
18.	Termination Provisions	10
19.	Changes	12
20.	Contractor Informed as to Conditions	13
21.	Laws, Regulations and Permits	13
22.	Warranties	14
23.	Contractor's Address	15

January 17, 2005

• •

.

.

24.	Agents, Superintendents and Foremen	15
25.	Workmen to be Used	15
26.	Character of Employees	16
27.	Intoxicants and Narcotic Drugs	16
28.	Substance Abuse Policy	16
29.	Harassment Free Workplace Policy	18
30.	Representative to Define Terms and Explain Plans	19
31.	Use of Explosives	19
32.	Collateral Work	19
33.	Insurance	19
34.	Tax	21
35.	Mechanic's Lien Waiver	22
36.	Provisional Acceptance of Portions of the Work Shall Not Constitute a Waiver	23
37.	Setoff	23
38.	Advance Shipments	23
39.	Non-Disclosure	23
40.	Force Majeure	23
41.	Working in Harmony	24
42.	Certification of No Bid Rigging	24
43.	Payment & Retention	24
44.	Entirety of Agreement	25
45.	Safety Provisions	25
46.	Confined Space	26
47.	Hazardous Materials	26
48.	Non-Hiring of Employees	27
49.	Use of Contractor's Information	27

January 17, 2005

50.	Accounting and Auditing	27
51.	Alternative Dispute Resolution	28
52.	Headings	29

•

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company Standard Terms and Conditions Construction of Gas Facilities

Standard Terms and Conditions

1. <u>SCOPE</u>

These Gas Facilities Construction Terms and Conditions cover the general requirements for maintenance and construction of the replacement of gas main, associated services and meters, as required and contracted for by CG&E. The Terms and Conditions as listed herein and all accompanying documents referenced in Articles 1 and 2 and all other articles of this document are hereto be incorporated by attachment or reference into any purchase order, contract, agreement or other instrument[s] issued to Contractor for the Work.

2. <u>GENERAL</u>

- 2.1 Work to be performed is described in the project Specifications designated by the Contract and any drawings, descriptions and diagrams are incorporated herein by reference and made a part thereof.
- 2.2 In the event that documents incorporated by reference herein set forth conflicting requirements, the order of precedence shall be as described in Article 3.1.5 hereof.

3. **DEFINITIONS**

- 3.1 Wherever the following words and expressions are used in the Contract documents, it is understood that they have the meanings defined below:
- 3.1.1 CG&E The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and its subsidiary, The Union Light, Heat & Power Company and their proper successors and assigns.
- 3.1.2 Representative The designated corporate officer for CG&E or their designated representative or representatives.
- 3.1.3 Contractor The person, persons, partnership, company or corporation, including any of its subcontractors or successors, heirs and assigns undertaking the performance of Work required by this Contract or any other Work that subsequently becomes a part of the Contract by attachment or incorporation by reference hereto.
- 3.1.4 Agreement The document signed by Contractor and CG&E which confirms all agreements and commitments made by the Parties which may not be adequately described in other Contract documents; it may be omitted by mutual agreement of Contractor and CG&E.
- 3.1.5 Contract The composite of the commitments of Contractor and CG&E covering the performance of the Work. The components of the Contract are as follows, listed in their order of precedence: (1) mutually agreed changes to the Contract and amendments to the Contract subsequent to the date of Contract execution; (2) the Agreement, if any; (3) the Contract, excepting those terms & conditions printed on reverse side thereof; (4) these Terms and Conditions/Construction of Gas Facilities; (5) project Specifications, including special and technical conditions and other documents referenced within the Specifications

and all modifications thereof incorporated into any of said documents prior to the date of Contract execution; and (6) designated industry standards.

- 3.1.6 Specifications Collectively, all the technical conditions, drawings, data, designs, inventions, standards, and other technical information supplied by CG&E and such amendments made or to be made thereto pertaining to the performance of the Work or to guantities and gualities of materials furnished under the Contract.
- 3.1.7 Drawings Collectively, all the drawings, sketches or maps referenced in the Contract and incorporated by reference or attachment hereto, and also such supplementary drawings, sketches, or maps as CG&E may issue from time to time in order to expand upon said Drawings.
- 3.1.8 Work Labor, supervision, methods, materials, Equipment, engineering and professional services, transportation, and any and all other means necessary to complete the Contract.
- 3.1.9 Equipment Collectively, all the tools, apparatus, supplies, and equipment necessary to complete the Contract, including necessary vehicles and facilities for transportation of materials and supplies furnished by Contractor or to Contractor by CG&E.
- 3.1.10 Completion Unless the Contract clearly indicates otherwise, conforming the Work with the Drawings and Specifications for the Work; returning to CG&E all excess, retired, or maintenance materials and supplies pertaining to the Work; submitting to CG&E all other documentation required by the Representative; and providing the required assistance for testing and energizing, final turnover, and final clean up; all to the satisfaction of and acceptance by the Representative.

4. <u>TIME AND ORDER OF COMPLETION</u>

- 4.1 Time is of the essence in the Completion of the Contract, and Contractor agrees that Work shall be commenced and carried on at such points, in the order of precedence, and at such times and season as may be required to meet CG&E's schedule for performing and completing the Work. Contractor declares that it has familiarized itself with the sites of right-of-way, with all local conditions and with all circumstances which may or are likely to affect performance and Completion of the Work, and that it has allowed for such conditions in the preparation of the schedule and its bid.
- 4.2 No necessity for an extension of time is anticipated. If extraordinary circumstances should arise which are beyond the control of the Contractor, Contractor may file a written request for an extension, documenting therein the need for an extension. If the Representative, in his/her sole discretion, determines to grant the request, the extension shall not be a basis for any claim for additional compensation by the Contractor and shall not operate to release Contractor from its contractual obligations, or be deemed to waive any future claim that CG&E may have against Contractor for failing to comply with Article 4.1.
- 4.3 In the event Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the schedule agreed upon by the Parties, CG&E shall have the right to terminate the Contract for cause pursuant to Article 18, Termination Provisions. Whether or not CG&E elects to terminate the Contract at a given time shall in no manner be deemed as a waiver of CG&E's right to exercise this option in a subsequent failure of compliance by Contractor. Contractor shall be liable for any and all direct, indirect, and consequential damages resulting from Contractor's failure to comply with the scheduled Completion date. The schedules of this project are considered to be a significant provision thereof, and any failure of Contractor

to comply with contractually scheduled completion dates is considered to be a material breach of the Contract.

At any time during Contractor's performance of the Work, should CG&E determine that the 4.4 Contractor may not meet the schedule agreed upon by the Parties for the Completion of the Work, CG&E has the right to request adequate assurance from the Contractor that the Work will be completed in accordance with the schedule. Contractor shall provide the requested assurance in writing within the time set forth by CG&E. Should Contractor fail to provide adequate assurance to CG&E in writing or if such assurance is not satisfactory to CG&E, CG&E may consider either instance a demonstration of the Contractor's inability to perform the Work in accordance with the schedule and may consider such an anticipatory breach of the Contract. As such, CG&E may retain the services of third parties to complete any and all portions of such Work and deduct the compensation for such third party work and incidental expenses related thereto from the amounts to be paid to the Contractor for the relevant portions of the Work, and CG&E may terminate the Contractor with respect to such Work pursuant to Article 18, which shall be at CG&E's sole discretion. Any termination of the Contract under this paragraph shall be deemed to be termination for cause. The remedies afforded CG&E under this paragraph are in addition to any other legal or equitable remedies that may be available to CG&E in accordance with applicable law.

5. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

After notification of award and prior to start of any Work, Contractor shall, when required by the Contract or the Representative, submit its proposed construction schedule to the Representative for approval. The schedule shall be written in sufficient detail to show the chronological relationship of all major aspects of the project, including estimated starting and completion dates of various activities, procurement of materials and scheduling of Equipment.

6. INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall be liable for all damages or injuries occurring to persons or property that 6.1 are caused by its negligence or its failure to comply with the Terms and Conditions of the Contract. Further, Contractor hereby agrees to, and shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend CG&E during the period of any applicable statute of limitation from and against any and all actions or causes of action, claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, infringement of intellectual property or other proprietary rights, or expenses of whatever kind or nature, including attorneys' fees, which CG&E may suffer or incur by reason of bodily injury, including death, to any person or persons, or by reason of damage to or destruction of any property, including the loss of use thereof, arising out of or in any way connected with Contractor's activities pursuant to this Agreement where the Contractor, its agents, employees, representatives, or subcontractors is negligent, resulting in any expenses that CG&E may sustain or incur in conjunction with any litigation, investigation, or other expenditures incident thereto, including any suit instituted to enforce the obligations of this agreement of indemnity, whether or not due in whole or in part to any act, omission or negligence of CG&E or the representatives and employees of CG&E, except insofar as such indemnity arising out of such injury or damage is caused by the sole negligence of CG&E, their representatives or employees. Contractor's indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by any limit on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any third party under worker's damages, compensation, disability or other employee benefits acts, nor by the provisions of any required insurance. The foregoing notwithstanding, CG&E

agrees to hold harmless, defend and indemnify Contractor against any claim or liability arising from the presence or release of mercury, or any damage or expense caused by such mercury, at the time of the Work or any subsequent time thereafter, at customer premises in connections with its operations in removing gas meters and regulators, except for claims and/or liabilities that arise from Contractor's negligence or any third party working under the direction of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor hereby agrees to, and shall, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CG&E from any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, liabilities, and expenses of whatever kind or nature, including attorneys' fees, that CG&E might suffer or incur by reason of Contractor's breach of this Contract or violation or breach of any other written or verbal contract, purchase order, commitment, or agreement executed in connection in any manner whatsoever with the Work and to which Contractor, its agent or representative is a party.

7. RELEASE AND REIMBURSEMENT

Contractor shall release, exculpate and hold harmless and shall reimburse CG&E, their agents and employees from and for all claims, losses, damages, costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising or alleged to arise, in whole or in part, from injury to Contractor, their representatives, employees or subcontractors, including death, damage to their property, loss of use thereof, or breach of contract or agreement, arising or alleged to arise out of or in any way connected with the Work provided pursuant to the Contract by Contractor or the agents, employees or subcontractors of Contractor, except to the extent caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of CG&E, their agents or employees.

8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND ACTION

CG&E shall not be liable to Contractor for anticipated or speculative profits or for incidental, punitive, indirect, or consequential damages. The liability of CG&E on any claim of any kind for any loss or damage arising out of or in connection with, or resulting from the Contract or from the performance or breach thereof, and which has not been cured by CG&E within ninety (90) days after written notice from Contractor of the claim, shall in no event exceed the price allocable to the unit of Work which gives rise to the claim. CG&E shall not be liable for penalties or interest of any description, or any other expenses therefrom. Any action resulting from any alleged breach on the part of CG&E as to the Work performed hereunder shall be commenced within one (1) year after the cause of action has accrued.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Contractor shall perform its duties under the Contract as an independent Contractor and not as an agent or employee of CG&E, and nothing contained in the Contract shall be so construed as to justify a finding of the existence of any relationship between Contractor and CG&E inconsistent with that status. Contractor shall have exclusive control of and responsibility for its labor relations.

10. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION

Contractor and its subcontractors shall neither assign any of their rights nor delegate any of their duties under the Contract without the prior written consent of CG&E. If delegation

is permitted by CG&E, Contractor shall still continue to be responsible for the Completion of the Contract.

11. PROTECTION OF MATERIAL AND WORK

Contractor shall at all times protect and preserve all materials, Equipment of every description, including property which may be furnished by CG&E, and all Work performed. For this purpose, to the satisfaction of the Representative, Contractor shall provide all storage warehouses, adequate housing or other protection against deterioration and damage. If, as determined by the Representative, materials, Equipment, and Work performed are not adequately protected by Contractor, such items may be protected by CG&E and all costs thereof shall be charged to the Contractor or deducted from any payments due it.

12. REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT

Contractor shall not sell, assign, mortgage, pledge or remove Equipment or materials which have been installed or which are necessary for the Completion of the Contract without the written consent of the Representative.

13. WORK PERFORMED AT CONTRACTOR'S RISK

The Contractor shall take all precautions necessary, shall be responsible for the necessary expenses and safety of the Work, and shall maintain all lights, guards, signs, temporary passages or other protection necessary for that purpose. All temporary facilities shall be removed by Contractor when no longer required. All Work shall be done at the Contractor's risk, and if any loss of or damage to the property of CG&E or others shall result from fire or from any other cause, the Contractor shall at its own expense promptly repair or replace such loss or damage to the satisfaction of the Representative. If the Contract provides for the loading, unloading, transit and/or erection of Equipment, Contractor shall be fully responsible for all loss or damage to said Equipment from whatever cause; such responsibility to commence when the Equipment is available for such loading or erection. Contractor waives all claims against CG&E for loss or damage to any Work or property of CG&E or others, and without interference with the operation of existing machinery or equipment.

14. INSPECTION AND RIGHT OF ACCESS

- 14.1 Contractor shall notify the Representative twenty-four (24) hours prior to commencing Work at a CG&E location. CG&E shall have the right to inspect thoroughly all Work furnished under the Contract. Contractor shall furnish to the Representative access at all times to the Work and to the premises used by the Contractor, and shall provide the Representative every reasonable facility for the purpose of inspection, even to the extent of discontinuing portions of the Work temporarily, or of uncovering or disassembling portions of finished Work.
- 14.2 When finished Work is taken down or disassembled for purpose of inspection, Contractor shall incur all expenses incident thereto in the event that said Work is found to be defective. CG&E will pay the costs incident thereto in the event that Work taken down or disassembled for inspection is found to be in accordance with the Specifications. If the Contractor should fail to replace any defective Work after reasonable notice, the Representative may cause such defective Work to be replaced, and the expenses thereof

shall be charged to the Contractor or deducted from the amount to be paid the Contractor. In addition to the remedies set forth above, CG&E, at its sole option, may cancel the Contract in accordance with Article 18, Termination Provisions.

15. DAMAGED OR DEFECTIVE WORK

If the Work or any portion thereof is damaged in any way, except by acts of CG&E, or if defects, including latent defects, shall develop before final Completion and acceptance of the Work, Contractor shall, without compensation, correct such damage or defects in a manner satisfactory to the Representative.

16. MODIFICATIONS OF METHODS AND EQUIPMENT

Contractor alone shall be and remain liable and responsible for the safety, efficiency and adequacy of its methods, materials, working force and Equipment. However, if at any time Contractor's methods, materials or Equipment appear to the Representative to be unsafe, inefficient or inadequate for securing the safety of the workmen, the public, the quality of Work, or rate of progress required, or if at any time the Contractor's working force and Equipment, in the opinion of the Representative, shall be inadequate for securing the necessary progress, as stipulated in the Contract or on the Contract, the Representative may give notice to the Contractor of the problem and they shall meet promptly to address the problem. If they are not able to resolve the matter to Representative's satisfaction, Representative may order Modifications to those methods, materials, or Equipment or may, in writing, order the Contractor to provide a written program to rectify the problems identified and the Contractor shall comply with such orders to such an extent as to give the Representative reasonable adequate assurance of compliance with the schedule of completion. Failure of Representative to make such demands shall not relieve the Contractor of its obligation to provide the quality of the Work, the safe conduct of the Work, and the rate of progress required by the Contract.

17. DISCONTINUANCE OF WORK BY REPRESENTATIVE

- 17.1 The Representative shall have the right to order temporary discontinuance of the Work or any portion thereof when, in the opinion of the Representative, performance thereof by the Contractor is unsatisfactory to comply with the requirements of the Contract. Failure of the Representative to discontinue any Work shall not be deemed an acceptance of the Work and shall not relieve Contractor of any obligations relating to the performance of the If the unsatisfactory condition is promptly corrected by Contractor, the Work. Representative will authorize resumption of the Work. If Contractor does not promptly correct the unsatisfactory condition, CG&E may proceed under the provisions of Article 18. Termination Provisions. Discontinuance of Work by the Representative hereunder and resumption thereof by Contractor shall not be construed in any way as the basis for a claim for extra compensation by Contractor. For any instructions for the discontinuance of Work given by the Representative due to unsatisfactory performance by Contractor that is not corrected within a timely manner as determined solely by the Representative, Contractor may forfeit the respective payment originally due from CG&E prior to the unsatisfactory performance.
- 17.2 The Representative shall have the right to require discontinuance of Work, in whole or in part, for such time as may be necessary, should the condition of weather, flood or other contingencies make it desirable to do so in order for the Work to be properly performed. An extension of time may be granted to Contractor for any discontinuance of Work so required, but such extension shall not be a basis for any claim for additional compensation

by the Contractor, and shall not operate to release the Contractor from any of its obligations.

18. <u>TERMINATION PROVISIONS</u>

- 18.1 CG&E may terminate the Contract or any part thereof for cause if: Contractor refuses or fails, after receiving written notice from CG&E, to supply enough properly skilled workmen or proper materials or Equipment to perform the Work as scheduled by CG&E; Contractor disregards statutes, laws, ordinances, codes, rules or regulations; Contractor is otherwise in breach of any other term, condition or provision of the Contract. Should Contractor fail to provide assurance for enough properly skilled workmen, CG&E may terminate this Contract in accordance with paragraph 18.2 below, or any other contract CG&E has with Contractor. Any failure to comply with this Contract or any breach of any term and condition of the Contract may be considered, by CG&E at its sole discretion, a breach for which CG&E may terminate this Contract for cause under paragraph 18.2. If any of the foregoing occur, CG&E may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, terminate the Contract immediately after giving the Contractor written notice of the termination date, which may indicate that the termination is effective immediately; take possession of the premises and all materials. Equipment, and any other property thereon; and finish the Work by whatever method the Representative deems expedient. If it is subsequently determined by CG&E that there were inadequate grounds for Termination for Cause, the Contract shall be deemed to have been terminated pursuant to paragraph 18.2 hereof. In the event of termination under this paragraph 18.1, payment shall be based upon either the evaluated contractual value of the Work performed or audited costs, and shall be made in the manner prescribed in paragraphs 18.1.1 and 18.1.2.
- 18.1.1 Under any contract which has been terminated subject to paragraph 18.1, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished by CG&E or its designee. If the unpaid balance for the Work performed, which was not a basis for the termination for cause, exceeds CG&E's expenses for finishing the Work, including compensation for additional engineering, managerial, administrative and legal services, such excess shall be paid to Contractor. If those CG&E expenses exceed that unpaid balance, CG&E shall invoice Contractor for the amount due CG&E and Contractor shall pay that amount to CG&E within thirty days of the issuance of the invoice. Any amount unpaid more than thirty days from the date of issuance of the invoice shall be assessed interest at the rate of 1-1/2% per month until paid. If Contractor fails to remit any invoiced balance due under this Article within a reasonable period, as determined solely by CG&E, CG&E is entitled to all available legal and equitable remedies to recover said losses and costs. In this event, Contractor shall be liable to CG&E for all associated expenses and costs including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and court costs.
- 18.1.2 In addition to the provisions in 18.1.1 above, under a cost-plus type contract, no additional payments will be made except for acceptable Work performed prior to the month of termination.
- 18.2 In addition to its rights to cancel the Contract for cause as set forth in paragraph 18.1, CG&E shall have the right, for its convenience, to terminate the Work in whole or in part at any time by written notice to the Contractor. Any notice of termination shall state the extent and effective date of such termination, and on such effective date the Contractor shall, as and to the extent directed: stop work under the Contract and the placement of further orders or subcontracts; terminate work under existing orders and subcontracts; and take any action necessary to protect property in its possession in which CG&E has or may acquire any interest and to dispose of such property in such manner, at the times,

and at the price or prices as may be directed by CG&E. In the event CG&E elects to terminate the Contract for its convenience, payment shall be handled in the manner prescribed in 18.2.1 and 18.2.2 below.

- 18.2.1 Under a lump sum firm price or a firm price per unit contract, Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment from CG&E based, at CG&E discretion, upon either the value of Work performed to the effective date of termination or for all audited direct costs actually and necessarily incurred by Contractor in performing the Work up to the effective date of the termination notice, less amounts previously paid and less amounts recovered through sale of materials, Equipment and all other items not yet incorporated into the Work, together with ten percent (10%) of all such audited direct costs for overhead and profit, and such other actual and necessary audited cancellation costs, exclusive of overhead and profit, as Contractor may have reasonably and necessarily incurred as the result of such termination.
- 18.2.2 Under a cost-plus type contract, Contractor shall be paid for the balance of all payments reimbursable to it under the Contract, plus any applicable fee computed at the percentage rate stated in the contract upon the audited cost of the Work completed to date or on Contractor's fixed fee amount due as of the effective date of the written notice of termination.
- 18.3 Contractor shall, as a condition precedent to receiving the payments provided in this Article, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such steps, including the legal assignment of its contractual rights, as CG&E may require for the purpose of fully vesting in CG&E the rights and benefits of Contractor under any contracts, obligations or commitments which Contractor has undertaken or incurred in connection with the Work. Before any assignment of rights under this provision, Contractor agrees to, and shall, provide written confirmation to CG&E that any and all financial obligations that Contractor has under any such contract, obligation, or commitment have been fully satisfied and paid.
- 18.4 After receipt of a notice of termination, Contractor shall submit its termination claim to CG&E, in the form, manner and with certification to be prescribed by CG&E, and shall submit evidence satisfactory to the Representative that all payrolls, invoices, bills and other indebtedness connected with the Work have been paid. Such claim and evidence shall be submitted no later than ninety (90) days from the effective date of termination, and CG&E shall have up to ninety (90) days to evaluate that claim and evidence.
- 18.5 CG&E shall be entitled to defer payment to Contractor to the extent of all claims CG&E or others may have against Contractor arising out of or connected with the Contract or the Work, until such claims have been fully resolved. In any event, no claim from the Contractor shall be processed for payment until Contractor has submitted its termination claim pursuant to paragraph 18.4.
- 18.6 Contractor shall, from the effective date of termination until the expiration of four years after final settlement under the Contract, preserve and make available to CG&E all such books, records, documents and other evidence bearing on the costs, expenses, and methods of payment of Contractor under the Contract relating to the Work terminated hereunder, and CG&E shall have the full right to audit those books, records, documents and other evidence within a reasonable time after written request.
- 19. <u>CHANGES</u>

- 19.1 CG&E shall have the right at any time to modify the Contract and the Specifications contained herein. CG&E may, without invalidating the Contract, in writing, order such changes to be made, and the changes shall be made accordingly. If any such changes cause an increase or decrease in the price in the Contract or in the time and order of Completion, an equitable adjustment, upon the request of either party, shall be made and the Contract amended by supplemental orders or by a Contract Change Notice. No change in price shall result unless approved in writing by CG&E. The value of any changes shall be determined by unit prices listed in the Contract or other pricing subsequently agreed upon.
- 19.2 All claims of Contractor for adjustments allowed by Paragraph 19.1 shall, except in the case of emergency changes as determined by the Representative or if the change has a mutually agreed to estimated value of \$5,000 or less, be made prior to Contractor's commencement of performance of the changes on which they are based and shall, if not made prior to such time, be conclusively deemed to have been waived. For those claims with a mutually agreed to estimated value of \$5,000 or less, or emergency changes as determined by Representative, the claim for adjustment shall be made within twenty (20) days from date of receipt of the change notice by Contractor.
- 19.3 The foregoing sets forth the sole means by which the work may be changed. Should CG&E at any time make any interpretation of any of the Contract documents, submit any additional drawings, refuse to approve any of Contractor's shop drawings or require any change in the same as a condition precedent to the approval thereof, or issue any other direction which, although not so identified by CG&E, is considered by Contractor to be an order making a change in the Work, Contractor shall, within five (5) days after receipt of its written notice of such direction, submit to the Representative, a written request for the issuance of a written Contract Change Notice. Upon receipt by CG&E of such Notice, the Parties shall endeavor to agree as to whether the direction in question constitutes an order for a Change in the Work and as to the equitable adjustment, if any, to be made, and failure of the Contractor to so endeavor to agree shall constitute a breach of this Contract, subject to termination under Article 18. If agreement can or cannot be reached, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved. The cost of such work shall be determined by the Representative on the basis of Contractor's reasonable expenditures and savings which may be verified by an audit of the direct costs or savings associated with the change, including, in the case of an increase in the Contract sum, an allowance of ten percent (10%) for overhead and profit. In such case, Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Representative may reasonably prescribe, an itemized accounting, together with appropriate supporting data. The amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to CG&E for any deletion or change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of actual net decrease as confirmed by the Representative. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of the net increase, if any. The foregoing provisions or any negotiations between the parties shall not operate to relieve Contractor of its duty to perform the Work in complete accordance with the Contract documents or to release or discharge either party of any duty arising under the Contract. The failure of Contractor to make a request in the manner and within the time provided above for a Change Notice covering any such direction shall constitute its agreement that such direction does not make any change in the Work required by the Contract for which there is a cost basis, and any adjustment for an increase shall be deemed waived.
- 19.4 Documents issued by CG&E engineer which constitute a change under the terms of this Contract shall not be accepted by Contractor unless authorized by CG&E and confirmed by formal change authorization.

- 19.5 Deviations to the Specifications by Contractor are not permitted unless authorized by CG&E and confirmed by a formal change authorization.
- 20. CONTRACTOR INFORMED AS TO CONDITIONS
- 20.1 Contractor acknowledges that it has examined all available records and has made a field examination of the site and rights-of-way and has informed itself about the subsurface conditions and surface and subsurface water conditions to be encountered, the character of Equipment and facilities needed for the execution and Completion of the Work, location and suitability of all construction materials, quantities in various material or labor related sections of the Work, local labor conditions, and all other matters in connection with the Work and services to be performed under the Contract.
- 20.2 Any records of subsurface conditions or other observations which may have been made by CG&E may be made available to the contractor for its information, but there is no expressed or implied warranty or guarentee as to the accuracy of the records or any interpretation thereof. Contractor understands this and has formed its opinion of the character of materials to be excavated from an inspection of the ground and has made its own interpretation on such records.
- 20.3 Contractor warrants that the agreed prices set forth in the Contract are based on its knowledge and judgment of the conditions and hazards involved, and not upon any representation of CG&E. No claim of ignorance of conditions that exist or difficulties encountered in the execution of the Work shall be presented or accepted as an excuse for failure to comply with the Contract.

21. LAWS, REGULATIONS AND PERMITS

- 21.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted under the laws of the state in which the CG&E facility for which the Work is to be performed is located, except to the extent said laws are preempted by the laws of the United States of America. If any part of these Terms and Conditions is adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to the law governing the Contract, the remaining provisions of the Contract Terms and Conditions shall in all other respects be and remain legally effective and binding to the fullest extent possible.
- 21.2 Contractor shall comply with federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, Presidential directives and executive orders, including, but not limited to, Executive Order 11246 Equal Opportunity, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 2012 of the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, and regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency, that are now or may during the period Contractor is performing the Work become applicable to the Contractor or the subject matter of the Contract, and all such federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, Presidential directives and executive orders are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.

Contractor shall also procure all necessary municipal and other governmental permits, licenses and inspections, and shall pay all fees and charges in connection therewith, unless CG&E indicates in writing that it elects to procure and pay for all or some of the permits, licenses and inspections. CG&E shall have no obligation of any kind to review Contractor's compliance with these measures.

21.3 Contractor shall abide by any and all rules CG&E may have in effect or hereafter put into effect at the site of the Work pertaining to workmen, safety, use of cameras, security procedures or requirements, lighting of fires, and the handling of Equipment, materials or any other part of the Work.

22. WARRANTIES

- 22.1 Contractor warrants that it has title to and the proprietary right to provide the Work pursuant to the Contract. Contractor shall at its expense either defend or settle, with the prior approval of CG&E, any suit, claim or action against CG&E based on an allegation that the Work or the use thereof constitutes a patent, copyright or other intellectual property right infringement. Contractor shall pay all amounts awarded against CG&E in such suit, claim or action and shall reimburse CG&E for any damages, direct or consequential, incurred as a result of such suit, claim or action, including but not limited to royalties, license fees and CG&E expenses incurred by participating in the defense or settlement thereof, including attorneys' fees. In the event the Work is held to constitute an infringement in such suit, claim or action or its continued use is enjoined, Contractor shall at its own expense and at the option of CG&E either (a) procure for CG&E the right to continue using the Work, (b) replace the Work with equivalent non-infringing Work, or (c) modify the Work so it becomes non-infringing.
- 22.2 Contractor warrants that all Work performed under the Contract is consistent with good engineering and construction practices, shall be free from defects in workmanship or materials, shall conform to the requirements of the Contract, and shall be fit and sufficient for the purposes expressed in, or reasonably to be inferred from, the Contract documents. Contractor shall, at no expense to CG&E, correct any failure to fulfill the above warranty which may appear at any time within one (1) year (or, in the case of items as to which a longer warranty period is set forth in the Specifications, within such longer period) after the date of Contract Completion and actual use. In any event, the warranty herein expressed shall not be sole and exclusive and is in addition to any other warranty expressed or implied.
- Contractor warrants that Work provided pursuant to the Contract pertaining to the 22.3 Equipment shall conform to all affirmations of fact or promises made by Contractor, descriptions, samples, specifications and appropriate industry standards, shall be new and of the best quality and shall be free from defects in material and workmanship. In addition. Contractor warrants that said Equipment is merchantable and is fit for ordinary purposes for which such Equipment is used. If CG&E has represented to Contractor the particular purposes for which the Equipment is required by CG&E, Contractor warrants that the Equipment shall be fit for said purposes. In the event of a breach of any of the foregoing warranties, Contractor shall expeditiously as that term is defined by CG&E, and at its own expense but at the sole option of CG&E, repair or replace the Equipment to comply with said warranties and shall be liable to CG&E for any consequential damages resulting from said breach. If CG&E determines that Contractor is not expeditiously making said repair or replacement, CG&E may thereafter repair or replace the Equipment by the most expeditious means available and charge or backcharge Contractor for the costs incurred by CG&E. The foregoing warranties shall apply to any and all repaired or replacement Equipment provided hereunder.

23. CONTRACTOR'S ADDRESS/NOTICES

Both the address appearing on the Contract and Contractor's Office at or near the Work site are hereby designated as places to which notices, letters or other communications to

Contractor may be mailed or delivered. The personal delivery of any notice, letter or other communication to Contractor at either of the above named places, or depositing the same in the United States mail, first class postage prepaid addressed to either location shall be deemed sufficient notice or service thereof upon Contractor, and the date of such notice or service shall be the date of such personal delivery or depositing. The first-named address may be changed at any time by an instrument in writing executed and acknowledged by Contractor and delivered to CG&E. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to preclude or render inoperative the service of any notice, letter or other communication upon Contractor personally.

24. AGENTS, SUPERINTENDENTS AND FOREMEN

- 24.1 In the event of emergencies, when Contractor or its General Superintendent is not present for part of the Work and it may be necessary for CG&E to give directions, orders may be given by the Representative and shall be received and obeyed by the person who may have charge of the particular part of the Work in reference to which such orders are given. If requested to do so, the Representative shall subsequently confirm such orders in writing.
- 24.2 Any supervisory personnel furnished by Contractor shall be technically qualified to perform the Work for which they are assigned. When requested by CG&E, Contractor shall submit the resume of the superintendent that will be assigned to this Work.

25. WORKMEN TO BE USED

- 25.1 Certain portions of the installation call for workmen skilled not only in their trade but who also specialize in the particular field required. Contractor guarantees that such Work shall be done by workmen who are skilled and specialized in the Work to which they are assigned, and the Representative must approve the qualifications of each worker who is required to be certified prior to such worker commencing any Work on the project. All labor will be under a collective bargaining agreement.
- 25.2 Contractor, on an all-things-being-equal basis, shall use local material, Equipment, subcontractors and workmen when to do so will not result in additional expense to Contractor.
- 25.3 Contractor's superintendents, supervisors and engineers should not be withdrawn from the Work without reasonable notification being given to the Representative; *provided, however*, that no such withdrawal shall be made if it will jeopardize successful and timely completion of the Work.
- 25.4 The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and its affiliates require any and all employees of any contractor or subcontractor that provides goods or services to The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and its affiliates, to be either United States citizens, permanent residents, or otherwise legally authorized to work in the United States for the sponsoring employer.

26. CHARACTER OF EMPLOYEES

Whenever requested to do so by CG&E, Contractor shall immediately remove any person from the worksite, and such person shall not again be employed on or allowed access to the worksite without the prior written consent of CG&E. Nothing herein shall prohibit Contractor from making its determination regarding its work force.

27. INTOXICANTS AND NARCOTIC DRUGS

Contractor shall not permit or suffer the introduction or use of intoxicating liquor, narcotic drugs, substance abuse paraphernalia, firearms, gambling or gambling paraphernalia during the Work outlined in the Contract, or upon any of the grounds occupied, owned or controlled by CG&E. Any Contractor employee found engaging in such activities shall be removed and permanently barred from CG&E property, including any and all job sites.

28. SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY

A. Contractor, its subcontractors, and construction managers shall establish and implement a substance abuse program which includes requirements meeting or exceeding the terms set forth below (the "Policy"). This Policy shall apply to all Work at all existing and future CG&E job sites.

This Policy shall be consistent with the Construction Owners Association of the Tri-State ("COATS") COATS/Bethesda substance abuse testing programs. Any Contractor performing Work for CG&E in the Cincinnati/Tri-State area is encouraged to participate in the COATS/Bethesda substance abuse testing program. Any Contractor performing Work for CG&E which falls under the definition of "Safety Sensitive" as defined by the Department of Transportation (DOT) Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA) shall submit a Policy which meets or exceeds 49 CFR Parts 199 and 40 before commencement of any such Work.

- B. Before beginning any Work, Contractor shall submit to CG&E a written statement certifying that each employee assigned to the Work, including all labor, craft, supervision and management employees, has completed a substance abuse screening test within the past 12 months and has not tested positive, or if the employee tested positive, was referred to a Substance Abuse Professional ("SAP") for an evaluation, has completed or is complying with the SAP's recommendations, and has been retested and tested negative.
- C. Contractors whose Work is defined as "Safety Sensitive" under DOT RSPA shall submit statistical reports quarterly, or more frequently if requested by CG&E, which meet or exceed DOT RSPA requirements.

28.1 Minimum Substance Abuse Testing Parameters

- A. The following are the minimum substance abuse testing parameters:
 - 1. Use of a National Institute of Drug Abuse ("NIDA") approved laboratory.
 - 2. Use of a Medical Review Officer ("MRO") for confirmation of positive test results.
 - 3. Use of a NIDA 5 Panel Drug Screen with the following cut-off and confirmation levels:

ng/ml cut-off ng/ml confirmation

January 17, 2005

Marijuana (THC, Cannabinoids)	50	15
Amphetamines	1000	500
Cocaine	300	150
Phencyclidine (PCP)	25	25
Opiates	2000	2000

- 4. Use of an evidential breath testing device to detect the consumption of alcohol with a positive cutoff level of .02 percent
- 5. Use of a DOT approved collection form for DOT and DOT RSPA Contractor employees.
- B. Contractor shall test all employees involved in any accident requiring consultation with a doctor or medical treatment beyond first aid, or when there is probable cause as determined by Contractor or by CG&E. Contractor shall post accident test all Contractor employees whose actions may have contributed to, or cannot be significantly discounted as a contributing factor to, an accident, as defined by DOT RSPA, other federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and CG&E rules and requirements. No Contractor employee shall perform Safety Sensitive work, as defined by DOT RSPA, following a post accident or reasonable cause test until a negative result is received.
- C. Contractor shall implement a random substance abuse testing program which meets the minimum requirements set forth in Paragraph 28.2 hereof or certify that the employees assigned to the Work are already participating in a qualified random substance abuse testing program ("Qualified Program"). A Qualified Program must require, on an annual basis, a number of random tests equal to an annual rate of 25 percent of the total number of Contractor employees assigned to the Work and comply with the minimum substance abuse testing parameters stated in Article 28.1.A above.

28.2 Random Substance Abuse Testing Minimum Requirements

- A. The random selection method used by Contractor shall be computerized, truly random and credible. The number of random substance abuse tests to be administered by Contractor shall be equal to the greater of 10 percent of Contractor employees assigned to the Work or 25 percent times the number of Contractor employees assigned to the Work times the duration of the Work in weeks divided by 52. For example:
 - If the duration of the Work is 4 weeks and the number of Contractor employees assigned to the Work is 100, a minimum of 10 percent, 10 random substance abuse tests would be performed because:

25% x 100 employees x 4 weeks = 1.9 tests 52 weeks

• If the duration of the Work is 26 weeks and the number of Contractor employees assigned to the Work is 100, 12.5 random substance abuse tests would be performed.

25% x 100 employees x 26 weeks = 12.5 tests 52 weeks

- The total number of random substance abuse and/or alcohol tests shall equal or exceed the minimum percentage of tests required by DOT and/or DOT RSPA for all Contractor employees performing Safety Sensitive work on an annual basis.
- B. Immediately upon receipt of test results, Contractor shall remove from the job site any Contractor employee who tests positive or in any way does not comply with the Policy. Contractor shall not allow an employee who tests positive to return to the Work for the duration of the project, unless, following a positive test, the employee is referred to a SAP for evaluation, is in complete and continuous compliance with any recommendations of the SAP, and has a negative return-to-duty test. In the event the employee complies with the above, Contractor may permit said employee to return to the Work. Any Contractor employee that has a second positive test or has a negative return-to-work test will be removed and permanently barred from CG&E property, including any and all job sites.
- C. Contractor shall consider a refusal to submit to substance abuse and/or alcohol testing as a positive result.
- D. CG&E may, at its sole discretion, upon notice to Contractor, audit Contractor's substance abuse testing records relating to the Work.
- E. CG&E encourages Contractor to offer employee assistance to all employees who test positive, and CG&E requires the Contractor to have such employees visit a SAP as required by DOT.

29. HARASSMENT FREE WORKPLACE POLICY

- A. Contractor, its subcontractors, and construction managers shall be required to comply in CG&E's Harassment Free Workplace Policy. This Policy shall apply to all Work.
- B. Before beginning any Work, Contractor and its subcontractors shall submit to CG&E a written statement certifying that each employee assigned to the Work, including all labor, craft, supervision and management employees, have completed training on the Harassment Free Workplace Policy.

30. REPRESENTATIVE TO DEFINE TERMS AND EXPLAIN PLANS

- 30.1 The various parts of the Contract are intended to be complementary to each other, but any discrepancy or misunderstanding as to the import of anything contained therein which is not resolved by the listing of precedence in Article 3.1.5, shall be interpreted by the Representative, which interpretation shall be final and binding. Correction of any error or omissions in drawings and specifications may be made by the Representative when such correction is necessary to bring out clearly the intention indicated by a reasonable interpretation of the drawings and Specifications as a whole.
- 30.2 Additional drawings and explanations to exhibit or illustrate details may be provided by the Representative and will be so provided whenever necessary as determined by the

Representative, and such additional drawings and specifications shall be binding upon Contractor and incorporated into the Contract in accordance with Article 19, Changes.

31. <u>USE OF EXPLOSIVES</u>

Use of explosives in a manner which might disturb or endanger the stability, safety or quality of the Work will not be allowed. Explosives shall be stored, handled and used as prescribed by the laws and regulations of the United States and the state in which the Work is performed, their agencies, and any political subdivisions thereof. Contractor shall be responsible for removal of all unused explosives.

32. COLLATERAL WORK

32.1 CG&E reserves the right to have such agent or agents, as it may elect, enter upon the property or location upon which Work is being performed for the purpose of constructing or installing such collateral work as CG&E may desire. Contractor shall work in harmony with other contractors or such agents employed by CG&E and any difference of opinion relating to work being performed at the site between contractors shall be arbitrated by the Representative.

33. INSURANCE

- 33.1 At least seven (7) days before commencing the Work, Contractor shall cause and shall direct each of its subcontractors to cause the insurance companies providing Worker's Compensation insurance for Contractor or subcontractors to certify to the satisfaction of the Worker's Compensation Board of the state or states in which the Work or any portion of the Work is to be performed that Contractor and its subcontractors have complied with all applicable Worker's Compensation and Occupational Disease laws.
- 33.2 During the entire period of the Work, Contractor shall procure and keep in force and shall require its subcontractors to procure and keep in force, a policy or policies of insurance, in a form acceptable to CG&E and issued by an insurance company or companies acceptable to CG&E, which adequately protect Contractor and CG&E from and against claims, losses or actions arising out of or in any way connected with the Work. Except for Worker's Compensation, such insurance policies shall name CG&E as an additional insured. Within ten (10) days of the execution of the Contract, and during the entire period of the Work, Contractor shall provide CG&E with Certificates of Insurance providing evidence of at least the following insurance coverage and limits:

COVERAGE	LIMITS
Worker's Compensation	Statutory Requirements
Employer's Liability	\$2,000,000 Each Person
PUBLIC LIABILITY Commercial General Liability and Contractual Liability Bodily Injury	\$2,000,000 Each Person \$2,000,000 Each Occurrence
Property Damage (Including coverage for "X" Explosion, "C" Collapse and "U" Underground Hazards)	\$2,000,000 Each Occurrence \$2,000,000 Aggregate

January 17, 2005

Products/Completed Operations	\$2,000,000 Each Person
Bodily Injury	\$2,000,000 Each Occurrence
Property Damage	\$2,000,000 Each Occurrence
<u>Automobile Liability</u>	\$2,000,000 Each Person
Bodily Injury	\$2,000,000 Each Occurrence
Property Damage	\$2,000,000 Each Occurrence

- 33.3 A. During the entire period of Work, Contractor shall maintain, at Contractor's cost, All Risk Builders Risk Insurance including, but not limited to fire, lightning, windstorm, extended coverage perils, vandalism, theft, collapse, explosion, and testing, and transit, covering the Work with a limit to the full insurable value. Such insurance shall (i) name CG&E, Contractor, and subcontractors as Insureds; (ii) include a waiver of subrogation against CG&E and the Contractor and subcontractors; (iii) be primary to any other insurance maintained by CG&E; and (iv) be in a form acceptable to CG&E and issued by an insurance company acceptable to CG&E. At least seven (7) days prior to the commencement of Work, Contractor shall furnish a copy of said policy to CG&E, and such policy shall remain in effect during the Contractor's entire duration of Work.
 - B. Until accepted in its entirety by CG&E, the Work shall be at Contractor's risk, and if any loss of or damage to the Work from whatever cause or causes occurs prior to acceptance by CG&E, Contractor shall, without cost to CG&E, promptly repair the Work so lost or damaged at the Contractor's expense.
 - C. In case Contractor shall use any facilities of CG&E, it shall be Contractor's duty before such use to ascertain that such facilities are in safe operating condition and Contractor shall be responsible for and indemnify CG&E against any loss or damage resulting from such use and to such facilities.

34. <u>TAX</u>

- 34.1 A. Unless exempted therefrom, all taxes, except gross retail sales or use tax applicable to this transaction, which the Contractor is required by law to pay, are included in the price stated in the Contract. For taxability of purchases in Ohio and Kentucky, see Paragraphs 34.2 through 34.9. The purchase under the Contract is exempt from other states' sales or use tax because it is made in interstate commerce and the ultimate use will be by CG&E in its respective states of Ohio and Kentucky.
 - B. For purposes of classifying property for taxation, items of property devoted primarily to the general use of the land or buildings thereon are classified as Real Property. All other items of property, including their foundations and items accessory thereto, which are devoted primarily to the business conducted on the premises, are classified as Personal Property. For Contracts which include both of the above

classifications, CG&E shall inform Contractor of the appropriate amount or percentage of material which should be considered as Real and Personal Property.

C. Material and labor charges must be separately stated when invoicing CG&E.

34.2 Work on Real Property Performed in Ohio or Kentucky, except as Noted in Section 34.3.

A Contractor supplying materials for erection or installation that will become a part of Real Property is the consumer of the materials and, as such, Contractor is primarily liable for sales tax. Also, any materials, supplies or Equipment purchased or supplied by a Contractor that is not incorporated into the Work (consumables) are the property of Contractor and, as such, Contractor is liable for sales tax applicable to these materials. Contractor and subcontractors must show the amount of sales tax paid and include the tax on their invoices, which must include the following statement: "(insert applicable state) Sales or Use Tax in the amount of (insert amount or "none") is included in this invoice."

34.4 Work on Personal Property Performed for CG&E in Ohio.

When a Contractor incorporates Personal Property or taxable services into the Work, and such property will retain its status as Personal Property, Contractor is considered a vendor. As such, Contractor shall not pay sales or use tax on the acquisition of such material or services and shall not invoice sales or use tax to CG&E in accordance with CG&E's direct pay permit. CG&E has been issued Direct Pay Permit No. 98000298 by the state of Ohio. A direct pay authorization is not extendible and cannot be used by a Contractor when purchasing materials. Contractor and subcontractors may acquire materials exempt from such taxes by delivering a properly executed Sale for Resale exemption certificate to their suppliers. The above provisions for the exclusion of sales and use tax by Contractor are limited to materials purchased to be incorporated into or become part of the property of CG&E. For this Work, it is Contractor's responsibility to determine its status regarding the appropriate sales taxability of consumables.

34.5 Work on Personal Property Performed for CG&E in Ohio, except as noted in Section 34.4.

A Contractor purchasing materials for erection or installation, which will retain their status as Personal Property, shall not pay tax on such materials. Contractor and subcontractors may buy materials exempt from such taxes by delivering a properly executed Sale for Resale exemption certificate to their suppliers. Except for Cinergy Services, Inc., Cinergy Services, Inc. does not have direct pay permits in Ohio. Contractor shall invoice Cinergy Services, Inc. for the sales tax on the entire contract price, unless provided with an exemption certificate by CG&E. For this Work, it is Contractor's responsibility to determine its status regarding the appropriate sales taxability of consumables.

34.6 Work on Personal Property Performed for CG&E or ULH&P in Kentucky.

A Contractor purchasing materials for erection or installation, which will retain their status as Personal Property, shall not pay tax on such materials. CG&E and ULH&P are authorized to pay the sales and use tax directly to the state on all purchases of Personal Property in accordance with direct pay authorizations issued to them by the state of Kentucky. Direct pay authorizations are not extendible and cannot be used by a Contractor when purchasing materials. Contractor and subcontractors may buy materials exempt from such taxes by delivering a properly executed Sale for Resale exemption certificate to their suppliers. The above provisions for the exclusion of sales and use tax by Contractor are limited to materials purchased to be incorporated into part of the property of CG&E. For this Work, it is Contractor's responsibility to determine its status regarding the appropriate sales taxability of consumables.

34.7 <u>Work on Personal Property Performed for CG&E in Kentucky, except as noted in Section</u> 34.6.

A Contractor purchasing materials for erection or installation, which will retain their status as Personal Property, shall not pay tax on such materials. Contractor and subcontractors may buy materials exempt from such taxes by delivering a properly executed Sale for Resale exemption certificate to their suppliers. Except for CG&E and ULH&P, CG&E does not have direct pay permits in Kentucky. Contractor shall invoice CG&E for the sales tax on the material portion of the Contract, unless provided with an exemption certificate by CG&E. For this Work, it is Contractor's responsibility to determine its status regarding the appropriate sales taxability of consumables.

35. MECHANIC'S LIEN WAIVER

Contractor waives any and all claims to rights of a mechanic's lien on CG&E's property as a result of providing the Work pursuant to the Contract. Contractor shall also obtain written waivers of mechanic's liens from all subcontractors, suppliers, and materialmen of Contractor providing labor or material in connection with the Work. The written waivers shall be obtained by Contractor and provided to Representative at quarterly intervals, with the first interval beginning on the day that Work is commenced. The written waivers for each quarter shall pertain and be limited to that labor and those supplies and materials for which payment is due during said interval. In the event Contractor fails to secure written waivers of mechanics liens from its subcontractors, suppliers, or materialmen as required under this article, CG&E may terminate the Contract for cause pursuant to Article 18. In the event that rights to a mechanic's lien are claimed upon CG&E's property by a subcontractor, supplier, or materialman of Contractor, Contractor shall expeditiously obtain the release of said mechanic's lien. Upon Contractor's failure to obtain said release expeditiously, CG&E may proceed to obtain the release of the mechanic's lien and Contractor shall be liable to CG&E for any and all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, which are incurred by CG&E in obtaining said release.

36. <u>PROVISIONAL ACCEPTANCE OF PORTIONS OF THE WORK SHALL NOT</u> CONSTITUTE A WAIVER

Provisional acceptance of sections of Work for the purposes of preparing partial statements and payment of money for such partial statements shall not operate as a waiver of any portion of the Contract or acceptance thereof; shall not be construed to prevent the Representative from requiring replacement of defective Work that may become apparent after said provisional acceptance; and shall not be construed in any way as the basis for a claim of extra compensation for any cause whatsoever by the Contractor. Work rejected and Work provided in excess of Contract requirements may be returned to Contractor at Contractor's expense, and, in addition, CG&E may charge Contractor for all expenses of unpacking, examining, repacking and reshipping such Work. Nothing contained in the Contract shall relieve Contractor from its obligations of testing, inspection and quality control. CG&E shall have the right to inspect and expedite the Work in the process of manufacture, in storage, in transit or in performance to assure compliance with all terms and specifications of the Contract.

37. SETOFF

All claims for money due or to become due from CG&E shall be subject to deduction or setoff by CG&E with respect to the Work, the Contract, or any issue related to the Work or Contract.

38. ADVANCE SHIPMENTS

Contractor shall make no shipments in advance of the required shipping date, unless there is adequate storage area at the site of the Work, or such area is provided by Contractor. Any such advance shipment shall not entitle Contractor to any payment prior to the time when such payment would otherwise be due if the shipment were made on the scheduled shipping date.

39. NON-DISCLOSURE

Contractor shall not disclose to any third party any information concerning CG&E, any other contractor, or the Work that is obtained in connection with the Work provided under this Contract without the prior consent of CG&E, unless CG&E has made such information available previously to third parties without any restriction upon its disclosure. Such information not to be disclosed shall include the Contract price of the Work and any reference to CG&E in Contractor's advertising. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CG&E may disclose information regarding the Contractor, the Work or the Contract, including confidential information to governmental departments or agencies including but not limited to the Ohio Department of Transportation, Kentucky Department of Transportation and Indiana Department of provide services under this Contract for work awarded to CG&E by such governmental departments or agencies. CG&E shall inform the intended recipients of the confidential nature of information disclosed hereunder, and use its reasonable best efforts to ensure such information is afforded confidential treatment.

40. FORCE MAJEURE

CG&E shall not be deemed in default for failure to perform any of its duties pursuant to the Contract where such failure is the result of causes beyond the reasonable control of CG&E, which may include by way of illustration but not by limitation acts of God, the public enemy or any governmental entity; insurrection or riots; strikes, organizational attempts or other labor disputes; shortages of supplies, Equipment or transportation; and any exigency of generating electricity or delivering natural gas.

41. WORKING IN HARMONY

Contractor recognizes that at the location of its Work under the Contract other contractors may be performing work on a closed-shop, open-shop, or merit-shop basis and that Contractor's Work may be allied to or in conjunction with such work being performed by other closed-shop, open-shop, or merit-shop contractors. Therefore, Contractor shall assume full responsibility and liability to ensure without limitation that Contractor and its employees will perform Contractor's work in harmony with all other contractors and their employees, and that Contractor's employees will cooperate to the extent required for the expedient performance of the Work with CG&E and its employees and all other contractors and their employees without disruption to or cessation of Contractor's Work or the work of CG&E or other contractors, and without harassment, solicitation, picketing, violence or destruction of property.

42. CERTIFICATION OF NO BID RIGGING

Contractor certifies to CG&E that it has not combined or conspired with any other person to reduce or eliminate competition in the bidding of the Contract, the effects of which constitute an unreasonable restraint of interstate trade and commerce in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act (15 U.S.C. Section 1) and is cause for termination pursuant to Article 18, Termination Provisions.

43. PAYMENT & RETENTION

- 43.1 A. Whenever, in the opinion of Contractor, Work covered by the Contract has reached Completion, Contractor shall request from the Representative an inspection of all Work performed. When accepted by CG&E, Contractor shall prepare a statement showing the total amount of Work Completed by Contractor and its value according to the terms of the Contract. All invoices submitted by Contractor must separate the total charge for labor and other services from the total charge for the material.
 - B. Whenever, in the opinion of Contractor, Work covered by the Contract has reached Completion, Contractor shall request from the Representative an inspection of all Work performed. When accepted by CG&E, Contractor shall prepare a statement showing the total amount of Work Completed by Contractor and its value according to the terms of the Contract. All invoices submitted by Contractor must separate the total charge for labor and other services from the total charge for the material.
 - C. Unless specifically deleted in the Contract documents, a retention of 10 percent shall be made from the total value thus computed and from the remainder there will further be deducted all previous payments, if any, and all deductions made in accordance with the provisions of the Contract. The final payment, less retention, shall be paid by CG&E to Contractor within Fourty Five (45) days after the date of receipt of the final statement. Payment of the 10 percent retention shall be due sixty (60) days after Completion and the Work is accepted by CG&E.
- 43.2 Before Contractor shall be entitled to the said retention payment, all bills for labor, materials, bonds, licenses, and other expenses for which CG&E might be sued or for which a lien might be filed must be fully satisfied by Contractor. Contractor shall at the request of CG&E, execute and file a release with CG&E, in proper form, of any and all claims against CG&E relative to the Contract, and Contractor shall also save harmless and defend CG&E from future claims, actions and liens. Acceptance of final payment by Contractor shall constitute a release and waiver of all claims, damages, and causes of action against CG&E, its employees, agents and subcontractors which Contractor has or may have as a result of the Work.

44. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT

- 44.1 The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between Contractor and CG&E. All previous contracts, proposals and communications relative to the Work, oral or written, are hereby superseded, except to the extent that they have been expressly incorporated herein by attachment or reference.
- 44.2 Printed terms and conditions contained on the reverse side of contracts issued to Contractor by CG&E with respect to the Work shall not be effective to modify or add to the Terms and Specifications which are contained in the Contract.

45. <u>SAFETY PROVISIONS</u>

- 45.1 Contractor shall be responsible for the safe performance of the Work with due regard for the safety of Contractor's employees, subcontractor's employees, the general public, and CG&E's employees and property. Contractor shall at all times be solely responsible for complying with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances in connection with the Work, including those relating to the safety of persons and property. Contractor shall also adopt, maintain and abide by its safety rules and standards; provided, however, for the Contract, such rules and standards shall be compatible with CG&E's safety rules. To effectuate its responsibilities hereunder. Contractor shall establish a formal documented safety program (or programs) and shall designate a responsible supervisor to coordinate Contractor shall inform CG&E of Contractor's supervisor(s) safety at all job sites. responsible for on-the-job safety. Such safety program should adopt the recommendations of the Business Round Table (the A-3 Report) for improving construction safety performance whenever possible. Contractor shall provide the Representative, a copy of Contractor's safety program prior to commencement of the Work.
- 45.2 CG&E is entitled to conduct safety audits at any time during the progress of the Work with or without notice to Contractor. However, CG&E has no obligation to conduct any such safety audits. Safety shall be included as a topic for discussion by Contractor in any project meetings that are conducted.
- 45.3 Contractor shall promptly investigate and report all accidents involving Contractor's work to the CG&E employee monitoring progress of the Work.
- 45.4 Neither the foregoing provisions related to safety nor the enforcement of such provisions is intended to create any duty on the part of CG&E to review or enforce Contractor safety; rather, the obligation for Contractor safety, and the safe performances of the Work rests entirely upon Contractor, its subcontractors, and its employees. Further, the foregoing provisions regarding safety are not for the benefit of any third party.

46. <u>CONFINED SPACE</u>

Work may be performed in a confined space area. A "confined space" is defined as a space that (1) is large enough and so configured that an employee can bodily enter and perform Work; (2) has limited or restricted means for entry or exit (for example, tanks, vessels, silos, storage bins, hoppers, vaults, and pits); and (3) is not designed for continuous employee occupancy. If Contractor is working in a confined space, the Contractor must comply with OSHA confined space standard, 1910.146. If, based upon the above definition of a confined space, Contractor determines that the Work being performed may include work in a confined space, Contractor is to contact the Representative prior to performing such Work.

47 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

47.1 Work may be performed in areas such as but not limited to boilers, precipitators, and any other connecting Equipment which may contain inorganic arsenic. If Contractor is working in these areas, Contractor must comply with the OSHA inorganic standard 1910.1018. If documentation is provided to the Representative that employee exposure to inorganic arsenic is below the level which is regulated by 1910.1018, Contractor need not comply with this standard.
- 47.2 If Contractor encounters other toxic substances, hazardous substances, or hazardous wastes (as such terms may be defined in any Federal, State, or local statute, ordinance or regulations issued thereunder) at the site, which require special handling and or disposal, Contractor shall immediately notify CG&E and allow CG&E to take whatever precautions are required to eliminate such hazardous conditions so that the Work may safely proceed. If any such toxic substances, hazardous substances, or hazardous wastes cause an increase in Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the Work, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the price and schedule. CG&E agrees to properly dispose of all hazardous wastes produced or generated in the course of Contractor's Work at the site. Except where Contractor fails to notify CG&E as required above and mishandles any toxic or hazardous substances or hazardous waste encountered on the site, CG&E shall indemnify Contractor for claims arising out of or relating to the presence of any such toxic or hazardous substances or hazardous wastes which are: (i) present on the site prior to the commencement of Contractor's Work, (ii) improperly handled by CG&E, or (iii) brought to the site or produced thereon by parties other than Contractor or its subcontractors or their agents, representatives, or consultants.
- 47.3 Contractor and its subcontractors shall adhere to the following requirements for toxic substances, hazardous substances or hazardous wastes generated under the control of Contractor or its subcontractors and/or generated as a result of their activities.
- 47.3.1 CG&E must be provided with a Material Safety Data Sheet ("MSDS") for each product brought to a CG&E facility and a written explanation of the necessity for the specific product described in each MSDS for the execution of the Work if their use may result in the production of hazardous waste. The MSDS must be provided prior to each product being brought to the facility. CG&E may refuse to allow such products on site.
- 47.3.2 Contractor and its subcontractors are responsible for ensuring that their employees properly handle hazardous waste generated by their operations. It is the responsibility of Contractor and its subcontractors to differentiate properly between hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that they are generating and to ensure that the waste is placed in the proper containers and stored properly during the course of the Work. Individuals generating the waste are responsible for ensuring that incompatible wastes are not mixed. If improper identification or mixing by Contractor or its subcontractors results in additional disposal costs, an accident, or damage, Contractor shall indemnify CG&E for any and all claims, damages, losses, causes of action, demands, judgments, and expenses, including without limitation reasonable attorney and consultant fees and expenses arising out of or relating to such improper action.
- 47.3.3 CG&E will provide labeled hazardous waste collection drums or other containers as described in 40 CFR 262.
- 47.3.4 CG&E will arrange for the disposal of hazardous wastes generated by Contractor or its subcontractors provided the wastes have been properly characterized, segregated, and placed in appropriate containers.
- 47.3.5 CG&E is not responsible for injuries to Contractor's or its subcontractors' employees that are a result of handling hazardous waste that was generated by Contractor or its subcontractors.
- 48. NON-HIRING OF EMPLOYEES

For a period of six (6) months from the completion of the Contract, unless the prior written approval of CG&E shall have been first obtained, Contractor shall not employ (either directly as an employee or indirectly as a consultant or contractor) any person who is, or has been within the previous twelve (12) months, a CG&E employee. In view of the difficulty of establishing actual damages to CG&E which would arise as a result of a breach of this provision, Contractor agrees to pay to CG&E as liquidated damages and not as a penalty an amount equal to one-half (1/2) of the employee's annual salary from CG&E. Contractor and CG&E agree that this provision shall not be deemed or used in any way to restrain or limit such employee's pursuit of his or her trade or profession. The parties further agree that such payment by Contractor to CG&E will be construed as being of a similar nature to payment made by any employer to an employment agency.

This provision does not apply to retirees or persons involuntarily separated from CG&E or involuntarily redeployed by CG&E.

49. USE OF CONTRACTOR'S INFORMATION

Contractor agrees that all information, including tools, plans, designs, specifications and drawings, heretofore or hereafter furnished or disclosed to CG&E by Contractor in connection with this Contract, is furnished or disclosed as a part of the consideration for this Contract; that such information is not, unless otherwise agreed to by CG&E in writing, to be treated as confidential or proprietary; and that Contractor shall assert no claims (other than for patent infringement) by reason of the use or disclosure of such information by CG&E, its assigns or its employees.

50. ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING

- 50.1 Contractor's records (hard copy, as well as computer readable data if they can be made available), which shall include but not be limited to accounting records, written policies and procedures; subcontract files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful bidders, bid recaps, etc.); original estimates; estimating work sheets; correspondence; change order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements); backcharge logs and supporting documentation; general ledger entries detailing cash and trade discounts earned, insurance rebates and dividends; books, papers, documents, subscriptions, recordings, agreements, purchase orders, leases, contracts, commitments, arrangements, notes, daily diaries, superintendent reports, drawings, receipts, vouchers and memoranda, and any and all other agreements, sources of information, matters, and any other supporting evidence deemed necessary by CG&E to substantiate charges related to the Contract (all the foregoing are hereinafter referred to as "Records") shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction by CG&E's authorized representative to the extent necessary to permit adequate evaluation and verification of the cost of the Work and any invoices, change notices, payments or claims submitted by Contractor or any of its Payees pursuant to the execution of the Contract.
- 50.2 Such audits may require inspection and copying on occasion and at reasonable times and places of any and all Records that may in CG&E's judgment have any bearing on or pertain to any matters, rights, duties or obligations under or covered by any Contract document. Such Records subject to audit shall also include, but not be limited to, those records necessary to evaluate and verify direct and indirect costs (including overhead allocations) as they may apply to costs associated with the Contract.
- 50.3 CG&E or its designee shall be afforded access to all of Contractor's Records, and shall be allowed to interview any of Contractor's employees, pursuant to the provisions of this

article throughout the term of the Contract and for a period of three years after final payment or longer if required by law.

- 50.4 Contractor shall require all subcontractors, insurance agents, and material suppliers ("Payees") to comply with the provisions of this article by insertion of the requirements hereof in a written contract agreement between Contractor and Payee. Such requirements will also apply to subcontractors and sub-subcontractors, etc. Contractor will cooperate fully and will cause all Related Parties and all of Contractor's subcontractors (including those entering into lump sum subcontracts) to cooperate fully in furnishing or in making available to CG&E in an expeditious manner any and all such information, materials and data requested by CG&E.
- 50.5 CG&E's authorized representative shall have access to Contractor's facilities, all necessary Records, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance with this article.
- 50.6 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this article discloses overcharges (of any nature) by Contractor to CG&E in excess of one percent (1%) of the total Contract billings, the actual cost of CG&E's audit shall be reimbursed to CG&E by Contractor. Any adjustments and/or payments must be made within 30 days from presentation of CG&E's findings to Contractor.

51. ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 51.1 If a dispute arises between the Parties relating to this Contract, the Parties agree to use the following alternative dispute resolution ("ADR") procedure prior to either Party pursuing other available remedies:
 - A. A meeting shall be held promptly between the Parties, attended by individuals with decision-making authority regarding the dispute, to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the dispute.
 - B. If, within thirty (30) days after such meeting, the Parties have not succeeded in negotiating a resolution of the dispute, they will jointly appoint a mutually acceptable neutral person not affiliated with either of the parties (the "Neutral") to act as a mediator. If the Parties are unable to agree on the Neutral within twenty (20) days, they shall seek assistance in such regard from the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution, Inc. ("CPR"). The fees of the Neutral and all other common fees and expenses shall be shared equally by the Parties.
 - C. The mediation may proceed in accordance with CPR's Model Procedure for Mediation of Business Disputes, or the Parties may mutually establish their own procedure.
 - D. The Parties shall pursue mediation in good faith and in a timely manner. In the event the mediation does not result in resolution of the dispute within sixty (60) days, then, upon seven (7) days' written notice to the other Party either Party may suggest another form of ADR, e.g., arbitration, a mini-trial or a summary jury trial, or may pursue other available remedies.
- 51.2 All ADR proceedings shall be strictly confidential and used solely for the purposes of settlement. Any materials prepared by one Party for the ADR proceedings shall not be

used as evidence by the other Party in any subsequent litigation; *provided, however*, the underlying facts supporting such materials may be subject to discovery.

51.3 Each Party fully understands its specific obligations under the ADR provisions of the Contract. Neither Party considers such obligations to be vague or in any way unenforceable, and neither Party will contend to the contrary at any future time or in any future proceedings.

.

52. HEADINGS

The headings used in the paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions are only for the reference of the Parties and shall have no meaning in the interpretation of any of the provisions herein.

Specifications for the 2006 Gas Main Replacement, Relocation, and Extension Projects

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Co. The Union Light, Heat, & Power Co.

September 21, 2006

Instructions to Bidders Standard Terms and Conditions Technical Specifications List of Units Hourly Labor and Equipment Welding Specifications GD-150 Construction Specifications Gas Standards

ę

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	GENERAL	. 1
	1.1 Scope of Work	. 1
	1.2 Standards	. 1
	1.3 Video Taping	. 1
	1.4 Construction Drawings	. 2
	1.5 Permits	. 2
	1.6 Meetings	. 2
	1.7 Training	. 2
	1.8 Site Safety	. 2
~ ^		4
2.0	MATERIALS	.4
	2.1 Cinergy Supplied Materials	.4
	2.1.1 Material Delivery and Tracking	.4
	2.2 Contractor Supplied Materials	. 4
	2.3 Contractor Requirements for Coiled Pipe Delivery & Handling	. 4
	2.3.1 Coiled Pipe Trailer Capacity Specifications	. 5
	2.3.2 Coiled Pipe Loading System	. 5
	2.3.3 Coiled Pipe Re-rounding/Taming Equipment	. 5
3.0	IOINING PIPE	. 6
	3.1 Welding Steel Pine	. 6
	3.2 Joining Plastic Pipe	.6
4.0	MAIN INSTALLATION	. 7
	4.1 Inspection	. 7
	4.2 Depth and Location of Main	. 7
	4.3 Installation Methods	. 7
	4.3.1 Direct Bury	. 7
	4.3.2 Insertion	. 7
	4.3.3 Directional Drilling	. 7
	4.4 Damage to Gas Facilities	. 8
	4.5 Strength Testing	. 8
	4.6 Restoration	. 8
.		0
5.0	GAS MAIN TIE-INS	9
6.0	GAS SERVICES	10
	6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service	10
	6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service	10
70	BIDITEMS	12
0		

i

7.3 Boring - with Casing	13
7.4 Valve Assembly	13
7.5 satisfactory Test Welds / Fusions	13
7.6 Services	13
7.6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service	14
7.6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service	14
7.6.3 Test & Re-Light	14
7.6.4 Meter Relocation	15
7.6.5 Pressure Conversion Projects	15
7.7 Main Tie-Ins	15
7.8 Rock Excavation	16
7.9 Extra Depth	16
7.10 Bankrun Sand	16
7.11 CDF	16
7.12 Restoration	16
7.12.1 Soft Restoration	16
7.12.2 Hard Surface Restoration	17
7.12.3 Tie-In Restoration	17
7.12.4 Service Renewal Restoration	17
7.12.5 Restoration Not Included on Bid	17
7.12.6 Warranty of Restoration	17
7.13 Miscellaneous	18
8.0 COMPLETION OF WORK	19
9.0 INVOICING	20

•

1.0 <u>GENERAL</u>

1.1 Scope of Work

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company and The Union Light, Heat & Power Company (hereafter "CG&E") both initiated a program in 2001 to replace cast iron and bare steel natural gas mains and residential service lines. The projected completion year for the program is 2010 in Kentucky and 2015 in Ohio.

The total project will consist of the replacement of approximately 1457 miles of cast iron and bare steel natural gas mains with plastic or coated steel pipe, and the renewal and updating of the associated gas services. Work will be required in most communities within the service territory and will be more specifically identified with each years work. Service areas will be broken into modules consisting of approximately 3 to 5 miles of main replacement work using plastic pipe. Most 12-inch diameter or larger pipe replacement work will be let as individual projects and not as a module.

In addition to the replacement work, there are approximately 30 miles of relocation and gas main extensions which are constructed by CG&E each year. These specifications will be used for all Cinergy gas projects except joint trench projects.

Cinergy reverses the right to remove any portion of a project as deemed necessary. This will mainly occur on AMRP modules if a pending street improvement is known or due to budget constraints.

As necessary, Cinergy reserves the option to impose a 10% retainer to all invoices. If the retainer is imposed, the Gas Contractor will be notified prior processing the invoice.

1.2 Standards

All facilities must be installed in accordance with this specification, The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company's Gas Division specification GD-150 composite, CFR part 192, and all other applicable specifications. Welding shall be completed in accordance with the enclosed specifications.

1.3 Video Taping

Cinergy recommends that the Contractor videotape every project prior to starting. The video is extremely important in settling disputes with governing agencies. If the project is not videoed and there is a dispute between the contractor and the customer, Cinergy will side with the customer.

When videoing, addresses must be indicated verbally or pictorially.

1.4 Construction Drawings

Construction drawings are done by both CG&E employees and by outside design firms (Novak Engineering of Jackson, Michigan; and Energy Management Services of Lexington, Kentucky). Each drawing will provide the name and telephone number of the designing engineer on the prints so the engineer can be contacted for any questions during the replacement work.

1.5 Permits

All permits for the replacement work will be obtained by CG&E. and will be provided to the Contractor prior to the start of work. CG&E will pay all permit fees except cut/fill fees. Cut/fill fees required for dumpsites will not be paid by Cinergy except for material dumped for Tie Ins where the contractor is paid on a time and material (T&M) basis. The Contractor will be responsible for all tree and landscaping damage unless the damage was a result of a direct order by a CG&E employee. Additional compensation will not be paid for any restricted hours identified prior to the bid submittal, whether in the permit book or posted on street signs.

1.6 Meetings

The Contractor will be required to hold weekly on site meetings with the community representatives and the Cinergy inspector to insure immediate handling of all customer concerns. The Contractor will be required to provide the inspector with a proposed schedule prior to the start of work as well as weekly progress reports. Various communities also require a final walk through at the completion of the project.

1.7 Training

CG&E will require polyethylene qualification on all fusion and mechanical connections. Renewal of fusion cards are the responsibility of the contractor. Adequate time must be given by the contractor to CG&E so classes can be scheduled. CG&E will provide training to the Contractor on the renewal of services by insertion and mechanical, installation of meter sets, turn off, turn on and appliance light up. Contractors will be trained for free on Cinergy policies associated with spotting unacceptable meter locations and the identification of tin meters and mercury regulators. Only CG&E personnel shall handle mercury regulators. Safety procedures, grounding procedures and a review for sizing services will also be covered in the training.

1.8 Site Safety

The Contractor will be required to provide emergency numbers to the dispatcher to assure 24/7 coverage. The Contractor will also be required to leave door hangers with business cards, sewer tags and phone numbers for customer contact during and after working hours. A customer notification log must be filled out and returned to the on site inspector prior to the start of any construction.

Picture ID's are required for all Contractor employees. Contract personnel are required to show their ID when asked by customers or CG&E Personnel.

If a block of sidewalk is to be open for more than 48 hours, class 53 temporary asphalt must be used. All tripping hazards are to be avoided in sidewalk areas and where necessary foot traffic will be re-routed when blocking any sidewalk.

.

2.0 <u>MATERIALS</u>

2.1 Cinergy Supplied Materials

CG&E will provide all piping and associated pipe materials required for the replacement work. All 2", 4", 6" and 8", and some 12" mains shall be yellow medium density polyethylene (MDPE) or epoxy coated steel Grade B or stronger. 12" and 16" coated steel pipe will typically have a wall thickness of 0.219" and 0.250", respectively. Cinergy shall specify the grade and wall thickness of all steel pipes on the construction drawings.

2.1.1 Material Delivery and Tracking

The contractor will be responsible for requesting material as it is needed. The contractor must allow 21 days for material deliveries. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to meet the truck and to track material received and to provide weekly reports showing material received, material used and material remaining. The material assigned to a module is to be used on that module only. At the end of the project, all surplus materials are to be returned to the storeroom or a credit requisition completed allocating the material to another job. The material must be returned or requisitioned to another job in the same condition that it was received. A 10 % overrun in the quantity of pipe will be allowed for waste. All other unaccounted, damaged or material left unprotected will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Service Material will be delivered to each Contractor yard. Each Contractor will be required to provide an adequate shelter area with shelves to organize all the service material. The Contractor will provide a person to receive material, organize and reorder material as needed. The Contractor will accept responsibility to ensure reorder is completed as necessary and faxed to 513 287-5434. At the end of each year the Contractor will be required to inventory all service related material including job sites and truck inventory. The material will then be charge credited to the following year service work codes.

2.2 Contractor Supplied Materials

The Gas Contractor is required to provide all materials and equipment other than as indicated on the construction drawings, which is necessary to construct the project. Spray paint used by the contractor for markings must be water soluble and capable of being removed if needed. CDF, CLSM or Flashfill must meet the specifications of the appropriate governing agency (Hamilton Co./Cincinnati, ODOT or KDOT specifications). All welding materials such as welding rods, grinding wheels, clamps, etc is to be provided by the Contractor.

2.3 Contractor Requirements for Coiled MDPE Pipe Delivery & Handling

Pipe trailers will be a requirement for handling coiled pipe. Brecon, Cinergy's material storage facility, does not have the equipment necessary to deliver 6 inch coiled pipe to the job site. CG&E will make every effort to have the large diameter coils delivered to the Contractors'

material holding area at the start of each project. If CG&E is unable to make these arrangements, it will be necessary for the large diameter coils to be picked up at Brecon. Cinergy will pay the Contractor for pick up and delivery in these cases.

2.3.1 Coil Pipe Trailer Capacity Specifications

The coil dimensions of the current Performance Pipe (Driscopipe/Plexco) product that the trailer will need to be able to accommodate is:

Pipe Size	Coil Footage	Wt. Per Coil	Min. Coil ID	Max. Coil OD	Width
2″	500 ′	315 lbs.	51″	78″	13″
4 ''	500 ′	1110 lbs.	68″	94″	41″
6″	500 ′	2040 lbs.	84″	120″	50″

The capacity of the trailer must be able to accept all current known coil sizes from all major manufacturers of 2", 4" and 6" PE pipe.

2.3.2 Loading System

The trailer will need to have some form of loading mechanism in which the trailer can be field loaded from a Brecon material truck at the job site or loaded at the pipe yard, at the Brecon facility. If the trailer does not have a loading mechanism then the Contractor should make provisions to have the necessary equipment available to safely load the coils without damaging the pipe.

2.3.3 Rerounding/Taming equipment

The Trailer shall be equipped with the necessary equipment to re-round the coiled pipe and remove the curvature conditions created in the pipe by the coiling process. There are no definable parameters to the approved straightness. However, pipe should be able to lie flat in a trench when straightening is complete, as well as not cause additional stress to the pipe when inserting.

3.0 JOINING PIPE

3.1 Welding Steel Pipe

All welds will be made in accordance with CG&E's Gas Division welding specifications:

Specification No. 501-2	Standard Welding Procedure SA-II-A-II: For Steel Pipe with O.D. from 2 3/8" to, and including 12 ¼ " and wall thickness 0.188", up to, but not including 0.250"
Specification No. 501-3	Standard Welding Procedure SA-III-A-III: For Steel Pipe with O.D. greater than 12 ¾ " and wall thickness 0.250", up to, but not including 0.344"
Specification No 501-20	Standard welding Procedure SA-F1-A-V: for fillet welds on steel pipe for socket –weld couplings, slip-on flanges, and full encirclement welding sleeves.

All welders must be pre qualified in accordance with CG&E's Gas Division specifications prior to the start of construction. All testing for welders will be in accordance with API Standard 1104, Section 6.3, at the Contractor's cost.

The contractor must have a copy of the welding specifications for all steel pipeline projects, if not they should request one. F/L projects will have the welding specifications noted on the cover sheet of projects. Contractor can question the specification if they are not in agreement with the required process.

3.2 Joining Plastic Pipe

Butt fusion will be considered the primary method of joining longitudinal sections of plastic main. Rotary scrapers will be required when joining 4" and larger pipe in the ditch. Electro-fusion may be used at the discretion of the on site inspector. Electro-fusion couplings have been ordered for joining insertion or directional bored mains at intervals of 500 feet. Bar clamps should be used to secure 2" coiled pipe when joined by electro-fusion. Vice-grip clamps can not be used when joining runs of plastic mains together.

Two couplings are required per Cinergy Gas Standards when joining directionally drilled pipe. Personnel found joining pipe without the proper line up clamps and fusion equipment will lose their fusion cards., NO SECOND CHANCES WILL BE GIVEN FOR SHORT CUTS WHEN JOINING PIPE.

4.0 MAIN INSTALLATION

4.1 Inspection

CG&E will provide a Gas Inspector on all projects. The inspector will have multiple assignments.

4.2 Depth and Location of Main

All mains are to be installed at a minimum of 30 inches of cover in the sod. 36 inches under hard paving, or additional depths where permits or drawings specify. The State of Ohio Department of Transportation requires 48-inch of cover if the main is within 12-foot of the pavement, The State of Kentucky requires 42 inches of cover when in the road right-of-way and street improvement projects will set the depth or elevation of the main to be installed. Refer to attached letter (Appendix A).

4.3 Installation Methods

Acceptable methods of gas main installation are direct bury, insertion, pipe bursting or splitting, and directional drill.

4.3.1 Direct Bury

Spoil is to be used as backfill whenever practical.

4.3.2 Insertion

Pipelines installed by the insertion method shall include all costs associated with installation including mobilization, stringing, saw cutting of pavement, excavation at the service and tie in connections, removal of spoil, backfill, fusion, compaction, test wires and connections, pipe supports, foam sealing, squeezing off, excavation for utility location, temporary restoration and all final grass restoration, (which includes seed). Also included in the installation cost will be the air testing and the removal of segments of pipe associated with insertion and service reconnection activities. These segments must be removed from the job site and disposed of in an approved landfill. Pipelines will be leak surveyed by the on site inspector in accordance with CG&E standards. Insertion projects will require all customers to be back in service the same day. Crew hours will be paid for main line tie-ins only.

4.3.3 Directional Drilling

Directional drilling is an accepted method for pipe installation and must comply with all the guidelines set forth in this specification. The Gas Engineering Sponsor must approve all directional drilling of standard pressure pipe, pipe that will be drilled in rocky conditions, pipe placed within 3 feet of a paralleling a 3rd party utility, within 3-ft of a City of Cincinnati curb or within 5-ft of any Metropolitan Sewer or Clermont County water or sewer line.

The location and depth of all sewer laterals shall be determined and documented prior to directional drilling gas main to insure there is no conflict between the proposed gas main and the existing sewer. A plan for locating sewer laterals must be submitted to CG&E and approved prior to the Contractor performing any directional drill work; this cost is to be included in the installation price. Acceptable methods for locating the laterals are using a camera or physically uncovering the lateral. The contractor must install a sewer tag on every clean out if the main is directional drilled. Cinergy will provide the tags.

The Contractor must record the location and depth of the directional-drilled gas main at an interval of not less than every fifty (50) feet. The contractor shall excavate two test holes for every 300-500 foot bore to verify the location and depth of the gas main.

Spot holes or locate holes for 3rd party utilities, under hard pavement for directional drill bores should be done with a vacuum truck to eliminate 4 ft. x 2 ft. restoration holes. The City of Cincinnati does require a 1-foot cut back for small restoration areas.

4.4 Damage to Gas Facilities

The Contractor is not to repair any active services or mains that may be damaged during construction. If the Contractor encounters any leaks or anything questionable the inspector is to be notified.

4.5 Strength Testing

The Contractor must supply all test gauges and test recorders (minimum chart size no less than 8 inches) with the appropriate certification sent to CG&E Gas Engineering prior to performing any air test on piping facilities. The testing equipment must be certified annually and the certification sent to Gas Engineering. The Contractor will also be required to have certified purging equipment.

4.6 Restoration

Clean up and restoration on all projects must be in compliance with the local governmental agencies and must be approved by the CG&E inspector. If the permitting agency requires restoration other than Cinergy's standards, a written request must be submitted to the job sponsor prior to the final restoration being preformed.

All final restoration of longitudinal cuts should be rolled even if grind and pave is a requirement of the permit. Cinergy will require all uneven restorations to be redone.

Permits requiring grind and pave will be done at Cinergy's expense, unless it is do to poor workmanship. In some cases the grind and pave would have been waived if the final restoration was smooth.

5.0 GAS MAIN TIE INS

CG&E intends to do all tie-ins with CG&E crews, but the Contractor might be required to redirect contractor crews to complete tie ins in certain situations. Tie-ins will require the installation and tapping of TD Williamson fittings, squeezing polyethylene mains and installing the appropriate saddles and making appropriate taps for connecting to cast iron mains. The Contractor will be required to have the following equipment:

- T D Williamson equipment up to 4-inch. The Contractors are not required to purchase 6 thru 12 inch T D Williamson and other pertinent equipment; however, Cinergy would like the Contractor to own this equipment.
- guillotine saws
- Pressure gages
- Squeeze-off equipment for 2-inch through 8-inch polyethylene
- Stopper bags for 2-inch through 12- inch cast iron
- Pertinent equipment necessary to tie in 2-inch through 6-inch mains steel and polyethylene.

If the contractor assists CG&E crews with tie-ins, the Contractor will be compensated at an hourly rate for the use of tie in equipment. The Contractor will be compensated one additional hour, over and above the tie in time for the transportation and cleaning of the T D Williamson equipment. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to meet with the Cinergy inspector, prior to scheduling any tie in work, to discuss the equipment and personnel necessary to perform the work. Cinergy will provide pressure crews to assist on tie in and purging activities.

Wipe tests are required when performing tie-ins over 4" in diameter, however, should the Contractor see any liquid condensate, the on site inspector must be notified. Cinergy will provide roll off containers to the contractor. The Contractor is responsible to provide a space for a roll off container to collect possible PCB contaminated pipe. The contract personnel are responsible to keep the roll off container covered at all times.

6.0 GAS SERVICES

The Gas Contractor will be required to renew costumer services from the gas main to the customer's service meter, as needed. Customer service lines are broken into two portions: the main to curb cock portion (M-C) and the curb cock to service meter portion (C-M). The Gas Contractor is required to complete all associated Job Completion Forms (JCF's) with the service work. The completion of the JCF's is required within one day of the completion of the service work. JCF's which are not filled out correctly will be returned to the contractor for correction.

6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service

Main to Curb services will be classified as either short-side M-C or long-side M-C. M-C short side services are less than 15 feet in length, regardless of the installation conditions. M-C long side services are 15 feet or longer in length and usually cross under roadways. It is possible to have all long side (crossover) services on a project. The main to curb portion of the service lines must be installed at the depth of 36 inches unless otherwise indicated. Street improvement plans typically contain cross section sheets which should be used to determine the depth of services.

In some insertion projects, it may be possible to reconnect the existing polyethylene main to curb service, should it pass the required pressure test, to the new gas main. This item will be paid on a lump sum basis as a M-C short side service.

When encountering a gas street lamp, the service to this will be considered M-C only and the actual connection to the lamp will be done by the Cincinnati Gas Light Company.

6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service

Within the Cinergy natural gas service territory, the customer currently owns the C-M portion of the service line. Curb to meter services that do not pass the required pressure test or services that are metallic (steel or copper) will be renewed. The renewal work shall include turning on and off the services, separating existing facilities for testing, excavating, air testing, rebuilding of the meter set, setting a new meter bracket, replacing the meter as required, and re-lighting the customer appliances. One extra hole will be paid to dig and separate the existing C-M when needed. Renewed C-M service lines shall be installed at a minimum depth of 18 inches on customer owned property. Gas Contractors are to gas track their own service work and it must be done by someone other than the installer. Every C-M service renewal or meter replacement must be gas tracked the same day it is installed. No leaks will be tolerated on inside meter sets, cards will be pulled.

Existing polyethylene services shall be reconnected to the new mains if it passes testing. The Gas Contractor will be required to turn off and to re-light customer appliances in accordance with the planned service replacement work and the Contractor must notify the Cinergy Inspector of any damaged or faulty appliances. The inspector will then call for a Service Mechanic who will then red tag the appliance if necessary.

Conversion projects where gas services must be converted from standard pressure to intermediate or high pressure will require the installation of regulators and vent piping.

The Gas Contractor will be required to replace tin meters and regulators associated with the renewal of curb to meter services. This replacement cost must be included in the curb to meter renewal unit price. CG&E will train Gas Contractors for free on the policies associated with spotting unacceptable meter and house service line locations and the identification of tin meters and mercury regulators. Only Cinergy personnel shall handle mercury regulators. If the household service lines or meters are found in an unacceptable location, the meters may be relocated to the outside.

7.0 BID ITEMS

CG&E is willing to review Contractor proposed alternatives to the bid items listed in the proposal. CG&E will require the Contractor to provide hourly rates for all labor and equipment such that payment can be made for work not anticipated on the contract.

7.1 Length of Gas Main

The length of gas main will be **paid on a linear foot basis** based on the type and size of pipe and method of installation. Payment will only be made for main that has been placed into service. The bid will specify direct bury or directional drill for 2, 4 or 6 inch main installations. The unit price received for 8 inch and larger mains will be accepted on the basis of direct bury unless otherwise specified by the Contractor. The designer must approve all changes.

Each size pipe shall be measured along the centerline of the pipe through fittings and casements from end to end. Where the pipe changes size, the particular size pipe shall be measured to the center of the transition fitting. The length of gas main installed by the Contractor shall be reported for payment under the units of gas main construction on the Units Work Completed Report. Each unit length of gas main installed shall include costs for:

- Mobilization
- Flag-persons or any arrow-boards
- Incidental items such as landscaping, trees and traffic loops
- Hydroseeding or seed and straw
 - Hydroseeding or seed and straw for tie-in holes should be included in the pipe price.
- Stringing
- Saw cutting of pavement
- Excavating & excavation for utility location
- Removal of spoil
- Joining pipe
- Placing backfill
- Compaction
- Anode installation
- Test connections
- Couplings
- Coating welds and couplings
- Temporary Restoration will be required for sidewalk installation and will consist of Class 53
- Air testing & purge point installation at ends of main (including installation of 8" valve box if backfilled
- Installing a 1 ¼ inch high volume tee to assist in the purging process of SP mains
- Blowing pigs through the new main
 - Two pigs are required for pigging with each lined up nose to nose
- Performing "Gas and Goes"

7.2 Boring – No Casing

This unit will apply to 8 inch and larger facilities. The installation price for 2, 4 or 6-inch bores shall be included in the main installation unit price. This unit is to be reported for payment by size groups of the pipe installed in the bore regardless of the size of the bore and shall include all costs associated with completing the bore as well as setting up the bore machine. The cost of installing the gas main in the bore is in addition to the cost of the actual bore and should be reported for payment under length of gas main installed. Payment for driveway bores will be calculated on the basis of edge to edge, for trees drip line to drip line and landscaped areas from edge to edge.

7.3 Boring – With Casing

This unit is to be reported for payment by the size of the casing that is installed in the bore regardless of the size of the bore and shall include joining, excavation, installation of all insulators, seals and vents in accordance with Engineering Standard 2.12.1. The cost of installing the gas main in the casing is in addition and shall be reported as length of gas main installed. Boring through rock shall not be included in this unit but should be negotiated by the Contractor and the Purchaser at the time such rock is encountered.

Where boring has been specified on the construction plans, boring will be the expected method of installation. The contractor must receive prior written approval from Gas Engineering if directional drilling is to be used in place of boring.

7.4 Valve Assembly Complete

Each valve must be reported for payment on the basis of the size of the valve installed. The unit price for each valve installation includes setting the valve box to proper grade and the installation of pressure stems in accordance with the appropriate standard. For steel valves, the cost of welding the companion flanges, bolting the valve to the companion flange or welding the valve directly onto the line is included in the valve installation unit.

On plastic valve installations, electro fusion couplings will no longer be allowed to be used on the in line portion of a plastic valve. A 3 ft. pup piece must be butt fused on each side of the valve.

7.5 Satisfactory Test Welds / Fusions

Each satisfactory test weld fusion must be designated by the size of pipe before reporting for payment. The cost of removing the weld / fusion from the line and re-welding / reconnecting the line shall be included in this payment. This unit will not be paid should the weld or fusion fail.

7.6 Services

Main to curb and curb to meter service renewal shall be paid on a lump sum basis. Included in the lump sum payment for main to curb or curb to meter is the associated paperwork, soft

restoration, and traffic control. The Contractor will be required to complete all associated JCF's. Any hard surface restoration required for main to curb or curb to meter service installations will be paid as a separate item. The number of services installed must be reported for payment. The inspector must be notified after a failed service line has been repaired so a record of the event can be logged and the inspector can verify that the repair was adequate.

7.6.1 Main to Curb (M-C) Service Line

The main to curb service will be paid on a lump sum basis by service size (1", 1-1 4", 2" or larger) and method of installation (direct bury, drill or insertion). The lump sum unit cost shall include excavating at the curb valve for reconnecting to the curb to meter portion of the service, and installing weld-o-let, service tee, service piping, curb cock, cap, setting of the curb box to grade, air test, soft restoration, and C-M tie-in. Curb cocks should not be installed in the sidewalk without the inspectors' approval prior to installation. Payment will be made on main to curb services when they are tested with the main.

7.6.2 Curb to Meter (C-M) Service Line

Curb to Meter service renewal will be paid on a lump sum basis for 1" or 1-1/4" service lines based on the type of installation (direct bury, drill, or insertion). The curb to meter price shall include turning on and off appliances, separating existing facilities for testing, excavating, air testing, rebuilding of the meter set (including setting a new meter bracket and replacement of the meter as required), and re-lighting the customer appliances. This lump sum price will apply to a C-M service up to 70 feet in length. Any footage required over 70 feet will be paid at the price of \$7.00 per foot (excluding insertions). Payment for curb to meter services will be made when they are placed into service and the restoration and appropriate paperwork is complete on a street. Any additional holes excavated for an outside meter set or changes in elevation, required for renewal of C-M by insertion only, will be paid at a set price of \$75 per hole.

Large Service Reconnection – The reconnection of polyethylene or coated steel services 2" and larger to the main to curb will be paid on and hourly basis.

Large Service Renewal – The renewal of services 2" and larger will be paid as a bid item. This price shall include turning on and off appliances, separating existing facilities for testing, excavating, air testing, rebuilding of the meter set (including setting a new meter bracket and replacement of the meter as directed by the Gas Inspector), and re-lighting the customer appliances. This price will apply to a C-M service up to 70 feet in length. Any footage required over 70 feet will be paid at the price of \$15.00 per foot. Payment for curb to meter services will be made when they are placed into service and the restoration and appropriate paperwork is complete on a street.

7.6.3 Test & Relight

Curb to Meter services that are polyethylene and pass the required pressure test <u>will not</u> be renewed. Test & Re-Light work will be paid on a lump sum basis for polyethylene C-M service lines that pass the required pressure test. The Test & Re-Light work includes turning on and off

the gas service, separating existing facilities for testing, air testing, re-connecting the meter set, and re-lighting the customer appliances according to CG&E approved procedures.

If flexible risers are encountered, they will be replaced at the time of the test and relight unit price plus \$75.00 for each additional hole excavated. See attached (Appendix B) sketches for pay item clarification.

If old style regulators with 3/4" vents are encountered, they will be replaced with a new regulator (1" vent). The new 1" vent pipe shall not be reduced to 3/4".

Where dwellings with multiple meters are encountered, the contractor will be paid a test & relight price for the first meter and \$50 for each additional meter.

7.6.4 Meter Relocation

The cost to move meters from an unacceptable location shall be included in the C-M service unit cost; no additional payment will be made. Any house-line piping that must be relocated will be paid for on a time and material basis. In the case where the meter is in an acceptable location, and the customer asks the Gas Contractor to relocate the meter outside, the Gas Contractor must negotiate a price with the customer for any house line piping that must be relocated. When moving remote meters to the outside, the Contractor must reuse the existing meter and reattach the remote reader and verify that reads of the meter and the remote are the same. When moving meters outside make sure to replace a non-temp compensated meter with a temp compensated meter.

7.6.5 Pressure Conversion Projects

Replacement projects where gas services must be converted from standard pressure to intermediate or high pressure will require the installation of regulators and vent piping. The installation of regulator vent piping will be paid on a pre-set lump sum basis for piping up to 10-feet in length (\$55.00) and be paid on a pre-set linear footage basis for lengths over ten feet (\$2.50 per foot). Any additional excavation holes will be paid at pre-set price of \$75.00 each.

Bid Unit ID 55A-RPR, "Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2", includes the excavation, installation, soap test, backfill, soft restoration and the relight.

7.7 Main Tie Ins

The time associated with separating the existing facilities and reconnecting to the new main will be paid on an hourly basis. Flag-persons, arrow-boards, and plates required for tie in work will be paid on a time and material basis. Cinergy reserves the right to allocate work to company personnel at any time to provide assistance with the tie-ins, to insure completion in a timely manner.

Tie-in costs shall include the preparation of any and all by-pass requirements, the installation of fittings, such as TD Williamson, excavation, preparing cast iron mains by installing appropriate

saddles and making appropriate taps in accordance with standards, and the abandonment of the existing facilities to include purge and sealing the ends, in accordance with standards.

7.8 Rock Excavation

•

Refer to specification GD-150 section 10, 10.9.1 to 10.9.5 (GD-147, Contractor's schedule of unit cost) included in this specification.

7.9 Extra Depth

Refer to specification GD-150 section 10, 10.10.1 (GD-147, Contractor's schedule of unit cost) included in this specification.

7.10 Backfill – Bankrun Gravel or Sand in Open Trench (Tons)

The Contractor must provide the number of tons of bankrun gravel or sand installed in an open trench to receive payment under this bid item. The cost of hauling excavated material will not be paid as an extra and must be included in this bid.

7.11 CDF, CLSM or Flashfill

CLSM must be used as required by the appropriate governmental agency or as directed by CG&E. Within the hard surface areas, payment will be made to within 11 inches of final grade. The Contractor must provide the number of cubic yards installed in an open trench to receive payment under this item. The cost of hauling excavated material will not be paid as an extra and must be included in this bid item.

7.12 Restoration

Restoration shall be reported for payment under the appropriate unit cost item. The restoration will be bid on a class basis and must be completed in accordance with CG&E Standard 2.14, Specification GD-161 and the appropriate governmental agency requirements. Common restoration units not identified on the bid will be paid at the pre-set price shown on the attached list (Appendix C).

7.12.1 Soft Restoration

All final soft restoration, seed and straw, shall be included in the length of main installed. Twelve (12) inches of topsoil will be required if granular material is used as a backfill. The Contractor will be required to hydro-seed all soft areas, except when a Cinergy or community Inspector instructs you to seed and straw based on drought conditions. A seed mixture Spec is included. Topsoil is a separate bid item. All service holes outside the pavement area are to be covered with ¾" plywood and flasher barricade or snow fencing. Soft restoration of tie-in holes should be included in the pipe installation cost regardless of whether CG&E crews or contractor crews perform the tie-in.

7.12.2 Hard Surface Restoration

Restoration for asphalt pavement (street or driveway) will be paid in lineal feet in accordance with the unit price received. This price will apply to restoration completed in conjunction with the lineal feet of excavation required for installing the main and will be based on 2 feet of width. Equivalent footage two feet wide will be calculated for payment for service cuts and bell holes. Any sidewalk removal must be temporarily restored in accordance with local governmental requirements.

Curb ramps may be required at the intersections of streets. All restoration must be in compliance with the municipalities. Cost associtiated with this activity should be included in the integral curb with sidewalk pay item.

Bores under driveways and walkways are not considered hard paving when they are crossed. The entire bore is paid as sod. If the bore crosses a roadway it will be paid at the hard paving rate. Payment for restoration and backfill for directional-drilled facilities will only be made for necessary cuts and not for the entire length of main. Should the Contractor choose to directional drill and pop a driveway, payment will be made for the driveway restoration only and no payment will be made for boring without casing. Should the Contractor pop a street, payment will only be made for a 2 foot wide restoration strip, as would be required for open cut.

7.12.3 Tie-In Restoration

Restoration associated with tie-ins or other areas will be paid on a square yard basis.

7.12.4 Service Renewal Restoration

Any hard surface restoration required for main to curb or curb to meter service installations will be paid as a separate item.

7.12.5 Restoration Not Included on Bid

An addendum letter must be submitted prior to performing the work to the Job Sponsor. Prices on the pre-set small restoration unit price list should be used, refer to (Appendix C). Small restoration units will be paid cumulatively if completed in the same week.

7.12.6 Warranty of Restoration

The Contractor shall warrant materials and workmanship for a minimum period of one year from the final acceptance date of the project. All necessary repairs or replacements shall be made at

the Contractor's expense. If after a period of one year, the surrounding area does not deteriorate and the repaired area does, the Contractor will be partially responsible for making a new repair.

7.13 Miscellaneous

- 1- Consideration will be made to pay a welder to cut streetcar tracks. There will be no down time for the crew. The concrete removal will be paid in accordance with the rock unit after the first 11-inches from the street.
- 2- Northern Kentucky Sanitation District has requested that they be contacted when their facilities are damage. Refer to attached letter (Appendix D).
- 3- Test Holes will be paid as follows:

In Sod \$75, includes seed restoration

In Pavement \$150, restoration will be paid as a separate item

Any test hole required to spot utility crossings and to verify depth on directional drills will not be paid.

- 4- Traffic loops will be the responsibility of the contractor and should be included in the pipe price.
- 5- All railroad crossing permits were applied for by CG&E assuming that the crossings will take place with cased pipe bored at minimum 5.5' of cover below tracks. If the Contractor want to directional drill the crossing, the main has to be 10 below the tracks. If the change to directional drilling creates a problem with the original permit the Contractor will not be reimbursed for any down time. It is the contractor's responsibility to notify CG&E of their intention to directional drill the crossing and to allow adequate time to obtain a change in the railroad permit. If time does not allow for a change in the permit the contractor is expected to bore the crossing.
- 6- The City of Covington has submitted a restoration requirement for brick streets. Refer to attached letter (Appendix E).
- 7- The City of Cincinnati has submitted a general guideline of their traffic control requirements and usage of LSM and concrete. Refer to attached notes (Appendixes F).

8.0 COMPLETION OF WORK

.

No work shall be completed unless it is accepted by the authorized agent of the Contractor and the authorized agent of CG&E. Work must comply with the proposal and any written negotiations associated therewith. The completion report is a listing of units installed or total number of hours of worked to complete the job.

The purchaser will track units of work completed as well as the associated hours such that productivity data can be collected for future cast iron and bare steel modules.

All work must be completed in the field by December 1, 2005 and all invoices received by December 15, 2005. However, all 12-inch main work must be completed in the field by October 27, 2005.

9.0 INVOICING

Contractors must meet with Inspectors on a weekly basis to complete sign off sheets on all projects (preferably Friday evening or Monday morning). The Inspector's copy is immediately forwarded to the invoice desk. The Contractor's copy is forwarded with the invoice to the invoice desk. Only one project can be billed on an invoice. Do not send two or more projects on one invoice or the invoice will be rejected. Do not add any items after the document has been signed. If there are additional items, sign out an additional sheet with the inspector. If the restoration is not completed when an invoice is payable, the payment will be held until the Supervisor accepts the completed work.

Items which were not bid (addendums) should not be invoiced with items that were bid. Also, any time and material (T&M) requests should be invoiced separate of bid items. T&M invoices should be accompanied by the daily sheets for each date that T&M was requested. The daily sheets should clearly identify the start and stop times for the T&M on each date along with the inspector's signature for approval on that date.

All invoices must be submitted such that the units to be invoiced, previous units invoiced and total units invoiced are shown. All invoicing must be submitted in this manner. A sample invoice is enclosed. Send all invoices to:

Cast Iron / Bare Steel Invoice Desk, 139 East 4th Street, Room 405-A Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

APPENDIX "A"

STATE OF KENTUCKY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES DEPTH REQUIREMENTS

•



KENTUCKY TRANSPORTATION CABINET FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40622 www.kentucky.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: Chief District Engineers District Permits Personnel District Utilities Personnel

THRU: Maxwell C. Bailey Secretary

Marc Williams Commissioner of Highways

J.M. Yowell State Highway Engineer

Charles A. Knowles WK Executive Director of Traffic Operations & Maintenance

Branch Manager of Permits

FROM:

ERNIE FLETCHER

GOVERNOR

DATE: October 27, 2004

M. Chad LaRue

SUBJECT: Revision to Permits Policy Manual-Utility Crossings-Change to Underground Utilities Depth Requirements

This memorandum is to notify all Kentucky Transportation Cabinet personnel of the change to the required depth for underground utilities that are located on state right-of-way. This change is being done to reduce the potential for impacting underground utilities that are located on state rightof-way. The previous policy had a variance that led to inconsistency in the depth at which underground utilities have been installed throughout the state. In addition, there have been instances where sign post installation, guardrail installation, and ditching have damaged underground utilities.

DAVISION OF MAINTENANCE PERMITS BRANCH Effective the date of this memorandum, section PE 202-2, page 2 of 3, under Utilities in segment Underground, in the Permits Policy Manual shall now read, "The minimum depth for underground utilities is 42" under roadways, ramps, and ditch lines and 30" in all other areas within state right-of-way. Exceptions may be made only where the terrain is such that this requirement is proved to be impractical and where a lesser depth will not interfere with highway maintenance, safety or aesthetics. It is at the discretion of the Chief District Engineer to determine where these exceptions are to be allowed."

Section PE-202-3, page 1 of 5, in the segment Underground Utilities Installed Longitudinally, shall now read, "Requirements- These utilities must be buried a minimum of 30 inches deep..." The remaining portion of this segment shall remain the same.

Section PE-202-3, page 3 of 5, under Encasement of Utilities, in the segment Conditions Where Encasement Not Required, shall now read, "3. Pipe crossings 2" in diameter and under will not require encasement provided they are buried at least 42" below bottom of ditches, shoulders, and roadway surfaces." I have also attached an updated form TC 99-10 that reflects the above change.

This policy change will be made in the Permits Policy Manual upon its next revision. MCL

C: Central Office Division Directors

Attachment



APPENDIX "B"

SERVICES SKETCHES

UNACCEPTABLE LOCATION MOVE METER TO SIDE OF HOUSE



PAY ITEMS

CURB LINE

1) RENEW CURB TO MAIN DIRECT BURY

2) T & M RELOCATE HOUSELINE



T & M FOR HOUSE PIPE

UNACCEPTABLE LOCATION MOVE METER FRONT WALL (INSERTION)




SHORTEN EXISTING M - C REPLACE RISER



EXISTING C - M PLASTIC DIG AT CURB REPLACE RISER





APPENDIX "C"

PRICING FOR NON-BID RESTORATION

			Payment for
UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	Non-Bid Items (\$)
10-A3	Cl. 10 Concrete Curb - (0-3.9)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 41.00
10-B4	Cl 10 Concrete Curb - (4-24.9)	Lin. Ft	\$ 34.00
10-C25	CL 10 Concrete Curb - (Over 25)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 30.00
13-A3	CL 13 - Concrete Curb (0-3.9)	Lin, Ft.	\$ 43.00
13-B4	CL 13 - Concrete Curb (4-24.9)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 42.00
13-025	CL 13 - Concrete Curb (Over 25)	Lin, Ft	\$ 41.00
14-43	$CL_14 = Conc. Curb. w/ sidewalk (0-3.9)$	I in Ft	\$ 40.00
14-R4	$CL_14 = Conc. Curb. w/ sidewalk (4-24.9)$	I in Ft	\$ 32.00
14-04	CL 14 Conc. Curb w/ sidewalk (Over 25)	I in Et	\$ 29.00
<u>14-020</u> 16 Δ2	CL 16 Jostall tio bars (0.2)	Each	\$ <u>17.00</u>
10-A2	$\frac{(1.10 - 105 \text{ cm} \text{ te bars} (3.12)}{(1.10 - 105 \text{ cm} \text{ te bars} (3.12)}$	Each	\$ 16.00
10-03	CL = 16 - Install the bars (Over 12)	Each	¢ 16.00
10-012		Each	φ 10.00 ¢ 17.00
19-A2	Cl. 19 - Dowel Pins/Tie Bars (0-2)	Each	↓ ↓ 17.00
19-B3	Cl. 19 - Dowel Pins/Tie Bars (3-12)	Each	\$ 16.00
<u>19-C12</u>	Cl. 19 - Dowel Pins/Lie Bars (Over 12)	Each	\$ 16.00
32-A2	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (0-2.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 50.00
<u>32-B3</u>	CI. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (3-12.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 43.00
32-C13	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (13-49.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 33.00
32-D50	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (50-199.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 28.00
32-E200	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 26.00
43-A3	Cl. 43 - Bituminous Curb (0-3.9)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 25.00
43-B4	Cl. 43 - Bituminous Curb (4-24.9)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 22.00
43-C25	Cl. 43 - Bituminous Curb (Over 25)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 19.00
44-A2	Cl. 44 - Asphalt surf./stone base (0-2.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 80.00
44-B3	Cl. 44 - Asphalt surf./stone base (3-12.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 75.00
44-C13	CI. 44 - Asphalt surf./stone base (13-49.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 74.00
44-D50	CL 44 - Asphalt surf /stone base (50-199.9)	Sa. Yd.	\$ 74.00
61-A3	CL 61 - Concrete sidewalk (0-3.9)	Sa. Yd.	\$ 99.00
61-R4	CL 61 - Concrete sidewalk (4-24.9)	Sa. Yd.	\$ 67.00
61-C25	CL 61 - Concrete sidewalk (Over 25)	Sa. Yd.	\$ 62.00
71-43	$CI_{71} = Concrete Driveway (0-3.9)$	Sa Yd	\$ 87.00
71_B4	CI_{1} 71 - Concrete Driveway (4-24.9)	Sa Yd	\$ 82.00
71 025	CL 71 Concrete Driveway (Qver 25)	Sa Yd	\$ 67.00
72 42	CI_{1} 72 Apph surf stope base - driveway (0-2.9)	Lin Et	\$ 59.00
70 00	$Cl_{12} = Asph suff stope base - driveway (0-2.0)$	Lin. Ft	\$ 52.00
72.010	Cl. 72 - Asph suff stone base - driveway (0-11.9)	Lin. rt.	\$ <u>32.00</u>
72-012	Cl. 72 - Asphi suff-stolle base - unveway (Over 12)		\$ 20.00
73-AZ	Cl. 73 - Asphalt suf, Driveway (0-2.9)		φ 70.00 ¢ 41.00
73-83	CI. 73 - Aspnait suri. Driveway (3-11.9)		φ 41.00
73-012	CI. 73 - Asphalt surf. Driveway (Over 12)	LIN. FL.	\$ 30.00
74-A3	CI. 74 - Concrete driveway (0-3.9)	Sq. Ya.	<u>\$</u> 82.00
74-84	CI. /4 - Concrete driveway (4-24.9)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 77.00
74-C25	Cl. 74 - Concrete driveway (Over 25)	Sq. Yd.	\$ 70.00
75-A2	CI. 75 - Full depth asphalt driveway (0-2.9)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 69.00
75-B3	CI. 75 - Full depth asphalt driveway (3-24.9)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 63.00
75-C12	CI. 75 - Full depth asphalt driveway (Over 25)	Lin. Ft.	\$ 57.00
93	Cl. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	\$ 40.00
RVP	Vent pipe for Regulator Up to 10 ft. for SP Conversions	Each	\$ 55.00
EXRVP	Extra regulator vent line over 10 ft.	Lin. Ft.	\$ 2.50
55A-MRE	Multiple Re-light existing services	Each	\$ 50.00
55F	C-M services over 70 ft.	Lin. Ft.	\$ 7.00
EXTRA HOLE	Extra Hole Soft Surface	Each	\$ 75.00
EXTRAHOLEH	Extra Hole Hard Surface	Each	\$ 150.00

•

••

A desired

APPENDIX "D"

SANITATION DISTRICT CONTACT INFORMATION

VEHICLY ULING

SANITATION



DISTRICT NO. 1

June 15, 2004

Ms. Rhonda Whitaker Area Manager Cinergy, ULH&P 107 Brent Spence Square Covington, KY 41011

Dear Rhonda:

We understand that Cinergy is currently in the process of completing upgrades to gas systems throughout much of Northern Kentucky. While this work was being completed in the City of Southgate, crews damaged a sanitary sewer line on Willow Road near US 27. Gas crews made a repair to the sanitary line but unfortunately it was done improperly.

In the future, if a sanitary sewer line is damaged during a repair, we ask that you contact our Dispatch immediately at 859-578-7466. This will help us to ensure that proper materials and procedures are used to complete the repairs. We ask that if one of your crews completes the repair, that we be notified so that an inspection can be completed prior to the repair being backfilled. If it is more convenient for you, Sanitation District crews can complete the repairs and invoice you for the costs of the repair including time and material.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact John Penick, Director of Collection Systems, at 859-578-7455.

Sincerely Jeff Genera Manager ()

1045 EATON DRIVE & FT. WRIGHT, KENTUCKY 41017-9681 & PH: (859) 578-7450 & FAX: (859) 331-2436

APPENDIX "E"

•

CITY OF COVINGTON RESTORATION ORDINANCE

CITY OF COVINGTON

638 MADISON AVENUE • COVINGTON, KENTUCKY 41011-2298

August 9, 2005

Cinergy 670 W. North Bend Road Cincinnati, OH 45224

Re: City of Covington Restoration Ordinance

Based on the recent concerns expressed by Covington residents, neighborhood committees, and various public agencies regarding restoration of streets and sidewalks, I felt it necessary to provide all the utility organizations performing work within the City a copy of our restoration requirements. Enclosed is a copy of the pertinent sections of our Code of Ordinances specifically addressing restoration of streets, alleys, sidewalks, and other passageways within the City's right-of-way.

The recent concerns have been restoration of brick streets and alleys or the lack thereof. Due to the historical significance of this particular infrastructure I am asking that you remind your field crews and contractors of the detailed requirements for restoration of brick streets and alleys. The intent insofar as possible is to carefully remove the existing brick and replace the same after utility work is completed. In cases where this is not possible, I ask that you coordinate your efforts with the Engineering Department.

To assist in the planning process, I have enclosed a map highlighting the brick streets within Covington. We are hopeful that with proper coordination we can maintain the historical appeal we are known for in the state of Kentucky.

Thank you for your continued efforts in maintaining and improving our city.

Sinderei

Thomas H. Logan, PE City Engineer City of Covington

c: Jay Fossett, City Manager

§ 96.05 ENCROACHMENT PERMITS FOR WORK ON STREETS; REPAIRS TO STREETS.

(E) Restoration regulations.

(1) Each and every person who excavates, digs into, or occupies the right-of-way of any city street, alley, sidewalk, or other public way or any owner of real estate or the agent or lessee of such owner, who allow or permits such work to be done, whether under contract with the city or otherwise, has a duty, upon completion of such work, to immediately cause the street, alley, sidewalk, or other public way worked upon to be placed in reasonably close conformity to its condition before such work began. This work shall include, but not be limite to, the following:

(a) Installing, removing, or repairing any water pipe for the conveyance of water; gas pipe for the conveyance of gas; sewer pipe for the conveyance of drainage or sewerage; electric, telephone, computer, or cable type conduit of any kind; construction of any kind of sewer or other drain structure; or for the purpose of making house connections of any kind whatsoever;

(b) Installing, removing, or repairing any overhead lines or other similar facilities; and/or

(c) Opening, excavating, or occupying the right-of-way of any city street, alley, sidewalk or other public way or causing or permitting it to be opened, excavated, or occupied.

(2) Restoration work shall include the proper and thorough compacting and settling of the earth displaced, replacement of backfill, sub-base, or pavement, as required by current city standards or subdivision egulations. The top of any such opening shall be replaced or laid with the same or nearly the same kind of material(s) as composed the surface before such opening was made and in the same manner and upon the same level as it lay before such opening was made.

(a) If bricks or pavers are removed, to the extent possible, the removed bricks or pavers should be reused at the top of any such opening. If the removed bricks or pavers cannot be reused, then bricks or pavers of a like kind and material should be used. Restoration work must be completed immediately after the purpose for opening the street, alley, sidewalk, or public way is accomplished, and such work must be completed befor the person or company doing the work leaves the work site, unless the City Engineer grants to said person or company a written extension of time to complete the restoration work. The street, alley, sidewalk, or other public way worked on, immediately after such work is done, shall be placed in reasonably close conformity to its original condition in every respect as it was before such work was commenced.

(b) The duty of restoring the street, alley, sidewalk, or other public way to conformity with its original condition is also imposed upon any contractor and any officer and upon any and all other persons under whose direction, supervision, or oversight such work is done or upon whose request, permission or cooperation such opening is made. It is the duty of the City Engineer to require and see that the provisions of this section are strictly, promptly, fully, and carefully carried out and enforced.

('77 Code, § 622.2, Sec. IV(a)) (Ord. O-16-82, passed 3-16-82; Am. Ord. O-17-02, passed 4-9-02) <u>Penalty</u>, see § 96.99



City of Covington Brink Streets & Alleys



CITY OF CINCINNATI NOTES

APPENDIX "F"

Pre-Construction Meeting

Inspection

Call 352-3451 every morning between 7:30AM & 8:30 AM with Permit Number.

No phone calls on cell phone for inspection.

All traffic control, excavations, backfill, temporary and permanent restoration must be inspected.

When field inspections are made a designated or responsible person must be on job site to take instructions.

Excavation and Restoration

Excavation – Pre-saw full-depth with wet diamond blade saw, brine from saw must be washed down so as not to be tracked by autos or pedestrians into business. Remove spoils every day, nothing left over night.

Backfill – CLSM required in all city streets and driveways. See approved Ham-Cin List for approved mixes.

CDF with concrete base restoration – must wait a minimum of 12 hours before pouring concrete

CDF with asphalt base restoration – must wait a minimum of 12 hours before placing asphalt

Flashfill TM - must wait 1-4 hours before pouring concrete or asphalt base

Temporary Street Restoration – 3 options

- 1. 10" crushed stone or slag with a 2" cap of Hot Asphalt Mix #448
- 2. Bring CLSM within 2" of street and cap with 2" of Hot Asphalt Mix #448
- 3. Bring CLSM within 3" of street and cap with 3" of Concrete

Temporary Sidewalk Restoration - 2" of compacted Hot Asphalt Mix # 448

No Cold Mix will be allowed for any temporary restoration, street or sidewalk.

Final Street Restoration -

Concrete Base - 9" Class C Concrete with 2" cap of Hot Asphalt Mix #448. Main arterial roads require concrete to be pinned with #5 Epoxy Coated Rebar. Rebar or keyways will be required at the end of each concrete base pour.

Concrete

Standard Class C Concrete – minimum setup time 5-7 days Class MS Concrete – minimum setup time 24 hours Class FS Concrete – minimum setup time 4 hours

> Internal Vibrator Bull Float Hand floats Broom finish String all castings for grade.

<u>Asphalt</u>

All asphalt restoration must be parallel and perpendicular to the C.L. or curb line
Hot Asphalt Mix #448
Tack coat per ODOT 702.04
3 to 5 ton roller
Sealer per ODOT 705.04 (except in crosswalks)

Asphalt Base

<u>Arterial Road</u> – 2-5" lifts of Asphalt Item 304 with a 2" cap of Asphalt Item 448 Residential – 2-4" lift of Asphalt Item 304 with a 2" cap of Asphalt Item 448

All Brick surface streets must be restored in kind.

Final Sidewalk and Driveway Restoration -- 5" Class C Concrete for sidewalks and 7" Class C Concrete for driveways.

Any excavation through a curb ramp will require complete replacement of the curb ramp and upgraded to meet current ADA requirements.

Maintenance of Traffic

Follow all rules for maintenance of traffic. Item 614 ODOT Traffic Safety Manual

Advance warning signs for traffic pattern.

Use of a uniformed police officer with cruiser may be required when working in or within 50' of a signalized intersection. Contact the Cincinnati Police Detail Unit at 352-2583 to coordinate.

No Parking Signs - Contact appropriate police district for policy and procedure

Some streets may have restricted working hours.

<u>Miscellaneous</u>

-

Street Plates – Plates will be required to be pinned, welded and ramped as necessary. No over night noise. Silence plates with expansion paper, tar paper or ramp plates.

Contact Urban Forestry at 861-9070 when working within 15' of a tree in the public right-ofway.

• .

Special circumstances to be decided / directed by the City Engineer.

·

99F1

Each

UnitID UnitDesc Unit EstUnits 1A-DP Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement Lin Ft. 1,25 1A-DS Length of 2" PL Gas Main -Directional Drill sod Lin. Ft. 72 1A-P Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft. 53 1A-S Length of 2" PL Gas Main-Sod DB Lin. Ft. 31 89 1C-DP Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement Lin. Ft. 37 1C-DS Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Sod Lin. Ft. 1C-P Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft. 48 1C-S Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DB Lin Ft 16 1E-P Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft. 7 1H-P Length of 12" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft. 1P-P Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft. 7 1Q-P Length of 12" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft. 2,58 4C Valve Assembly 4" PL Each 4F Valve Assembly 6" PL Each 4G Valve Assembly 8" PL Each 5A Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion Each 7 Rock Excavation Cu. Yd. 2 2 8 Extra Depth Cu. Yd. 99A Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL Each 99C Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL Each 99D Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL Each 99E Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL Each

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	75
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	32

Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" PL

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
16	Cl. 16 - Install tie bars	Each	44
33	Cl. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	1,26
45	Cl. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	62
61	Cl. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	38
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	19
93	Cl. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	2
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	1

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	4
61A-5DPNM	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1/2") Drill in Pavement Where Main Not Replaced	Each	1
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	10
61BPNM	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") In Pavement, Main Not Replaced, Direct Bury	Each	1
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	8
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	2

JobNo: 02-7338-3 RegNo: G-4941 Jobname: PLAINFIELD

Ena: DJS

000110. 02 7000 0			g
UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	47
61A-5DPNM	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1/2") Drill in Pavement Where Main Not Replaced	Each	14
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	100
61BPNM	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") In Pavement, Main Not Replaced, Direct Bury	Each	12
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	82
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	3
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	1
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	20

Johname[®] PLAINFIELD JobNo: 02-7338-3 ReaNo: G-4941

Eng DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	81
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	54
55A-CMINM	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion Where Main Not	Each	22
	Replaced		
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	18
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	23
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	1

JobNo: 03-0033-5 ReqNo: G-4945 Jobname: CREW HOUR+ EQUIPMENT

Eng: PJZ

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
AIR COMPRE	185 Air Compressor	Hour	
ARROWBOARD	Flashing Arrow Board	Hour	
BACKHOE	Backhoe	Hour	
CREW TRUCK	Crew Truck	Hour	
CREWLEAD	Crew Leader	Hour	
CREWLEAD15	Crew Leader Overtime	Hour	
CREWLEAD2	Crew Leader Doubletime	Hour	
DOZER D4	Dozer D4 or less	Hour	
DOZER D5	Dozer D5 or larger	Hour	
DRIVER	Driver	Hour	
DRIVER15	Driver Overtime	Hour	
DRIVER2	Driver Doubletime	Hour	
EARTHSAW	Earth Saw	Hour	
EXCAVATOR	Small Excavator	Hour	
FLAGMAN	Flagman	Hour	
FLAGMAN15	Flagman Overtime	Hour	
FLAGMAN2	Flagman Doubletime	Hour	
FUSER	Fuser	Hour	
FUSER1-4	1 - 4" Fusing Equip. w/ generator	Hour	
FUSER15	Fuser Overtime	Hour	
FUSER2	Fuser Doubletime	Hour	
FUSER6-8	6 - 8" Fusing Equip. w/ generator	Hour	
GENERATOR	Generator	Hour	
HYDRO	Hydrocrane	Hour	
LABORER	Laborer	Hour	
LABORER15	Laborer Overtime	Hour	
LABORER2	Laborer Doubletime	Hour	
LIGHT BAR	Light Bar	Hour	
NAV-1620	1620 Navigator or equivalent	Hour	
NAV-2440	2440 Navigator or equivalent	Hour	
NAVIGAT711	711 Navigator or equivalent	Hour	
OPERATOR	Operator	Hour	
OPERATOR15	Operator Overtime	Hour	
OPERATOR2	Operator Doubletime	Hour	
PICKUP	Pickup Truck	Hour	
PIPE	Crew hours for Pipe Crane	Hour	
PLOW	Service Plow	Hour	
S/A DUMP	Dump Truck	Hour	
SKIDSTEER	Skid Steer	Hour	
TANDUMP	Tandem dump	Hour	
TAPEQUIP2	Tapping Equip. 2 - 4" Stopple	Hour	
TAPEQUIP6	Tapping Equip. 6 - 12" Stopple	Hour	
TRACTOR	Trencher Tractor type	Hour	
TRENCHER	Trencher - Walk behind	Hour	
VACUUM	Vacuum rig	Hour	
WELDER	Welder	Hour	
WELDER RIG	Welder Rig	Hour	
WELDER15	Welder Overtime	Hour	
WEIDER2	Welder Doubletime	Hour	<u> </u>
			Ji

		T	<u> </u>
UnitiD	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-DP	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	1,558
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	714
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	229
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	693
1P-P	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	23
1Q-P	Length of 12" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	6,958
1R-P	Length of 24" SWPC Gas Main - Direct Pavement	Lin. Ft.	8
4A	Valve Assembly 2" PL	Each	4
4C	Valve Assembly 4" PL	Each	3
4H	Valve Assembly 12" PL	Each	1
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	1
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	28
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	28
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	1
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	1
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	1
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	1
99F1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" PL	Each	1

JobNo: 04-1005-0 ReqNo: G-4943 Jobname: MI	TCHELL	Е
--	--------	---

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	983
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	1,332

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
16	Cl. 16 - Install tie bars	Each	2,642
32-E200	CI. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	283
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	5,172
45	CI. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	2,547
61	Cl. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	154
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	44
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	14

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	60
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	106
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	126
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	6
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	1
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	7
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each	1
62A 63A-D 63A-D3 64A 64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each Each Each Each Each Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	103
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	69
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	23
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	13
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	2

JobNo: 04-1005-0	ReqNo: G-4943	Jobname: MITCHELL E		En	g: DJS
UnitID		UnitDesc	i	Jnit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1	" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each		1
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1	" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each		(
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser	Less Than 2"	Each		;
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2	") Up to 70 ft.	Each		
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3	") Up to 70 ft.	Each		

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	193
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	161
1H-S	Length of 12" SWPC Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	11
1K	Length of 1 1/4" PL Gas Main - Including Compaction	Lin. Ft.	15
1P-P	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	28
1Q-P	Length of 12" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	4,914
1Q-S	Length of 12" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	40
1S-P	Install 20"SWPC Gas Main - Direct Pavement	Lin. Ft.	5
1S-S	Install 20"SWPC Gas Main - Direct Sod	Lin. Ft.	2
4C	Valve Assembly 4" PL	Each	1
4G	Valve Assembly 8" PL	Each	1
4H	Valve Assembly 12" PL	Each	2
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	1
5B	Authorized Satisfactory Test Weld	Each	1
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	15
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	15
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	1
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	1
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	1
99F	Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" ST	Each	1
99F1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" PL	Each	1

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	572
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	823

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
16	Cl. 16 - Install tie bars	Each	1,146
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	3,310
45	Cl. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	1,630
61	CI. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	76
93	CI. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	2
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	3

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	20
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	29
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	47
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	3
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	7
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each	3
64A2-DL	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 4" Drill	Each	1

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	34
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	22
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	8

JobNo: 04-1019-1 ReqNo: G-4942 Jobname: WILLIAM HOWARD TAFT

Eng: DJS

JobNo: 04-1019-1	ReqNo: G-4942	Jobname: WILLIAM HOWARD TAFT		Eng: DJS
UnitID		UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	3
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	2
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Rise	er Less Than 2"	Each	

.

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1B-P	Length of 2" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	4
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	332
1C-S	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	43
1D-P	Length of 4" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	238
1D-S	Length of 4" SWPC Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin, Ft.	7
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin, Ft	409
1E-S	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	73
1F-P	Length of 6" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin, Ft.	112
1G-P	Length of 8" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	113
1H-P	Length of 12" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	9,132
1P-P	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	428
4H	Valve Assembly 12" PL	Each	1
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	1
5B	Authorized Satisfactory Test Weld	Each	1
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	30
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	30
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	1
99C1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" ST	Each	1
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	1
99D1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" ST	Each	1
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	1
99E1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" ST	Each	1
99F	Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" ST	Each	1

JobNo: 04-1069-6 Re	qNo: G
---------------------	--------

Jobname: HAMILTON AVE

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	1,069
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	1,723

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
16	CI. 16 - Install tie bars	Each	1,982
32-E200	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	353
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	7,070
45	CI. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	3,482
61	CI. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	96
93	CI. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	6
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	3

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	29
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	67
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	43
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	9
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	3
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	12
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each	1
64A2	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 4" Direct Bury	Each	1
64A6-DL	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 6" Drill	Each	1

.

JobNo: 04-1069-6 ReqNo: G-4944 Jobname: HAMILTON AVE

.

Eng: DJS

UnitID	itID UnitDesc Unit		t EstUnits	
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	2	
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	6	
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	4	
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each		
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each		
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	1	
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each		
64A2	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 4" Direct Bury	Each		
64A6-DL	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 6" Drill	Each		

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	4
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	3
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	1
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	2
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	
55CM4	Install C-M Service (4") Up to 70 ft.	Each	
55CM6	Install C-M Service (6") Up to 70 ft.	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-DP	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	886
1A-DS	Length of 2" PL Gas Main -Directional Drill sod	Lin. Ft.	513
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	380
1A-S	Length of 2" PL Gas Main-Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	220
1C-DS	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Sod	Lin. Ft.	448
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	755
1C-S	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	836
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	2,554
1E-S	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	165
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	1
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	19
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	19
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	1
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	1
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	1
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	0

JobNo: 04-8319-8 ReqNo: G-4937 Jobname: KY CIBS MODULE 319 Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	464
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	659

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
32-E200	CI. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	817
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin, Ft.	2,472
45	Cl. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	1,217
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	18
93	Cl. 93 - Topsoil	Cu, Yd.	60
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	3

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
98	Fabricated Drip Pot	Each	6
98D	Fabricated Drip Pot 4" PL	Each	6

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	. 36
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	64
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	74
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	4
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	1
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	2

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	61
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	41
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	14
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	6
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	11

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	(
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	4
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	

JobNo: 04-8319-8 ReqNo: G-4937 Jobname: KY CIBS MODULE 319

.

DJS

1.7.10

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-DP	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	489
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	259
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	5,678
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	6,375
1E-S	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	28
1P-P	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	1,241
4A	Valve Assembly 2" PL	Each	1
4C	Valve Assembly 4" PL	Each	1
4E	Valve Assembly 6" ST	Each	1
4F	Valve Assembly 6" PL	Each	1
4G	Valve Assembly 8" PL	Each	1
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	1
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	39
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	39
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	1
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	1
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	1
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	1

JobNo: 05-8311-2	ReqNo: G-4940	Jobname: 2005 KY CIBS MODULE 311	Eng:
------------------	---------------	----------------------------------	------

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	1,307
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	2,262

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
32-E200	CI. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	3,081
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	8,995
45	CI. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	4,431
61	CI. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	56
93	CI. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	1
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	3

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	111
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	238
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	188
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	2

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	189
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	126
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	43
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	2

JobNo: 05-8312-0 ReqNo: G-4934 Jobname: 2005 KY CIBS MODULE 312

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	9
1C-DP	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	90
1C-DS	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Sod	Lin. Ft.	1,04
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	2,76
1C-S	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	1,28
1D-P	Length of 4" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	22
1E-DP	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	19
1E-DS	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Sod	Lin. Ft.	45
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	1,88
1E-S	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	1,67
1F-P	Length of 6" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	82
1F-S	Length of 6" SWPC Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	
1G-P	Length of 8" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	3
1H-P	Length of 12" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	57
1L-P	Length of 3" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	
1L-S	Length of 3" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	
4D	Valve Assembly 4" ST	Each	
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	
5B	Authorized Satisfactory Test Weld	Each	
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	3
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	3
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	
99C1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" ST	Each	
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	
99D1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" ST	Each	
99E1	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" ST	Each	
99F	Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" ST	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	1,16
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	78

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
16	Cl. 16 - Install tie bars	Each	43
32-E200	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	89
33	Cl. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	3,30
61	Cl. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	65
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	68
93	Cl. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	14
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	1

-

JobNo: 05-8312-0 ReqNo: G-4934 Jobname: 2005 KY CIBS MODULE 312 Eng: DJS

•

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	80
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	144
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	162
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	2
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	1
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	1
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each	1

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	136
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	91
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	31
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	3
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	2

i

•

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-DP	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	2,27
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	1,03
1C-DP	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	2,57
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	7,06
1D-P	Length of 4" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	4,74
1H-P	Length of 12" SWPC Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	20
1P-P	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	2,98
4A	Valve Assembly 2" PL	Each	
4C	Valve Assembly 4" PL	Each	
4F	Valve Assembly 6" PL	Each	
4H1	Valve Assembly 12" ST	Each	
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	
5B	Authorized Satisfactory Test Weld	Each	
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	5
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	5
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	
99F	Offset (Not shown on print.) 12" ST	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	1,71
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	2,62

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
16	Cl. 16 - Install tie bars	Each	1,08
32-E200	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	3,59
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	10,02
45	CI. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	4,93
61	Cl. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	47
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	10
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	13
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	27
61A-DSNM	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill in Sod Where Main Not Replaced	Each	
61BSNM	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") In Sod, Main Not Replaced, Direct Bury	Each	
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	23
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	1
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each	

JobNo: 05-8331-0 ReqNo: G-4938 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 331

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	228
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	152
55A-CMINM	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion Where Main Not Replaced	Each	12
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	51
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	3
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft	Each	1

JobNo: 05-8331-0 ReqNo: G-4938 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 331 Eng: DJS

JobNo: 05-8353-4 ReqNo: G-4936 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 353

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
1A-DP	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	2,6€
1A-IS	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Insertion Sod	Lin. Ft.	38
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	1,25
1A-S	Length of 2" PL Gas Main-Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	5,11
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	2,69
1L-IP	Length of 3" PL Gas Main - Insertion Pavement	Lin. Ft.	
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	3
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	
99E	Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL	Each	
11	N		11

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	1,76
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	83

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
32-E200	Cl. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	2,55
33	Cl. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	2,83
45	Cl. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	1,39
61	CI. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	2,14
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	1
93	Cl. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
98	Fabricated Drip Pot	Each	
98B	Fabricated Drip Pot 8" PL	Each	
98D	Fabricated Drip Pot 4" PL	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	8
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	12
61A-DSNM	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill in Sod Where Main Not Replaced	Each	
61BSNM	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") In Sod, Main Not Replaced, Direct Bury	Each	1
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	18
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	
٠

JobNo: 05-8353-4	ReqNo: G-4936 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 353		Eng: DJS
UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	137
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	91
55A-CMINM	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion Where Main Not Replaced	Each	19
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	31
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	13

JobNo: 05-8354-2 ReqNo: G-4939 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 354

Eng: DJS

1A-PLength of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DBLin. Ft.1C-PLength of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DBLin. Ft.1C-SLength of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DBLin. Ft.1E-PLength of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DBLin. Ft.1E-SLength of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DBLin. Ft.	
1C-PLength of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DBLin. Ft.1C-SLength of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DBLin. Ft.1E-PLength of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DBLin. Ft.1E-SLength of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DBLin. Ft.	13
1C-SLength of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DBLin. Ft.1E-PLength of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DBLin. Ft.1E-SLength of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DBLin. Ft.	7,32
1E-P Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft.	3
1E-S Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DB Lin Et	2,44
1P-P Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB Lin. Ft.	3,15
5A Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion Each	
7 Rock Excavation Cu. Yd.	3
8 Extra Depth Cu. Yd.	3
99A Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL Each	
99C Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL Each	
99D Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL Each	
99E Offset (Not shown on print.) 8" PL Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	1,23
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	2,17

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
32-E200	CI. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	• 4,37
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	8,74
45	CI. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	4,30
93	CI. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
98	Fabricated Drip Pot	Each	
98B	Fabricated Drip Pot 8" PL	Each	
98D	Fabricated Drip Pot 4" PL	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	ç
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	17
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	21
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	16
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	11
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	3
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	

UnitID	LinitDoco	Lloit	EatUnita
	UnitDesc		ESIONIIS
1A-DP	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	10,514
1A-DS	Length of 2" PL Gas Main -Directional Drill sod	Lin. Ft.	650
1A-P	Length of 2" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	4,538
1A-S	Length of 2" PL Gas Main-Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	289
1C-DP	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	6,604
1C-DS	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Sod	Lin. Ft.	1,298
1C-P	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	4,408
1C-S	Length of 4" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	584
1E-DP	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	396
1E-DS	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Sod	Lin. Ft.	547
1E-P	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	310
1E-S	Length of 6" PL Gas Main - Sod DB	Lin. Ft.	234
1P-DP	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Directional Drill Pavement	Lin. Ft.	4
1P-P	Length of 8" PL Gas Main - Pavement DB	Lin. Ft.	2
4D	Valve Assembly 4" ST	Each	2
4E	Valve Assembly 6" ST	Each	6
5A	Authorized Satisfactory Test Fusion	Each	1
7	Rock Excavation	Cu. Yd.	84
8	Extra Depth	Cu. Yd.	84
99A	Offset (Not shown on print.) 2" PL	Each	1
99C	Offset (Not shown on print.) 4" PL	Each	1
99D	Offset (Not shown on print.) 6" PL	Each	1

JobNo: 05-8362-5 ReqNo: G-4935 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 362 Eng: DJS

.

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
9	Bankrun Gravel/Sand	Ton	2,091
9A	Low Strength Concrete Backfill	Cu. Yd.	751

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
32-E200	CI. 32 - Asph. Concrete Surface (Over 200)	Sq. Yd.	853
33	CI. 33 - Asphalt surf./Conc. base	Lin. Ft.	2,259
45	CI. 45 - Asphalt surf./asph base	Lin. Ft.	1,112
61	CI. 61 - Concrete sidewalk	Sq. Yd.	2,617
71	CI. 71 - Concrete driveway	Sq. Yd.	836
93	Cl. 93 - Topsoil	Cu. Yd.	54
SWRAMP	Sidewalk Ramp with Detectable Warnings	Each	49

•

JobNo: 05-8362-5 ReqNo: G-4935 Jobname: 2005 CIBS MODULE 362

Eng: DJS

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-RE	Test and Re-light Existing Service	Each	20
61A-5DPNM	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1/2") Drill in Pavement Where Main Not Replaced	Each	3
61A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill	Each	39
61A-DSNM	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Drill in Sod Where Main Not Replaced	Each	3
61BPNM	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") In Pavement, Main Not Replaced, Direct Bury	Each	4
61BSNM	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") In Sod, Main Not Replaced, Direct Bury	Each	
62A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	39
63A-D	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 2" Drill	Each	1
63A-D3	Install M-C Long-Side Service Piping 3" Drill	Each	
64A	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 2" Direct Bury	Each	2
64A1	Install M-C Short-Side Service Piping 3" Direct Bury	Each	

UnitID	UnitDesc	Unit	EstUnits
55A-CMD	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Direct Bury	Each	34
55A-CMI	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion	Each	23
55A-CMINM	Install C-M Service (1" or 1 1/4") Insertion Where Main Not Replaced	Each	9
55A-RPR	Replace Plastic Riser Less Than 2"	Each	7
55CM2	Install C-M Service (2") Up to 70 ft.	Each	3
55CM3	Install C-M Service (3") Up to 70 ft.	Each	



and the fight of the second

RegNo: G-4945

Due Date: 10/10/2005

JobNo: 03-0033-5	JobName: CRE	W HOUR+ EQUIPMENT	Sponsor: Paul Ziegler
Work Start: 12/1/2006	Work Finish	12/31/2006	

Contractors to Invite:

AMS Construction

8915 Blue Ash Rd., BlueAsh, OH 45242 Phone:; & Phone & (invalid) 513-794-0414 Arby Construction, Inc. 19705 W. Lincoln Avenue, New Berlin, WI 53146 Phone:; & Phone & (invalid) 262-548-3655 Brewer Co. 1354 US Highway 50, Milford, OH 45150 Phone:; & Phone & (invalid) 576-1414

C.J. Hughes

75 West Third Ave, Huntington, Wv 25776-7305 Phone:; & Phone & (invalid) 304-522-2729

Henkels & McCoy Inc.

13338 E. Broad Street, Rt 16, Pataskala, OH 43062

Phone:; & Phone & (invalid) 740-927-9632

Infrasource Underground Construction

1033 E. Morgan Rd., Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Phone:: & Phone & (invalid)

KS Energy Services, Inc

1988 Energy Drive, East Troy, WI 53120 Phone:; & Phone & (invalid) 262-642-9222

Miller Pipeline Corp.

10967 State St RT 128, Harrison, OH 45030 Phone:: & Phone & (invalid) 513-679-2363

RLA INVESTMENTS

603 Shepherd Drive, Cincinnati, OH 45215 Phone:; & Phone & (invalid)

03-0033-5

UnitId	Unit Description	Unit	Est. Units
AIR COMPRE	185 Air Compressor	Hour	1
ARROWBOARD) Flashing Arrow Board	Hour	1
BACKHOE	Backhoe	Hour	1
CREW TRUCK	Crew Truck	Hour	1
CREWLEAD	Crew Leader	Hour	1
CREWLEAD15	Crew Leader Overtime	Hour	1
CREWLEAD2	Crew Leader Doubletime	Hour	1
DOZER D4	Dozer D4 or less	Hour	1
OZER D5	Dozer D5 or larger	Hour	1
DRIVER	Driver	Hour	1
DRIVER15	Driver Overtime	Hour	1
DRIVER2	Driver Doubletime	Hour	1

.. ..

-

EARTHSAW	Earth Saw	Ноиг	1
EXCAVATOR	Small Excavator	Hour	1
FLAGMAN	Flagman	Hour	1
LAGMAN15	Flagman Overtime	Hour	1
-LAGMAN2	Flagman Doubletime	Hour	1
FUSER	Fuser	Hour	1
FUSER1-4	1 - 4" Fusing Equip. w/ generator	Hour	1
FUSER15	Fuser Overtime	Hour	1
FUSER2	Fuser Doubletime	Hour	1
FUSER6-8	6 - 8" Fusing Equip. w/ generator	Hour	1
GENERATOR	Generator	Hour	1
HYDRO	Hydrocrane	Hour	1
LABORER	Laborer	Hour	1
LABORER15	Laborer Overtime	Hour	1
LABORER2	Laborer Doubletime	Hour	1
LIGHT BAR	Light Bar	Hour	1
NAV-1620	1620 Navigator or equivalent	Hour	1
NAV-2440	2440 Navigator or equivalent	Hour	1
NAVIGAT711	711 Navigator or equivalent	Hour	1
OPERATOR	Operator	Hour	1
OPERATOR15	Operator Overtime	Hour	1
OPERATOR2	Operator Doubletime	Hour	1
PICKUP	Pickup Truck	Hour	1
PIPE	Crew hours for Pipe Crane	Hour	1
LOW	Service Plow	Hour	1
J/A DUMP	Dump Truck	Hour	1
SKIDSTEER	Skid Steer	Hour	1
TANDUMP	Tandem dump	Hour	1
TAPEQUIP2	Tapping Equip. 2 - 4" Stopple	Hour	1
TAPEQUIP6	Tapping Equip. 6 - 12" Stopple	Hour	1
TRACTOR	Trencher Tractor type	Hour	1
TRENCHER	Trencher - Walk behind	Hour	1
VACUUM	Vacuum rig	Hour	1
WELDER	Welder	Hour	1
WELDER RIG	Welder Rig	Hour	1
WELDER15	Welder Overtime	Hour	1
WELDER2	Welder Doubletime	Hour	1

•

STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE

SPECIFICATION NO. 501-2

COVERING

	e de Manaka de La Manaka de Manaka de Manaka de Karanga de Karanga de Karanga de Karanga de Karanga de Karanga	2888 (1997) (1994 - André Sola (1997) (1997)	
PROCESS GROUP SA	DIAMETER GROUP II	MATERIAL GROUP A	THICKNESS GROUP II
		- -	

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER COMPANY LAWRENCEBURG GAS COMPANY

-

.....

.

рс 142.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-2

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE	SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS	0.188" TO, BUT NOT
REG/HRM Mh	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"	

I attest that the tests required by this document were performed and that the results of the tests were as indicated above.

~ ulular

State of Ohio County of Hamilton

Before me, a Notary Public, in and for said county, personally appeared <u>George M. Warren</u> who being by me duly sworn deposes and says that the tests required by this document have been performed and says that the results of the tests were as indicated above.

Sworn to and subscribed in my presence this $\frac{3/e^2}{M_{Res}}$, day of M_{Res} , 1976.

hilis Ul STATE OF OHIO

My Commission Expires March 31, 1982

501-2

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

ISSU	ED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL
APP	ROVED .	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
R	BG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
			Forward
Th fo	is standa rth:	rd welding p	cocedure fulfills the requirements set
	Depart Natura Standa §192.2	ment of Trans 1 and Other (rds, Subpart 23 - General	sportation: Transportation of Gas by Pipeline Minimum Safety "E", Welding of Steel in Pipelines
Fo	or purpose ollowing g	s of identif prouping appl	ying welding procedure specification the ies:
	Materi	al Group	Application
1		A	All API 5L and ASTM Pipe Specifications having Specified Minimum Yield Strength of 42,000 psi or less.
		В	All API 5LX Pipe Specifications having Specified Minimum Yield Strengths between 42,000 psi and 60,000 psi.
		C	All API 5LX Pipe Specifications having a Specified Minimum Yield Strength 60,000 psi or greater.
	Diame	ter Group	Application
		I	Pipe having O.D. less than 2 3/8".
		II	Pipe having O.D. from 2 3/8", to and including 12 3/4".
		III	Pipe having O.D. in excess of 12 3/4".
	Thick	ness Group	Application
		I	Less than .188".
, ,	an casa an an an an an	II	.188" to but not including .250".
4		III	.250" to but not including .344".
•		IV	.344" to and including .500".

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.

MOTAL

ł

•

•		501-2
ISSUED10/1/77	REVISION NO 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL PIPE WITH 0.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO. AND INCLUDING.
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
•		
Pro	cess Group	Application
	SA	Manual Shielded Metal Arc Process
	MIG	Semi-Automatic Consumable Electrode
		Inert-Gas-Shielded Process
ł	•	·
1		Oxyacetylene Fibcess
2 1 2 2		
		· ·
	-	•
	-	· .
		· · ·
-		
•		
.1		

GAS OPERATI

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Ţ 14

.

				501-2
SSUED 10	77/1/7	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING P	ROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEP
PPROVED		APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL T	THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HE	RM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"	-
A. 1	Proces	s:	Manual Shielde	d Arc
B. 1	Materi	ial:	See Not	e "A"
c. 1	Diame	ter and Wall	Thickness:	See Note "B"
D	Joint	Design:	V-G	roove
E. 3	Fille	r Metal and M	Number of Beads:	Page 17, Table 1
F. 3	Elect	rical or Fla	me Characteristics:	Page 17, Table 2
G.	Posit	ion:	Horizo	ontal
н.	Direc	tion of Weld	ing: Vertic	zl Down
I.	Numbe	r of Welders	: See	Note "C"
J.	Time	Lance hetwee		See Note "D"
к. К	Tuno	of Jino-up C	1 - mp	Dee Note D
τ.	Demon	of Liperu		See Note 5
2) - M	Close		p czelip.	
	Droha		See NOT	
м.	Prene	lat, stress R		Set Note "H"
0.	Shiel	.cing Gas and	rlow Rate:	NOT Applicable
Ρ.	Shiel	.ding Flux:	Page 23	
Q.	Speed	! cf Travel:_	4 To 12 Ir	ches Per Minute
R.	Sketo	thes and Tabu	lations: (See Page	es 4 & 5)
			- U	
Tes	ted:	9-26-77	By: A	ane ul celaire
	_	(Date		
App	roved	:(./ <u>7</u> //	78Operating	Thing of the
Ado	pted:	10-1-	77 Pipeline	Engr.: Du Thomas
Ŧ		(Dat)		
Cer	tifie	a pg: K.N.A.	man 6.6	Revised <u>8/8/83</u>
Tit	le:	Frinciple	Nas Engl'	Gas Oper. (Huller
Dat	:e:	10-1-77	-	Gas ESP ALLAW Hooden

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.

8

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STE
APPROVED	APPROVED	DIPE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDING, 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
<u>Notes to P</u> A -	age 1: Material: P	Pipe API Specification,
-	having Speci and less.	fied Minimum Yield Strengths 42,000 psi
B -	Diameter and and all diam all wall thi	Wall Thickness: 12 3/4" O.D. 0.219" wall meters 2 3/8" to and including 12 3/4" and cknesses 0.188 to but not including 0.250".
C' -	Number of We	elders:
_	Minimum Root Minimum Seco	t Bead Welders: 1 ond Bead Welders: 1
	•	
-		
D -	Time Lapse I metal arc we application pass shall I cleaning of second, this cleaning we move along shall be con to ambient If the weld ambient tem shall be con weld not con shall be cu the MIG pro for complet	Between Passes: During manual shielded elding, the time interval between of the root bead and second or "hot" be the minimum time required for thorough the root bead. A delay between the rd and succeeding passes, sufficient for lds and allowing welders and equipment to the line, will be permitted. All welds mpleted without allowing the work to cool temperature between successive passes. cannot be completed without cooling to perature, the final phases of the weld mpleted as directed by the Engineer. Any mpleted as specified in this paragraph it out of the line. If welding is done by becess, no special provisions are required to ambient the between passes.
E	 Line-Up Cla butt-welds impracticab fillet weld 	mps: Line-Up Clamps are to be used on all except for certain fittings where it is le. Line-Up Clamps are not required for s. External line-up clamps should be used for
	butt weldin internal ty	ng pipe sizes to and including 12-inch and provide the second sec

GAS OPERATI

•

·

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.

and all the second s		-LUC
ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO.]	-PIPE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDING,
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
Notes to Pa	age 1: (Cont	'ā.)
F -	Removal of L clamp be remo distributed a	ine-Up Clamp: In no case shall the line-up oved before 20% of the root bead, uniformly around the circumference, is completed.
G -	<u>Cleaning:</u> A from the pre defects shal next pass. or a hand or nose chisel	ll slag, protrusions of filler metal ceding pass, pin holes and similar l be removed before depositing the For this operation a power grinder power driven diamond point or round shall be used.
н —	Preheating a required for specificatio conditions w than 32° F., condition sh 5LX pipe sha temperature temperature temperature temperature maintained w Preheating m the temperat prescribed m operations.	nd Stress Relief: Not normally work performed under this on, except that under field when the ambient temperature is less local preheating to a hand-hot hall be required. API 5L, and API all be preheated to a minimum of 200° F., when the ambient is less than 32° F. The preheat shall be checked by use of . indicating crayons, and shall be until the weld is completed. may be accomplished by any suitable wided that it is uniform and that ture does not fall below the minimum during the actual welding
	Preheating pipe prior	is required to remove moisture from the to welding.
	. <u></u>	

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.

F

ten

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD W	ELDING PR	OCEDURE	SA-II-	A-II FO	R STEEL
APPROVED	APPROVED	PIPE WITH 12 3/4" AN	O.D. FROM ID WALL TH	2 3/8" ICKNĖSS	TO, AN 0.188"	D INCLUI	DING, INOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING	0.250"				
-				Prec	eduze No. Test 20.	<u>SA II</u> 100-96	<u>A II</u>
Location	2120 Dana A	Avenue	and a construction of the second s	Da:		26-77	
Contractor	N/A			Sub-Contracts		<u> </u>	The Margan Participant Stream Provider
Cate of Weld	9-26-77	Rell Weld N/	<u>A</u>	Fixed Posicia	m Weld	<u>6-G</u>	
Welćs:	D. Van Land	lingnam		Mark	V-4		
Welding Time	<u>JU Min.</u>	Time of Day	2:00 P.M	·			<u> </u>
Weather Condition	Inside	Lincoln		Wind Break U	sed	<u>N/A</u>	-
Make of Welding	Machine	PTUCOTU		. Sź:	20	300	-
Brand of Electr	Dee LINCOIN	Voltaçe _	23	بعلا		120	
Pipe Mfr.	0.219"	12 2/45	29	Pipe Specifi 7 1K/f+	essies Al	<u>A SL C</u>	<u>PI-B</u>
Wall Thickness	D1225 D1	a. 0.5. $\underline{12} \ \underline{5/4}$			Joint Les		16
Jead No.		1 7	and a second	1	5	د در دارد در مرکز میرو د	49
Size of Electro	će	1/8 5/32	5/32				
So. of Sleetzed	e <u>E6</u>	<u>010 E6010</u>	E6010				
	1					an a	Laborator of the
Tensile Specimo	m %o	<u></u>	<u>73</u> 0/1 0 710		at an		
	$\frac{0}{0}$	$\frac{204 \text{ In}^2}{204 \text{ In}^2}$	206 Tp 4				
Same Lord	17	,500 lb. 1	7,000 lb.	-			and a star and a star and a star
Tensile Strengt	=h <u>85</u>	,7841b/In? B	2,524 1b/I	.n. ²			ann agus Thailean ga she
ina Secrita C	90	516 1h/Th 2		-			-
Attacks on Ten	aile Test Se	tisfactory -	Failure i	.n Base M	etal		
Sick-Break Ste	51563 XQ.	na lana garanti ini dina sa kana di kan	######################################				124444
CITES-Sectiona	1 Area O	1673 Tp 2 0	1657 7- 2			**************************************	-
Se. of Gas Poe	kets Per	<u>, 1073 111.</u> <u>U</u>	.100/ 111.		and the second secon	and the second	and the support of the support
Sis Proven us		<u> </u>	0	- States Television production			*****
DIPERSION SXC	eeding 1/15 In.	0	0				
	S Greater Depts and the Wall	0	n				
Complete Penet	TELION	Yes	Yes				1998 - Day and Parline
Complete Fusio	22	Yes	Yes				
Remarks on Mas	k-dreak Tests	No porosity o	r inclusio	ons which	excee	a coce .	limits.
Rezerks on Be:	zā Teszs	No visibile d	efects.	an de la companya de La companya de la comp			
						ار بر با استان بیر بار استان بر بسیاست. این به استان البر بر بر بار این است. بر استان ا	
S Proced			l itying-Test : Test	<u></u>	R	Cartifiet - Disqualifie	
Tess Hade As	2120 /Da	na Ave.		D	s <u>te</u>	9-26-77	
Cartified Br	ne Lincinna	tl Gas & Elec	tric Caso	errised By _	G. W.	warren	
Title	in upie	Kan Engat					
	10-1-17	<u> </u>					

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

GAS OPERATIC

	`	501-2
G PROCEDURE FROM 2 3/8" L THICKNESS 0"	SA-II-A-II TO, AND INC 0.188" TO,	FOR STEED LUDING, BUT NOT
mm) TO 1/16" (.79 mm T	0 1.59 mm)	

6

	SUED 10/1/	77 REVISION N	IC 1 STAN	DARD WELDING	PROCEDURE	SA-II-A-II FOR	S
	APPROVED	APPROVED		WITH O.D. FI	THICKNESS	TO, AND INCLUD	N N
	RBG/HRM	DATE 8	/8/83 INCL	UDING, 0.250	π		
		APPROX. 1/16	(1.59 mm)	1/16" (1.50 m 1/32" T 1/32" T 1/16" ± 1/32 VEL BUTT JOINT	m) O 1/16" (.79 mm 7 " (1.59 mm ± .79 r	"O 1.59 mm) mm)	
		4 ⊤ ↓	SEQUENCE OF	BEADS	APPROX. 1/8" (3.1	7 mm)	
			ELECTR	DDE SIZE & NUMBERS	OF BEADS		
				NUMBER OF BEADS			
	_	PIPE WALL THICKNESS	1/8" ELECTRODE	*5/32" ELECTRODE	*3/16" ELECTRODE	TOTAL NUMBER OF BEADS	
		0.219	1	2 .	0	3	
		NOTE: FIRST P REMAIN COVER	ASS ONLY IING PASSES USE 1 BEAD MAY BE MAI	1/8" 5/32" DE WITH * 3/16"	aanagmagaa kan joo kapaa ayka maraada	12201122 210002010010101010101010100000000	
	±	- Maximum s	izes - Smaller	r diameter elect	rodes may be	used.	
			DY	ILTAGE & AMPERAGE	RANGE		
		ELECTRODE D	IAMETER	AMPERAGE		ARC VOLTS	•
		3/32		50 - 75 75 100		19 - 21	
		T/8	n .	90 - 150 90 - 150		19 - 21	
,		3/16		130 - 100	andreas for the goals of the constraints of the constraints	19 - 21	-
	an						

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

-

ISSUED 10/1/77 APPROVED RBG/HRM	REVISION NO. 1 STANDARD APPROVED 12 3/4" A DATE B/8/83 INCLUDING	WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDING, ND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT , 0.250"
1.0 <u>Quali</u> The t weldi	lication of Welding Pro est weld made under thing ng procedure for weldir	<u>cedure:</u> s specification shall qualify the g on pipelines:
<u>Mat</u> 42,000	psi and less) (2 3/8 includ 12 3/4	to and (0.188" to but not ing including 0.250") ")
1.01	Test Coupon: The test coupon shall 12 3/4" O.D. API 5L,	be: Gr. B, 0.219" Wall.
1.02	Welding Procedure Reco	ords:
	Records of the pipe jo be recorded in detail (Pages 4 & 5) and sha construction, except 4 authorized by the Pipe	oint welding procedure shall on the forms herein provided Il be adhered to during subsequent where a change is specifically Eline Engineer.
1.03	Welding Procedure Ess	ential Variables:
	This welding procedure a new procedure special completely re-qualified listed below are made other than those gives procedure without the provided the specific changes:	e shall be re-established as fication and shall be ad when any of the changes in the procedure. Changes a below may be made in the necessity for re-qualification, ation is revised to show these
	(a) Change in Weldin	g process.
	(b) Change in pipe m and 5LX Grade 42 in excess of Gra	etal. (From ASTM or API 5L groups to API 5LX groups de X42 and vice versa.)
- ' 		

٠

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Managara State

7

501-:

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISIO	N NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEI
APPROVED	APPRON	ÆD	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE	8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
	(c)	Change i U-groove of the v consider	in joint design. (From V-groove to e, etc. Changes in the dimensions welding groove, however, are not red essential variables.)
	(d)	Change : (A chang vice ve:	in position (for butt welds only). ge from vertical to horizontal or rsa.)
	(e)	Change : (For group to diamete: combination welds, group to	in pipe size and wall thickness. pove welds, a change from one r group - wall thickness group tion to another and for fillet a change from one wall thickness o another group.)
1	(f)	Change classif Page 23	in filler metal. (From one ication group to another. See .)
	(g)	Change	in filler metal size.
	(h)	Decreas	e in number of root bead welders.
	(i)	Change second	in time lapse between root and bead.
	(j)	Change- Vertica	in direction. (Vertical-down to l-up or vice versa.)
	(k)	Change another differe	in shielding gas. (From one gas to , from one mixture of gases to a ent mixture of the same gases.)
	(1)	Change in flow	in flow rate. (Decrease or increase v rate.)
	(m)	Change or size	in shielding flux. (Change in type e of flux particles.)
	(n)	Major d	change in speed of travel.

٠

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

1

501-2

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
2.0 Quali	fication Test	<u>.</u>
Two p detai	ipe nipples s ls of the pro	hall be joined by following all of the cedure specification.
2.01	Compliance w	ith Procedure Specification:
	The welding and welding procedure sp	process, pipe material, filler metal procedure shall comply with the ecification.
2.02	<u>Test Pipe Ma</u>	terial:
•	The pipe mat the same dia specificatio	erial shall consist of pipe nipples of meter group, wall thickness group, and ons as the pipe used in the line.
2.03	Welding Tech	mique and Speed:
	The weld sha technique, a arc-welding	all be made using the same welding and with approximately the same speed to be used in actual line work.
2.04	Test Specime	en - Number and Type:
	The type and follows:	number of test specimens shall be as
		Number of Specimens
Pipe Diamo 20" C	Size, Outside eter - Inches	Nick Root Face Side <u>Tensile Break Bend Bend Bend Total</u> 2 2 2 2 0 8
Gr. E	, 0.250" Wall	
2.05	Test Specime	en - Removal and Preparation:
	Test specime on Page 18 on Pages 19	ens shall be removed as shown and shall be prepared for test as shown & 20.
2.06	Test Require	ements:

The full section specimen shall be tested in accordance with Section 2.071 and it shall meet the requirements of that section.

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

1

501-2

115SUED 10/1/77	7 REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEE
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
2.07	7 Tensile Str The specime 9" long and oxygen-cut unless the If necessar that the si Tensile tes tensile load the load at strength sh maximum load area of the applied. The tensile fusion zone greater that strength of equal or gr	ength: ns (Page 20) shall be approximately 1 " wide. They may be machine-cut or and no other preparation is needed sides are notched or are not parallel. ry, the specimens shall be machined so des are smooth and parallel. at specimens shall be broken under ad with equipment capable of measuring t which failure occurs. The tensile hall be computed by dividing the ad at failure by the least cross-sectional e specimen as measured before load is e strength of the weld including the e of each specimen shall be equal to or an the specified minimum tensile f the pipe material, but need not be reater than the actual tensile strength
	of the pipe outside the pipe mater: minimum ter weld shall If the spe and the ob than the s pipe mater soundness (Par. 2.08 meeting th	e material. If the specimen breaks e weld and fusion zone; i.e., in parent ial, and meets the specification nsile strength requirements then the be accepted as meeting the requirements. cimen breaks in the weld or fusion zone served strength is equal to or greater pecified minimum tensile strength of the ial and meets the requirements for as set forth in the Nick-Break Test 4), then the weld shall be accepted as e requirements.
2.	If the spe tensile st weld shall 08 <u>Nick Break</u>	cimen breaks below the specified minimum rength of the pipe material, then the be set aside and a new test weld made.
	The specin 9" long an oxygen-cut on each si notch shal	Thens (Page 19) shall be approximately and 1" wide and they may be machine-cut or they shall be notched with a hacksaw and at the center of the weld and each and be approximately 1/8" deep.

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.,,,,,

j,

ISSUED10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
	2.081 N manner from w semi-automati pipe instead experience in are to be exp may be notcher measured from	lick-break specimens prepared in this relds made with certain automatic and c processes may fail through the of the weld. When previous testing adicates failures through the pipe bected, the external reinforcement ed to a depth not to exceed 1/16" a the original weld surface.
	2.082 qualifying a automatic wel prior to the should be use	The nick-break specimens intended for procedure using a semi-automatic or lding process may be macro etched ir being nicked. Ammonium persulfate ed as the etchant.
	2.083 pulling in a ends and str: one end and The exposed least 3/4" w	The specimens shall be broken by tensile machine by supporting the iking the center, or by supporting striking the other end with a hammer. area of the fracture shall be at ide.
	2.084 shall show c (a) there sh per sq. in. dimension no inclusions s nor 1/8" or in length, w be at least adjacent inc measured as	The exposed surfaces of each specimen omplete penetration and fusion and: all be no more than six gas pockets of surface area with the greatest t to exceed 1/16", (b) slag hall not be more than 1/32" in depth one-half the nominal wall thickness hichever is shorter, and there shall 1/2" of sound weld metal between lusions. The dimensions should be shown in Appendix L.
2.09	Root and Fac	e Bend Test:
	The specimen long by 1" w rounded. Th The cover an removed flus	is (Page 20) shall be at least 8" vide and the long edges shall be by may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut. Ind root bead reinforcement shall be sh with the surface of the specimen.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	which exist weld.	shall be light and transverse to the

GAS OPERATI

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

•

TO/ 1/ 1/	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-11-A-11 FOR 3
APPROVED	APPROVED	-PIPE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDIN
	DATE 0 (0 (02	INCLUDING 0 250
KBG/HRM	8/8/83	
	2.091 T guided bend t Appendix H. die with the specimens sha weld directed specimens sha weld directed be forced in specimen is a 2.092 S acceptable is 1/8" or 1/2 is smaller, weld or betwo after bending edges of the are less that not be consid observed. Es test shall ma	The specimens shall be bent in a test jig similar to that shown in Each specimen shall be placed on the weld at mid span. Face bend all be placed with the face of the i toward the gap and root bend all be placed with the root of the i toward the gap. The plunger shall to the gap until the curvature of the approximately U-shaped. The bend test shall be considered in o crack or other defect exceeding the nominal wall thickness, whichever in any direction is present in the sen the weld and the fusion zone g. Cracks which originate along the specimen during testing and which n 1/4" measured in any direction shall dered unless obvious defects are ach specimen subjected to the bend eet these requirements.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-2

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE	SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL TO, AND INCLUDING,
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS	0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"	•

3.0 Production Welding:

This specification shall apply to field welding of new steel pipe or used steel pipe that has been visually examined with care and found to be in good condition, free from split seams or other defects that would cause leakage and provided that weldability has been established either by proof that the pipe has been manufactured in accordance with one of the pipe material specifications listed on Page 24 or by gualification under the provisions of OPSO, Appendix "B", Section II "Steel Pipe of Unknown or Unlisted Specification". 3.01 Welding Machines:

Welding machines shall be operated within the amperage and voltage ranges recommended for each size and type of electrode (Page 17). Gas welding equipment shall be operated with the flame characteristics and tip sizes given in the qualified welding procedure.

3.011 Welding machines and their accessories shall be of size and type suitable for the work and shall be maintained in such condition as to make acceptable welds possible and to assure continuity of operation and safety of personnel.

3.02 Other Equipment:

Hoisting equipment, cutting and beveling equipment, line-up clamps, and hand tools shall be maintained in such condition as to make acceptable welds possible, and to assure continuity of operation and safety of personnel.

3.03 Repair and Replacement:

Any equipment which does not meet these requirements shall be repaired or replaced.

3.04 Welding:

The welding of piping in accordance with this specification shall be performed by qualified welders using qualified procedures. The surfaces to be welded shall be smooth, uniform, free of fins, laminations, tears, scale, slag, grease, paint and other deleterious material which might adversely affect the welding. The joint design and spacing between abutting ends shall be in accordance with the welding procedure specification to be used.

501-2

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY ND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

200

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE	SA-II-A-II FOR STEE
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS	0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/IIRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"	•

3.041 All position welds shall be made with the parts to be joined secured against movement and with adequate clearance around the joint to allow the welder or welders space in which to work.

3.042 The number of beads shall be such that the completed weld shall have a substantially uniform cross section around the entire circumference of the pipe. At no point shall the crown surface be below the outside surface of the pipe, nor should it be raised above the parent metal by more than 1/16".

3.043 Two beads shall not be started at the same location. The face of the completed weld should be approximately 1/8" greater than the width of the original groove. The completed weld shall be thoroughly brushed and cleaned.

3.05 Alignment:

The alignment of the abutting ends shall be such as to minimize the offset between surfaces. For pipe of the same nominal wall thickness, the offset shall not exceed 1/16". Any greater offset, provided it is caused by dimensional variations, shall be equally distributed around the circumference of the pipe. Hammering of the pipe to obtain proper lineup should be held to a minimum.

3.06 Clamps:

Line-up clamps shall be used in accordance with the requirements of the procedure specification. When it is permissible to remove the line-up clamp before completion of the root bead, the completed part of this bead shall be in approximately equal segments and these shall be approximately equally spaced around the circumference of the joint.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

p²

the joint.

501-2

SSUED 10/1/7	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
	However, when and condition movement of t unduly stress before releas segments used shall be unif of the pipe a of not less t circumference	an internal line-up clamp is used as make it difficult to prevent the pipe, or if the weld will be ed, the root bead shall be completed ing clamp tension. Root bead in connection with external clamps formly spaced around the circumference and shall have an accumulative length than 50 per cent of the pipe a before the clamp may be removed.
3.07	Bevels:	
	Pipe ends sha conforming to procedure spe	all be provided with mill bevels the joint design used in the welding ecification.
	3.071 P machine tool oxygen cuttin by the Engine reasonably sm shall be in a procedure.	Pipe ends should be field beveled by or machine oxygen cutting. Manual og may also be used if so authorized eer. The beveled ends shall be mooth and uniform, and dimensions accordance with the qualified welding
3.08	Weather Condi	tions:
	Welding shall completed wel weather condi airborne mois Windshields m Engineer shal suitable for	I not be done when the quality of the Id would be impaired by the prevailing Itions, including but not limited to sture, blowing sands, or high winds. may be used when practical. The Il decide if weather conditions are welding.
3.09	Clearance:	· ·
	When the pipe clearance are be less than trench, the l to provide the	e is welded above ground, the working ound the pipe at the weld should not 16". When the pipé is welded in the bell hole shall be of sufficient size he welder or welders ready access to

.

.-

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

•

Server all

501-2

		-PIPE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDING,
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
3.10	<u>Cleaning:</u> Scale and sla and groove. hand or power	ag shall be removed from each bead Cleaning may be done with either r tools.
3.11	Inspection:	. ·
	The quality of by either des Inspection man operation or Any weld not specification	of production welds will be determined structive or non-destructive methods. ay be made both during the welding after the weld has been completed. meeting the requirements of this n shall be rejected.
. 3.12	Defects:	
	Defects, exc beads may be by the Engin cover pass, Cracks shall meet the Sta destructive Edition, cur	ept cracks, in the root and filler repaired with prior authorization eer. Defects, except cracks in the may be repaired without authorization. not be repaired. All repairs shall ndards of Acceptability - Non- Testing, Par. 6.0 API Standard 1104, rently accepted by OPSO.
	3.121 defects shal All slag and metal. All wire brushin required.	Before repairs are made, injurious I be entirely removed to clean metal. I scale shall be removed to clean slag and scale shall be removed by ng. Preheating of such an area is
	3.122 re-radiogram previously u allowed in t	Such repaired areas shall be phed, or inspected by the same means used. No further repairs shall be these areas.
	3.123 a weld conta	The Engineer may re-inspect all of aining a repair in the same manner as

-

GAS OPERATI

٠

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

đ

2.

2

	PP PA MARK		7	MANDARD HEIDING BROCEDURE	CA-TT-A-TT POP	mper
1350EC 10/1/11	HEVISIC	IN NO.	T	PIPE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8"	TO, AND INCLUDI	NG,
APPROVED	APPRO	VED		12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS	0.188" TO, BUT 1	TOM
RBG/HRM	DATE	8/8/	′83	INCLUDING, 0.250"		
				-		
				• •		
:						
			ADD	ENDIX TO WELDING PROCEDURE		
				-		

501-2

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

. 32

-

·_...

-

	······································				501
ISSUED 10/1/7	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDI	NG PROCEDU	RE SA-II	-A-II FOR ST
APPROVED	APPROVED	PIPE WITH O.D.	FROM 2 3/3	8" TO, A	ND INCLUDING
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.2	250"	55 0.100	IU, BUI NO
	1				
		Table 1			
	Elec	trode Type and	l Size for		
	Manual	Shielded Metal	Arc Proces		
			ALC FLOCES		
	Pipe Wall	Thickness		Pass	Pod
	(Incl	nes)	Passes	No.	Size
I.	5/32 (.156)	to 7/32 (.219)	3]	1/8
	inclusive	,	·	2	5/32
				3	5/32
			_		•
11.	1/4 (.250)		3	1	5/32
				2	5/32
				2	3/10
III.	9/32 (.281)	£ 5/16 (.312)	4	1	5/32
				2	5/32
				3	3/16
				4	3/16
IV.	11/32 (.344)	£ 3/8 (.375)	5	۲	5/33
		, - (1,	2	2	5/32
				3	3/16
				4	3/16
	· • ·			5	3/16
Note	<u>1:</u> All elect E 6010 or	rodes are to b E 7010.	e A.W.S. ap	proved	
Note	2: Minimum n	umber of passe	s. Addition	nal pass	es
	may be ap	brreg.			
Note	: 3: Smaller d	iameter electr	odes may be	used.	
			-		
		Table 2			
	Electrod	e Current and	Voltage Ran	des	
				R.	
	E	6010	E 7010		
Elec	trode Curren	it (Amps) Cur	rent (Amps)	Vo	lts
Si	ze <u>Min</u> .	Max. Mi	n. Max.	Min.	Max.
3,	/32" 50	- 75 - 5	0 - 75	19	- 21
1,	/8" 75	- 100 7	5 - 100	19	- 21
5,	/32" 90	- 150 9	0 - 150	10	- 21

3/16" 130 - 200 130 - 200 19 - 21

GAS OPERA1

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

il.



THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES



THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES



GAS OPERATI

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.

7

		501-2
ISSUED10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEE
APPROVED	APPROVED	12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"
	RADI	US OF PLUNGER A = 1 3/4 INCHES (44.45 mm)
	RADI	US OF DIE B = 2 5/16 INCHES (58.74 mm)
	WIDT	H OF DIE C = 2 INCHES (50.8 mm)
	\leq	
	/	
	/	
	1	
	L	
	\leq	
		FIGURE 5
		JIG FOR GUIDED BEND TESTS (NOT TO SCALE)
•	-	· ·
	ISSUED 10/1/77 APPROVED RBG/HRM	ISSUED 1 0/1/77 REVISION NO. 1 APPROVED APPROVED RBG/HRM DATE 8/8/83 RADI RADI

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

,

*

5	n	7	-	2
_	v	-		6.

r		TTATAT THE PROCEDURE CALTER TTATE OF CHEFT					
ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	FIRE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDING,					
APPROVED	APPROVED 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT						
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250					
1/2*	(12.7 mm) MIN.	MAX. DEPTH 1/32" L79 mm) MAX. LENGTH 1/8" (3.17 mm) OR 1/2 X WALL THICKNESS					

٩

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-

	<u> </u>			and the second	501-
ISSUED 10/1/	77 REVISION N	$\frac{10.1}{10}$	NDARD WELDING	PROCEDURE	SA-II-A-II FOR STE
APPROVED	APPROVED	12	3/4" AND WALL	THICKNESS	0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/	8/83 IN	CLUDING, 0.250	7	
		Filler Meta	l Classification G	iroups	
Group	ASTM Spec.*	AWS Spec. *	Shielding Gas	Electrode	Remarks
I	233-64 2316-64	Д5.1-64 Д5.5-64		EXX10 EXX11	
II	A233-64 A316-64	λ5.1-64 λ5.5-64		EXX15 EXX16 EXX18	
IV	A559-65	A5.18-6 5	Argon and Oxygen	2605-1 E605-2 E605-3	
_ v	L559-65	A5.1E-G5	Carbon Dioxide	EG03-2 EG03-3 E705-4 E705-5 E705-G	
VI	2559-65	A5.13-65	Not Specified	E705-G	Welding power not specified.
AII	2559-65	A5.18-65	Carbon Dioxide	E70T-1 E70T-2 E70T-5	
VIII	≿ 559-65	A5.18-65	No Shielding	570T-3 570T-4 570T-5	
IX	A559-65	A5.18-65	Not Specified	E70T-G	Welding power not specified.
X	2559-65	λ5.18-65	Argon or Argon and Oxygen	E70Ů-1	
IX	A251-66	A5.2-66		RG45 	

Note: Covering and filler metal types not listed above may be used but shall require separate welder qualification.

Sec. 15

معني

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-2

······································	فيهجونها والمتقافين والمستعاد المستعا أحميها الأفقا والمستقا الم	J01-2
ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-II-A-II FOR STEEL
APPROVED	APPROVED	PIPE WITH O.D. FROM 2 3/8" TO, AND INCLUDING, 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.188" TO, BUT NOT
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	INCLUDING, 0.250"

Specii	lication	Grade	Type (1)	SMYS (pa)
API	5L	A25	BW. ERN. S	25.000
API	5L	A	ERW, FW, S	30,000
API	5L	B	ERW, FW. S	35.000
API	5LS (2)	·A	ERW, ISA	30.000
APi	داد	B	ERW, DSA	35,000
API	5LS	X42	ERW, DSA	42.000
ЯLI	513	X46	ERW, PSA	46.000
API	515	X52	ERW, DSA	52.000
API	كاذ	X56	ERAC, DSA	56,000
API	51.5	X60	ERW, DSA	60.000
API	3LS	X65	ERW, PSA	63.000
API	5LX (2)	X42	ERN, FN, S. DSA	42.000
7 VI	5LN	X46	ERW, FW. S. DSA	46.000
API	3LX	X52	ERW, FW. S, DSA	52.000
API	5LX	X55	ERN, FW. S. DSA	56.000
AFI	3LX	N50	ERN, FW. S. DSA	60.000
API	5LN	X65	ERW, FW, S. DSA	G3.000
• API	5LX	707	ERW, FW, S, DSA	70,000
API	SLU	US0	S, DSA	80.000
- API	SLU	U100	S. DSA	100,000
AST	M A53	Open Hearth, Basic Oxygen, Elect. Furnace	BK.	25,900
A51	M ASJ	Bessemer	BW	30.000
AST	M .153	Α	ERW, S	30.000
AST	JI A5J	В	ERW, S	35.000
AST	M A106	A	S	30,000
45T	M A106	B	\$	33.000
	21 A 106	С	\$	40.000
251	MA135	A	ERW	30.000
251	M A 135	B	ERW	35.000
22	M A139	A	EFW	30.000
AST	31.3139	B	EFIC	35.000
221	M .\331		DSA	35,000
221	M A381		DSA	42.000
221	M A381	Class Y-16	DSA	46,000
221	IM A3\$1		DSA	43,000
251	Ci A 3 51	Class Y-30	DSA	50.00
AST	1887 171	Class Y-52	DSA	52.000
AS	IM A381	Class Y-56	DSA	56.000
AS	TM A381	Class Y-60	DS.V	60.000
AS	TM A381	Class Y-65	DSA	65.000
72	ГМ А134	—	EFW	(3)
۸5	TM A155		EFW	(3)
85	ТМ ЛЗЗЗ	1	S. ERW	30,000
AS	сеел ил	3	s, Erw	35,000
45	ты 4333	4	. 5	35,000
کہ ا	LN V122	6	S. ERW	35,000
AS	L71 Y223	7	, s. lirw	35.000
که ا	LTT VIJ1	8	S. ERW	75,000
٨S	TM A133	9	S.ERW	46.000
1 72	121 8539		ERW	\$5,000

NOTES . While these new API Pipe Specifications are in print, they have not yet been formally approved by the Department of Transportation, Office of Pipeline Salety.

(1) Abbrevision: BH - Furnace bust-welded: ERW - Electric resistance welded; S - Scamless: FW - Flash welore: EFN - Electric fusion welded; DSA - Double submerged-are welded.

(?) Intermediate grades are available in API 5LS and SLX.

(3) See applicable plate specification for SMYS.


STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE

SPECIFICATION NO. 501-3

COVERING

PROCESS GROUP SA	DIAMETER GROUP III	MATERIAL GROUP A	THICKNESS GROUP III

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER COMPANY

LAWRENCEBURG GAS COMPANY

GAS OPERATIC

501-3

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

bet -

SSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

I attest that the tests required by this document were performed and that the results of the tests were as indicated above.

) In which was

State of Ohio County of Hamilton

Before me, a Notary Public, in and for said county, personally appeared <u>George Winklarren</u> who being by me duly sworn deposes and says that the tests required by this document have been performed and says that the results of the tests were as indicated above.

Sworn to and subscribed in my presence this $\frac{3/e^{t}}{2}$ day of $\underline{M_{ds}}$, 1975.

Notezy/Public - 5 D. SPIESS

My Commission Expires March 31 1982

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

501-3

ISSUED 10/1/77 REVISION NO. APPROVED APPROVED RBG/HRM DATE 8/8/83		STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TG, BUT NOT INCLUDING, 0.344"					
							Forward
This stand forth:	ard welding pr	ocedure fulfills the requirements set					
Depar	tment of Trans	portation: Transportation of					
Natur Stand	al and Other G ards, Subpart	as by Pipeline Minimum Safety "E", Welding of Steel in Pipelines					
§192.	223 - General.						
For purpos following	es of identify grouping appli	ying welding procedure specification the les:					
Mater	ial Group	Application					
т. Ц	A I	All API 5L and ASTM Pipe Specifications having Specified Minimum Yield Strength of 42,000 psi or less.					
В		All API 5LX Pipe Specifications having Specified Minimum Yield Strengths between 42,000 psi and 60,000 psi.					
	C .	All API 5LX Pipe Specifications having a Specified Minimum Yield Strength 60,000 psi or greater.					
Diam	eter Group	Application					
	I	Pipe having O.D. less than 2 3/8".					
	II	Pipe having O.D. from 2 3/8", to and including 12 3/4".					
	III	Pipe having O.D. in excess of 12 3/4".					
<u>Chi</u>	kness Group	Application					
	ī	Less than .168".					
	II	.188" to but not including .250".					
	III	.250" to but not including .344".					
	IV	.344" to and including .500".					

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

-	2	•		•
~			_	
~	v	-		~

		501-3		
ISSUED 10/1/77 REVISION NO. 1 APPROVED APPROVED RBG/HRM DATE 8/8/83		STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING, 0.344"		
i				
Proc	cess Group	Application		
	SA	Manual Shielded Metal Arc Process		
	MIG	Semi-Automatic Consumable Electrode Inert-Gas-Shielded Process		
	0	Oxyacetylene Process		
		_		

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

÷

501-3

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

•

A.	Process: Manu	al Shielded Arc
в.	Material:	See Note "A"
c.	Diameter and Wall Thicknes	s: See Note "B"
D.	Joint Design:	V-Groove
E.	Filler Metal and Number of	Beads: Page 17, Table 1
F.	Electrical or Flame Charac	teristics: Page 17, Table 2
G.	Position:	Horizontal
-н.	Direction of Welding:	Vertical Down
	Number of Welders:	See Note "C"
Ĵ.	Time Lapse between Passes:	See Note "D"
K.	Type of Line-up Clamp:	See Note "E"
L.	Removal of Line-up Clamp:_	See Note "F"
M.	Cleaning:	See Note "G"
N.	Preheat, Stress Relief:	See Note "H"
0.	Shielding Gas and Flow Rat	e:Not Applicable
Ρ.	Shielding Flux:	Page 23
Q.	Speed of Travel:	4 to 12 Inches Per Minute
R.	Sketches and Tabulations:	(See Pages 4 & 5)
	-	
Te	sted:	By: Konne (liane
200	(Date)	And May
νĿ	(Date)	uperating to the term
"	opted: (c. 1-)7	Pipeline Engr.: 2. L. Chemprui

(Date)	
Certified by: K. Killimstor P.G	Revised 8/2/93
Title: Trine of the Print	Cae Oper Cal Sa

•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

		501-
ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AN WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING.
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"
Notes to	Page 1:	
- A	Material: F and all pipe having Speci and less.	Pipe API Specification, a furnished under API and ASTM lfied Minimum Yield Strengths 42,000 psi
в -	Diameter and and all diam wall thickne	<u>A Wall Thickness:</u> 20" O.D. 0.250" wall meters greater than 12 3/4" and all esses from 0.250" to but not including 0.344".
с -	Number of We	elders:
	Minimum Root Minimum Seco	t Bead Welders: 1 ond Bead Welders: 1
D -	Time Lapse I metal arc we application pass shall I cleaning of second, this cleaning we move along shall be con to ambient If the weld ambient tem shall be con weld not con shall be cu the MIG pro for complet temperature	Between Passes: During manual shielded elding, the time interval between of the root bead and second or "hot" be the minimum time required for thorough the root bead. A delay between the rd and succeeding passes, sufficient for lds and allowing welders and equipment to the line, will be permitted. All welds mpleted without allowing the work to cool temperature between successive passes. cannot be completed without cooling to perature, the final phases of the weld mpleted as directed by the Engineer. Any mpleted as specified in this paragraph t out of the line. If welding is done by cess, no special provisions are required ion if the weld cools to ambient between passes.
E	- <u>Line-Up Clar</u> butt-welds impracticab fillet weld for butt we and interna 14" and lar	mps: Line-Up Clamps are to be used on all except for certain fittings where it is le. Line-Up Clamps are not required for s. External line-up clamps should be used lding pipe sizes to and including l2-inch l type clamps should be used for pipe sizes ger.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-3

_JED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING.
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

Notes to Page 1: (Cont'd.)

- F <u>Removal of Line-Up Clamp</u>: In no case shall the line-up clamp be removed before 20% of the root bead, uniformaly distributed around the circumference, is completed.
- G <u>Cleaning</u>: All slag, protrusions of filler metal from the preceding pass, pin holes and similar defects shall be removed before depositing the next pass. For this operation a power grinder or a hand or power driven diamond point or round nose chisel shall be used.
- Preheating and Stress Relief: Not normally н – required for work performed under this specification, except that under field conditions when the ambient temperature is less than 32° F., local preheating to a hand-hot condition shall be required. API 5L, and API 5LX pipe shall be preheated to a minimum temperature of 200° F., when the ambient temperature is less than 32° F. The preheat temperature shall be checked by use of . temperature indicating crayons, and shall be maintained until the weld is completed. Preheating may be accomplished by any suitable method, provided that it is uniform and that the temperature does not fall below the prescribed minimum during the actual welding operations.

Preheating is required to remove moisture from the pipe prior to welding.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

UNIT

f

	ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO.	1 STAND	ARD WELDING I	PROCEDURE SA-1	III-A-III FOR		
	APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL WALL	PIPE WITH O. THICKNESS 0.2	.D. GREATER TH 250" TO, BUT N	HAN 12 3/4" AND NOT INCLUDING,		
	RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344	π	•	•		
					Procedure N	.SA III A III		
					Test N	la. 2-77		
	Location	2120 Dana A	lve.		Date	5-2-77		
	Contractor	N/A				N /A		
Date of Weld 5-2-77 Roll Weld N/A Fixed Part						6-0		
Welder R. Kallmyer					K-3	0-0		
Welding Time <u>45 Min.</u> Time of Day <u>2:00 P.M.</u> Temperature <u>75</u>								
					N/A			
	Nake of Welding	Machine I	Lincoln		Size	300		
	eread of Electro	Lincoln	Volt	21	·	190		
	Pipe Mfr.	U.S. Ste	eel		Pize Specification	APT ST. Gr. B		
	Wall Thickness	0.250" pi	ia. p.p. 20"	¥+. /T+. 5	2.7 1b/Ft-	Nipple		
	Bead No.		1 2	3	4 5	6 7		
	Jize of Electro	de	5/32 5/3	2 5/32				
	So. of Electrod	e <u>E</u>	<u>6010 E601</u>	<u>0 E6010</u>				
e			Constants of a local distant designation on the second					
t N	lensile Specime	a %o.	329-0 250	- <u>12</u>	73	1 224-0 250		
-		imensions I.	332 In.2	$\frac{1.331 \times 0.230}{0.332}$	1.294×0.250	1.334×0.250		
	Meximm Load	25	,000 lb.	28,000 lb.	25,000 lb	25,000 1b		
	Tensile Strengt	a 75	.3011b/In	$\frac{2}{84.3371}$ b/Tn	2 77.1601b/In	$\frac{2}{74.4041}$ /In ²		
	Ave. Tensile St Remarks on Tens	irength	8001b/1n.	- Failura in	Basa Matal			
					Dase Meldi.			
	Nick-Steak Ster	1300 50	1 T	er 7				
	Crass-Sectional	Area 0	$\frac{3}{202}$ $\tau = 2$	<u> </u>				
	DI BIELA	U .	203 In	0.200 In.	0.221 ln	0.204 In		
	Se. In.		0	0	0	0		
	Gas Pockets vis	th Greatest eding 1/16 h.	0	0	0	0		
	Siz; Inclusion	Greeter						
	1/d Ia. cr 4	the Wall	0	0	0	0		
	Complete Penet	facion	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
	Complete Fusio	G	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
	Remarks on The	K-Break Tests N	o porosit	y or inclusio	ns which exce	ed code limits.		
	Remarks on Ben	d Tesas N	o visible	defects				
	77 2			0				
	G Weiter			Line Test	X	; callle: } Disqualified		
ł	est Made At	2120 r	Dana Ave.		5	-2-77		
Ĩ	ested By Th	e Cincinnat	I Gas & E	lectric Co.se	ervises byG.	W. warren		
	Tile 1	the sea .	atter p. l					
	3418	6-1-77	<i>f</i> `_					
	1.							

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

-	~	-	-
<u></u>		•	 ٩.
~	~	-	-

-

h.					201.	
ISSUED 10/1/77	7 REVISION NO	1 ST	ANDARD WELDIN	G PROCEDURE	SA-III-A-III FOR	
APPROVED	APPROVED	ST	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AN			
DRC /UDM	DATE Q/	WA	LL THICKNESS	0.250" TO, E	BUT NOT INCLUDING	
REGATIGA	DATE 0/	6/83 0.				
	APPROX. 1/16"	(1.59 mm)	- 1/16" (1.50) 1/32" - 1/36" ± 1/3 EVEL BUTT JOINT	nm) TO 1/16" (.79 mm TO 2" (1.69 mm <u>+</u> .79 mm - APPROX. 1/8" (3.17	1.59 mm)	
		SEQUENCE (DF BEADS			
	MPE WALL	ELECT 1/8" ELECTRODE	RODE SIZE & NUMBER NUMBER OF BEAD *5/32" ELECTRODE	SOF BEADS S *3/16" ELECTRODE	TOTAL NUMBER OF BEADS	
C).250"	0	3	0	3	
	NOTE: FIRST P REMAIN COVER	ASS ONLY ING PASSES USE BEAD MAY BE M/	5/ *5/ ADE WITH *3/	/32 " /32 " /16 "		
*Maximum size - smaller diameter electrodes may be used. VOLTAGE & AMPERAGE RANGE						
	ELECTRODE D	IAMETER	AMPERAGE		ARC VOLTS	
	3/32	1	50- 75		19-21	
	1/8"	-	75-100		19-21	
	5/32	**	90-150		19-21	
	2/ TO		T20-500		エラームエ	

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

501 - 359e. ISSUED 10/1/77 REVISION NO. 1 STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GFEATER THAN 12 3/4" AND APPROVED APPROVED WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING, DATE 0.344" RBG/HPM 8/8/83 1.0 Qualification of Welding Procedure: The test weld made under this specification shall qualify the welding procedure for welding on pipelines: Material Group Diameter Group Thickness Group 42,000 psi and less) (Greater than (0.250" to but not $12 \ 3/4"$ including 0.344") 1.01 Test Coupon: The test coupon shall be: 20" O.D. API 5L, Gr. B, 0.250" Wall. 1.02 Welding Procedure Records: Records of the pipe joint welding procedure shall be recorded in detail on the forms herein provided (Pages 4 & 5) and shall be adhered to during subsequent construction, except where a change is specifically authorized by the Pipeline Engineer. 1.03 Welding Procedure Essential Variables: This welding procedure shall be re-established as a new procedure specification and shall be completely re-qualified when any of the changes listed below are made in the procedure. Changes other than those given below may be made in the procedure without the necessity for re-qualification, provided the specification is revised to show these changes: (a) Change in welding process. (b) Change in pipe metal. (From ASTM or API 5L and 5LX Grade 42 groups to API 5LX groups in excess of Grade X42 and vice versa.)

D G

IE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

SUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
PPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO. BUT NOT INCLUDING.
RDG/11HM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

- (c) Change in joint design. (From V-groove to U-groove, etc. Changes in the dimensions of the welding groove, however, are not considered essential variables.)
- (d) Change in position (for butt welds only).(A change from vertical to horizontal or vice versa.)
- (e) Change in pipe size and wall thickness. (For groove welds, a change from one diameter group - wall thickness group combination to another and for fillet welds, a change from one wall thickness group to another group.)
- (f) Change in filler metal. (From one classification group to another. See Page 23,)
- (g) Change in filler metal size.
- (h) Decrease in number of root bead welders.
- (i) Change in time lapse between root and second bead.
- (j) Change in direction. (Vertical-down to Vertical-up or vice versa.)
- (k) Change in shielding gas. (From one gas to another, from one mixture of gases to a different mixture of the same gases.)
- (m) Change in shielding flux. (Change in type or size of flux particles.)
- (n) Major change in speed of travel.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-3

in							501-3
ISSUED 10/1/7	7 REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD V	NELDING	PROCE	DURE S	A-III-A	A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT TH					2 3/4" ANI	
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"			10, 20	I NOT 1	INCLUDING,
2.0 <u>Qual</u> Two deta	ification Test pipe nipples s ils of the pro	: hall be joi cedure spoo	.ned by	follow	ving a	ll of t	the
2.01	Compliance w	ith Procedu	ire Spe	cifica	tion:		
	The welding and welding procedure sp	process, pi procedure s ecification	lpe mat shall c 1.	erial, omply	fille with t	r meta he	1
2.02	<u>Test Pipe Ma</u>	terial:					
a	The pipe mat the same dia specificatio	cerial shall meter group ons as the p	l consi p, wall pipe us	st of thick ed in	pipe n ness g the li	ipples roup, ne.	of and
2.03	Welding Technique and Speed:						
- 2.0	The weld sha technique, a arc-welding Test Specime	ill be made and with app speed to be an - Number	using proxima e used and Ty	the sa tely t in act	me wel he sum ual li	ding c ne wor	k.
	The type and follows:	l number of	test s	pecime	ns sha	ll be	ĒS
			Numbe	er of S	peciae	ns	
Pip Dia	e Size, Outsid meter - Inches	2 <u>Tensile</u>	Nick <u>Break</u>	Root Bend	Face Bend	Side Bend	Total
20" Gr.	O.D. API 5L B, 0.250" Wall	4	4	4	4	0	16
2.0	5 <u>Test Specim</u>	en - Remova	1 and 1	Prepara	tion:		
	Test specim Page 18 on Pages 19	ens shall b and shall b & 20.	e remov e prepa	ved as ared fo	shown or test	on as sl	own
2.0	6 Test Recuir	cments:					

The full section specimen shall be tested in accordance with Section 2.071 and it shall meet the requirements of that section.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-3

٦	ISSUED10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
	APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
	RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

2.07 Tensile Strength:

The specimens (Page 20 ; shall be approximately 9" long and 1" wide. They may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut and no other preparation is needed unless the sides are notched or are not parallel. If necessary, the specimens shall be machined so that the sides are smooth and parallel.

Tensile test specimens shall be broken under tensile load with equipment capable of measuring the load at which failure occurs. The tensile strength shall be computed by dividing the maximum load at failure by the least cross-sectional area of the specimen as measured before load is applied.

The tensile strength of the weld including the fusion zone of each specimen shall be equal to or greater than the specified minimum tensile strength of the pipe material, but need not be equal or greater than the actual tensile strength of the pipe material. If the specimen breaks outside the weld and fusion zone; i.e., in parent pipe material, and meets the specification minimum tensile strength requirements then the weld shall be accepted as meeting the requirements.

If the specimen breaks in the weld or fusion zone and the observed strength is equal to or greater than the specified minimum tensile strength of the pipe material and meets the requirements for soundness as set forth in the Nick-Break Test (Par. 2.084), then the weld shall be accepted as meeting the requirements.

If the specimen breaks below the specified minimum tensile strength of the pipe material, then the weld shall be set aside and a new test weld made.

2.08 Nick Break Test:

-

The specimens (p_{age} 19) shall be approximately 9" long and 1" wide and they may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut. They shall be notched with a hacksaw on each side at the center of the weld and each notch shall be approximately 1/8" deep.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

weld.

501-3 STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR ISSUED 10/1/77 REVISION NO. 1 STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND APPROVED APPROVED WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING, 0.344" DATE 8/8/83 RBG/HRM 2.081 Nick-break specimens prepared in this manner from welds made with certain automatic and semi-automatic processes may fail through the pipe instead of the weld. When previous testing experience indicates failures through the pipe are to be expected, the external reinforcement may be notched to a depth not to exceed 1/16" measured from the original weld surface. 2.082 The nick-break specimens intended for qualifying a procedure using a semi-automatic or automatic welding process may be macro etched prior to their being nicked. Ammonium persulfate should be used as the etchant. 2.083 The specimens shall be broken by pulling in a tensile machine by supporting the ends and striking the center, or by supporting one end and striking the other end with a hammer. The exposed area of the fracture shall be at least 3/4" wide. 2.084 The exposed surfaces of each specimen shall show complete penetration and fusion and: (a) there shall be no more than six gas pockets per sq. in. of surface area with the greatest dimension not to exceed 1/16", (b) slag inclusions shall not be more than 1/32" in depth nor 1/8" or one-half the nominal wall thickness in length, whichever is shorter, and there shall be at least 1/2" of sound weld metal between adjacent inclusions. The dimensions should be measured as shown in Appendix L. 2.09 Root and Face Bend Test: The specimens (Page 20) shall be at least 8" long by 1" wide and the long edges shall be rounded. They may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut. The cover and root bead reinforcement shall be removed flush with the surface of the specimen. These surfaces shall be smooth and any scratches which exist shall be light and transverse to the

HE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

5	n	٦.	-	3
_	v	-		J

SUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
PPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/IIRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

2.091 The specimens shall be bent in a guided bend test jig similar to that shown in Appendix H. Each specimen shall be placed on the die with the weld at mid span. Face bend specimens shall be placed with the face of the weld directed toward the gap and root bend specimens shall be placed with the root of the weld directed toward the gap. The plunger shall be forced into the gap until the curvature of the specimen is approximately U-shaped.

2.092 The bend test shall be considered acceptable if no crack or other defect exceeding 1/8" or 1/2 the nominal wall thickness, whichever is smaller, in any direction is present in the weld or between the weld and the fusion zone after bending. Cracks which originate along the edges of the specimen during testing and which are less than 1/4" measured in any direction shall not be considered unless obvious defects are observed. Each specimen subjected to the bend test shall meet these requirements.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

501-3

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/IIRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

3.0 Production Welding:

This specification shall apply to field welding of new steel pipe or used steel pipe that has been visually examined with care and found to be in good condition, free from split seams or other defects that would cause leakage and provided that weldability has been established either by proof that the pipe has been manufactured in accordance with one of the pipe material specifications listed on Page 24 or by qualification under the provisions of OPSO, Appendix "B", Section II "Steel Pipe of Unknown or Unlisted Specification". 3.01 Welding Machines:

Welding machines shall be operated within the amperage and voltage ranges recommended for each size and type of electrode (Page 17). Gas welding equipment shall be operated with the flame characteristics and tip sizes given in the qualified welding procedure.

3.011 Welding machines and their accessories shall be of size and type suitable for the work and shall be maintained in such condition as to make acceptable welds possible and to assure continuity of operation and safety of personnel.

3.02 Other Equipment:

Hoisting equipment, cutting and beveling equipment, line-up clamps, and hand tools shall be maintained in such condition as to make acceptable welds possible, and to assure continuity of operation and safety of personnel.

3.03 Repair and Replacement:

Any equipment which does not meet these requirements shall be repaired or replaced.

3.04 Welding:

The welding of piping in accordance with this specification shall be performed by qualified welders using qualified procedures. The surfaces to be welded shall be smooth, uniform, free of fins, laminations, tears, scale, slag, grease, paint and other deleterious material which might adversely affect the welding. The joint design and spacing between abutting ends shall be in accordance with the welding procedure specification to be used.

E CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

501-3

SUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
PPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND
REG/ITPM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

3.041 All position welds shall be made with the parts to be joined secured against movement and with adequate clearance around the joint to allow the welder or welders space in which to work.

3.042 The number of beads shall be such that the completed weld shall have a substantially uniform cross section around the entire circumference of the pipe. At no point shall the crown surface be below the outside surface of the pipe, nor should it be raised above the parent metal by more than 1/16".

3.043 Two beads shall not be started at the same location. The face of the completed weld should be approximately 1/8" greater than the width of the original groove. The completed weld shall be thoroughly brushed and cleaned.

3.05 Alignment:

The alignment of the abutting ends shall be such as to minimize the offset between surfaces. For pipe of the same nominal wall thickness, the offset shall not exceed 1/16". Any greater offset, provided it is caused by dimensional variations, shall be equally distributed around the circumference of the pipe. Hammering of the pipe to obtain proper lineup should be held to a minimum.

3.06 Clamps:

Line-up clamps shall be used in accordance with the requirements of the procedure specification. When it is permissible to remove the line-up clamp before completion of the root bead, the completed part of this bead shall be in approximately equal segments and these shall be approximately equally spaced around the circumference of the joint.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND.SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-3

ISSUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

However, when an internal line-up clamp is used and conditions make it difficult to prevent movement of the pipe, or if the weld will be unduly stressed, the root bead shall be completed before releasing clamp tension. Root bead segments used in connection with external clamps shall be uniformly spaced around the circumference of the pipe and shall have an accumulative length of not less than 50 per cent of the pipe circumference before the clamp may be removed.

3.07 Bevels:

Pipe ends shall be provided with mill bevels conforming to the joint design used in the welding procedure specification.

3.071 Pipe ends should be field beveled by machine tool or machine oxygen cutting. Manual oxygen cutting may also be used if so authorized by the Engineer. The beveled ends shall be reasonably smooth and uniform, and dimensions shall be in accordance with the qualified welding procedure.

3.08 Weather Conditions:

Welding shall not be done when the quality of the completed weld would be impaired by the prevailing weather conditions, including but not limited to airborne moisture, blowing sands, or high winds. Windshields may be used when practical. The Engineer shall decide if weather conditions are suitable for welding.

3.09 Clearance:

When the pipe is welded above ground, the working clearance around the pipe at the weld should not be less than 16". When the pipé is welded in the trench, the bell hole shall be of sufficient size to provide the welder or welders ready access to the joint.

.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

9		-	501-3						
در ا	JUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR						
	APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO. BUT NOT INCLUDING,						
	RPG/HRM	DATE 8/3/83	0.344" -						
	3.10	Cleaning:							
Scale and slag shall be removed from each bead and groove. Cleaning may be done with either hand or power tools.									
	3.11	Inspection:							
		The quality of by either des Inspection man operation or Any weld not specification	f production welds will be determined tructive or non-destructive methods. by be made both during the welding after the weld has been completed. meeting the requirements of this a shall be rejected.						
	3.12	Defects:							
		Defects, exce beads may be by the Engine cover pass, r Cracks shall meet the Star destructive f Edition, curr	ept cracks, in the root and filler repaired with prior authorization eer. Defects, except cracks in the may be repaired without authorization. not be repaired. All repairs shall mdards of Acceptability - Non- Festing, Par. 6.0 API Standard 1104, rently accepted by OPSO.						
		3.121 defects shal All slag and metal. All wire brushin required.	Before repairs are made, injurious l be entirely removed to clean metal. scale shall be removed to clean slag and scale shall be removed by g. Preheating of such an area is						
		3.122 re-radiograp previously u allowed in t	Such repaired areas shall be hed, or inspected by the same means sed. No further repairs shall be hese areas.						
		3.123 a weld conta any producti	The Engineer may re-inspect all of Lining a repair in the same manner as Lon weld.						
	x .								

HE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

-

501-3

ISUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
PPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

APPENDIX TO WELDING PROCEDURE

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

2

501-3 ED 10/1/77 1 REVISION NO. STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND APPROVED APPROVED WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING, RBG/HPM 0.344" DATE 8/8/83

Table 1

Electrode Type and Size for

Manual	Shiel	Lded	Metal	Arc	Process	i.
					the second s	-

Pipe Wall Thickness (Inches)	Passes	Pass No.	Rod <u>Size</u>
I. 5/32 (.156) to 7/32 (.219) inclusive	3	1 2 3	1/8 5/32 5/32
II. 1/4 (.250)	3	1 2 3	5/32 5/32 3/16
III. 9/32 (.281) & 5/16 (.312)	4	1 2 3 4	5/32 5/32 3/16 3/16
IV. 11/32 (.344) & 3/8 (.375)	5	1 2 3 4 5	5/32 5/32 3/16 3/16 3/16
Note 1: All electrodes are to be E 6010 or E 7010.	e A.W.S. a	pproved	

Note 2: Minimum number of passes. Additional passes may be applied.

Note 3: Smaller diameter electrodes may be used.

I	Electrod	e	Current	and Vol	lta	ge Rang	es		
• .	E	60	10	E	70	10			
Electrode	Curren	t	(Amps)	Curren	nt	(Amps)	Ve	211	LS
Size	Min.		Max.	Min.		Max.	Min.		Max.
3/32"	50	-	75	50	-	75	19	-	21
1/8"	75	-	100	75	-	100	19		21
5/32"	90	-	150	90	-	150	19	-	21
3/16*	130	-	200	130	-	200	19	-	21

Ta	ble	2	
			-

HE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY ND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES



THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

ŗ.



THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

GAS OPERATIONS



•

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

2

SUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83 RADIU RADIU WIDTH	WALL THTERNESS 0.250° TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING, 0.344" IS OF PLUNGER A = 1 3/4 INCHES (44.45 mm) IS OF DIEB = 2 6/16 INCHES (58.74 mm) A OF DIE. C = 2 INCHES (60.8 mm) C = 2 INCHES (60.8 mm)

HE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

501-3

SUED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
PPROVED	APPROVED	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING,
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"



DIMENSIONING OF DISCONTINUITIES IN WELD SPECIMENS

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

£.r

PROVED TE 8/8/83 Filler Spec.* XWS Sp 3-64 A5.1- 6-64 A5.5- 3-64 A5.5- 3-64 A5.5-	Mctal Clas ec. • Shiel 64 64 64	PIPE WITH HICKNESS 0	O.D. GREAT 0.250" TO, Sroups <u>Electrode</u> EXX10 EXX11	TER THAN 12 3/4" AI BUT NOT INCLUDING
Filler Spec.* 2WS Sp 3-64 AS.1- 6-64 AS.5- 3-64 AS.5- 3-64 AS.5-	0.344" Metal Clas <u>ec.* Shiel</u> 64 64 64 64	sification G	Froups Electrode EXX10 EXX11	Remarks
Filler <u>Spec.* XWS Sp</u> 3-64 A5.1- 6-64 A5.5- 3-64 A5.5- 3-64 A5.5-	Metal Clas ec.* <u>Shie</u> 64 64 64 64	sification G	Sroups Electrode EXX10 EXX11	<u>Remarks</u>
Spec.* AWS Spin 3-64 A5.1- 6-64 A5.5- 3-64 A5.1- 6-64 A5.5- 3-64 A5.1- 6-64 A5.5-	ec.* <u>Shie</u>] 64 64 64 64	lding Gas	Electrode EXX10 EXX11	Remarks
3-64 λ5.1- 6-64 λ5.5- 3-64 λ5.1- .6-64 λ5.5-	64 64 64		EXX10 EXX11	
3-64 λ5.1- 6-64 λ5.5-	64 64			
			EXX15 EXX16 EXX18	
19-65 AS.18	-65 Yido	n and Oxygen	2605-1 2605-2 2605-3	
59-65 A5.18	2-65 Carb	on Diozide	EG03-2 EG05-3 E705-4 E705-5 E705-6	
59-65 AS.18	8-65 Not	Specified	E705-G	Welding power not specified.
59-65 A5.10	8-65 Carb	an Dioxide	E70T-1 E70T-2 E70T-5	
59-65 AS.1	6-65 No S	bieldin ç	570T-3 570T-4 570T-5	
59-65 A5.1	8-65 Not	Specified	E70T-G	Welding power not specified.
59-65 NS.1	.8-65 Argo and	on or Argon Oxygen	E70U-1	·
251-66 A5.2	2-66		RG4 5 RG60 RG65	
	9-65 AS.18 9-65 AS.18 39-65 AS.13 59-65 AS.1 59-65 AS.1 59-65 AS.1 59-65 AS.1 59-65 AS.1 59-65 AS.1	9-65 A5.18-65 Argo 9-65 A5.18-65 Carb 39-65 A5.18-65 Not 59-65 A5.18-65 Not 59-65 A5.18-65 Not 59-65 A5.18-65 Not 59-65 A5.18-65 Argo and 51-66 A5.2-66	9-65 AS.18-65 Argon and Oxygen 9-65 AS.18-65 Carbon Dioxide 39-65 AS.18-65 Not Specified 39-65 AS.18-65 Carbon Dioxide 59-65 AS.18-65 No Shielding 59-65 AS.18-65 Not Specified 59-65 AS.18-65 Argon or Argon and Oxygen	9-65 AS.18-65 Argon and Oxygen E60S-2 E60S-2 E60S-3 9-65 AS.18-65 Carbon Dioxide E60S-2 E60S-3 E70S-4 E70S-4 E70S-6 89-65 AS.18-65 Not Specified E70S-G 89-65 AS.18-65 Carbon Dioxide E70T-1 E70T-2 E70T-5 89-65 AS.18-65 Carbon Dioxide E70T-1 E70T-2 E70T-5 59-65 AS.18-65 No Shielding E70T-3 E70T-4 E70T-5 59-65 AS.18-65 Not Specified E70T-4 E70T-5 59-65 AS.18-65 Not Specified E70T-4 E70T-5 59-65 AS.18-65 Not Specified E70T-1 E70T-4 51-66 AS.2-66 RG60 RG60 RG65 RG45 RG60

e: Covering and filler metal types not listed above may be used but shall require separate welder qualification.

. .

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501-3

~ •

•

-JED 10/1/77	REVISION NO. 1	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-III-A-III FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED DLT	STEEL PIPE WITH O.D. GREATER THAN 12 3/4" AND WALL THICKNESS 0.250" TO, BUT NOT INCLUDING.
RBG/HRM	DATE 8/8/83	0.344"

•

Specif	ication	Grade	Type (1)	SMYS (pri)
API	5L	A25	un, ERN, S	25.000
API	51.	Α	ERW, FW, S	30.000
AP1	51	B	ERIC, FW. S	35.000
API	5LS (2)	·A	ERW, DSA	30,000
API	کہ 5	B	ERW, DSA	35,000
API	5LS	X42	ERW, DSA	42.000
AFI	5LS	X46	ERW, PSA	46.000
API	SLS	X52	ERW, DSA	52,000
арі	5LS	X36	ERW, 18A	56,700
л р і	5LS .	X60	ERW, ISA	60.000
API	313	XG5	ERW, PSA	65,000
API	5LX (2)	X42	ERW, FW, S. DSA	42,000
API	SLX	X46	ekn, fn, s, dsa	46.000
API	5LX	X52	ERN, FW, S, DSA	52.000
API	5LX	X56	ERIC, FW, S. DSA	56.000
API	5LX	X60	ERIC, FW. S. DSA	60.000
API	SLX	X65	ERW, FW, S. DSA	65.000
A 11	SLX	70T	ERW, FW, S. DSA	70.000
17.4	SLU	U80	S. DSA	80.000
API	SLU	U100	5. 15.1	100.000
ST	M A53	Open Hearth, Basic Oxygen, Elect. Furnace	<i>nu</i> .	25.000
7	M A53	Bessemier	BW	30.000
	M .153	Α	ERW. S	30.000
AST	M A53	B	ERW S	35 000
AST	MA106	Α	S	30 000
AST	M A106	B	S	35.000
4.57	M A 106	С	5	40 000
457	M Å 135	A	FEW	30.000
457	M A 135	R	FEW	35 040
451	CLI A 139	4	FFIC	30,000
101	NI 1139	R	FLIC	11.000
15		Class V.15	051	35.000
15	11 1981	Ci V_12	115.5	12.000
15			DC 1	12,000
	111 1121		, 113A 1154	10,000
			, 113.1	48.000
22	IM A331		. 05.\	50,000
~	131 4331	Q4ss Y-52	. DSA	52.000
AS	IM A351	Class Y-56	. DSA	56,000
28	TM A391	Class Y-60	. DSA	60.000
AS	TM A381	Class Y-65	, DSA	65.000
AS	LN Y134		. EFW	(3)
AS	TM 2155		. EFW	(3)
AS	тм азэз	1	. S. ERW	30,000
٨S	тм Лззз	3	. S. ERW	35.000
AS	171 7333	4	. 5	35,000
72	נננא וען	6	. S. ERW	35,000
AS	TXI A353	1	. S. CRW	\$5,000
72	בנבג ונדו	8	, S, ERW	75.000
A.9	TM A333	9	. S. ERW	46.000
A.	STM A539		, Ekw	35.000
50	. 2376	While there are API fine Constitution are in arise, they have	at wat have formally a	a a second

NOTES • While there new AP! Fipe Specifications are in print, they have not yet been formally approved by the Department of Transportation, Office of Pipeline Salety.

(2) Intermediate grades are available in API SLS and SLX.

(3) See applicable plate specification for SMYS.

Alsbrevisions: BW - Furnace butt-welded; ERW - Electric resistance welded; S - Scamless; FW - Flash welded; EFW - Electric fusion welded; DSA - Double submerged-are welded.

STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE

SPECIFICATION NO. 501-20

COVERING

PROCESS GROUP SÁ	DIAMETER GROUP Fl	MATERIAL GROUP A	THICKNESS GROUP V
		*	

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY THE UNION LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER COMPANY LAWRENCEBURG GAS COMPANY

р Хах

CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

•

v 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
OVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD
D/РНМ))	DATE	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES

Forward

his standard welding procedure fulfills the requirements set orth:

Department of Transportation: Transportation of Natural and Other Gas by Pipeline Minimum Safety Standards, Subpart "E", Welding of Steel in Pipelines §192.223 - General.

'or purposes of identifying welding procedure specification the collowing grouping applies:

Material Group	Application
A	All API 5L and ASTM Pipe Specifications having Specified Minimum Yield Strength of 42,000 psi or less.
B	All API 5LX Pipe Specifications having Specified Minimum Yield Strengths between 42,000 psi and 60,000 psi.
_ c	All API 5LX Pipe Specifications having a Specified Minimum Yield Strength 60,000 psi or greater.
S	304 Stainless Steel
Diameter Group	Application
I	Pipe having O.D. less than 2 3/8".
II	Pipe having O.D. from 2 3/8", to and including 12 3/4".
III	Pipe having O.D. in excess of 12 3/4".
F1 & F2 Thickness Group	Fillet Welds <u>Application</u>
I	Less than 0.188".
II	0.188" to but not including 0.250".
III	0.250" to but not including 0.344".
IV	0.344" to and including 0.500".
	a toop to and impluding 0 500 " (Fillot)

.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

	•					
ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD				
APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL				
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES				
		e.				
Pro	cess Group	Application				
	-	•				
	SA	Manual Shielded Metal Arc Process				
	MTG	Comi-Judomatic Company 1, 73				
in a start where the start whe		Inert-Gas-Shielded Process				
1						
	0	Oxyacetylene Process				
	•					
1						

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Contra de

جم ب 501.20

GAS OPERATI

ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
APPROVED APPROVED RWD/PHM DATE		COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL
		ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES
A. Proce	ess: <u>Mar</u>	nual Shielded Metal Arc
B. Mater	ial:	See Note "A"
C. Diame	eter and Wall 1	Thickness: See Note "B"
D. Joint	Design:	Fillet
E. Fille	er Metal and Nu	mber of Beads: Page 18 Table 1
F. Elect	trical or Flame	e Characteristics: Page 18 Table 2
G. Posi	tion:	Horizontal
H. Direc	ction of Weldin	ng:Vertical Down
I. Numbe	er of Welders:	See Note "C"
J. Time	Lapse between	Passes: See Note "D"
K. Type	of Line-up Cla	amp: See Note "E"
L. Remo	val of Line-up	Clamp:See Note "F"
M. Clea	ning:	See Note "G"
N. Preh	eat, Stress Re	lief:See Note "H"
0. Shie	lding Gas and 1	Flow Rate: Not Applicable
P. Shie	lding Flux:	See Page 26
Q. Spee	d of Travel:	4 To 12 Inches Per Minute
R. Sket	ches and Tabul	ations: (See Pages 4, 5, & 6)
Tested:_	<u> 4-12-53</u> (Date)	By: Beachard Founde
Approved	(Date)	Operating: Amutlu
Approved	: 8/29/83 (Date)	Engineering: A.R.W. Dieckman
Certifie	ed by: <u>D.L.</u>	Thomason
Title: I	Ingineer	
Date:	3/8/83	

- .

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES

Notes to Page 1:

E

- A <u>Material</u>: Pipe API Specification, and all pipe furnished under API 5L, API 5LX and ASTM A53 having Specified Minimum Yield Strengths 42,000 psi and less.
- B <u>Diameter and Wall Thickness</u>: 12" O.D. 0.250" wall and all wall thicknesses from 0.100" to and including 0.500".
- C Number of Welders:

Minimum Root Bead Welders: 1 Minimum Second Bead Welders: 1

- D - Time Lapse Between Passes: During manual shielded metal arc welding, the time interval between application of the root bead and second or "hot" pass shall be the minimum time required for thorough cleaning of the root bead. A delay between the second, third and succeeding passes, sufficient for cleaning welds and allowing welders and equipment to move along the line, will be permitted. All welds shall be completed without allowing the work to cool to ambient temperature between successive passes. If the weld cannot be completed without cooling to ambient temperature, the final phases of the weld shall be completed as directed by the Engineer. Anv weld not completed as specified in this paragraph shall be cut out of the line. If welding is done by the MIG process, no special provisions are required for completion if the weld cools to ambient temperature between passes.
 - Type of Line-Up Clamp: Line-up clamps are to be used on all butt-welds except for certain fittings where their use would be impracticable. Line-up clamps are not required for fillet welds. <u>External and/or internal</u>. External line-up clamps should be used for butt welding pipe sizes to and including 12-inch. Internal type clamps should be used for pipe sizes 14" and larger.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

DED 8/8/83 REVISION	O. STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FO	JR
APPROVED APPROV	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL	
RWD/PHM DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES	

Notes to Page 1: (Cont'd.)

Ħ

- F <u>Removal of Line-Up Clamp</u>: In no case shall the line-up clamp be removed before 20% of the root bead, uniformly distributed around the circumference, is completed.
- G <u>Cleaning</u>: All slag, protrusions of filler metal from the preceding pass, pin holes and similar defects shall be removed before depositing the next pass. For this operation a power grinder or a hand or power driven diamond point or round nose chisel shall be used.
 - Preheating and Stress Relief: Not normally required for work performed under this specification, except that under field conditions when the ambient temperature is less than 32° F., local preheating to a hand-hot condition shall be required. API 5L, and API SLX pipe shall be preheated to a minimum temperature of 200° F., when the ambient temperature is less than 32° F. The preheat temperature shall be checked by use of temperature indicating crayons, and shall be maintained until the weld is completed. Preheating may be accomplished by any suitable method, provided that it is uniform and that the temperature does not fall below the prescribed minimum during the actual welding operations.

Preheating is required to remove moisture from the pipe prior to welding.

p.3
ice.

GAS	OP	ERA	TIONS
GAS	OP	ERA	TIONS

501.20

PROVED APPROVED COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES RWD/PHM DATE Procedure No. Shares Scation 2120 Dana Procedure No. Shares accretor N/A Sub-Contractor N/A acc of Weld 4-25-83 Boll Weld N/A Sub-Contractor N/A acc of Weld 4-25-83 Boll Weld N/A Sub-Contractor N/A wate of Weld 4-25-83 Boll Weld Name P=8 Welder B. Powell Name P=6 Wate of Welding Methics Lincoln Yotage 9:00 a.m. Temperature 72 Contractor Wate of Electrode Lincoln Yotage 19-21 Amperage 120-150 Wate of Steel Size of Electrode Size of Steel N/A Steed Steel N/A State of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 7 State of Electrode 5/32" 1/			I FILL	ET WELDS ON	STEEL PIPE FO	R SOCKET-WELD
WD/PHM DATE ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES Procedure No. <u>BA-F1-A-V</u> Test So. <u>18-83</u> Date 4-25-83 Date 4-25-83 Sub-Contractor N/A sub-Contract	HOVED	APPROVED	COUP	LINGS, SLIP-	ON FLANGES, A	ND FULL
Procedure No. <u>BA-F1-A-V</u> Test No. Detc 4-25-83 matractor N/A Sub-Contractor N/A edder B. Powell elder B. Powell Sub-Contractor N/A elder B. Powell elder B. Powell Sub-Contractor N/A elder B. Powell Wind Break Used N/A elder B. Powell Wind Break Used N/A accentro GELECTOR Incoln weiding Nachize Lincoln works of Weiding Nachize Lincoln works of Steel Incoln Voltage 19-21 Appense 120-150 With Creater Steel N/A steed of Electrode 5/32° Steed I Electrode 5/32° Steed I Electrode E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 Steed I Electrode E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 Steed Steets no. Ti Steet I Electrode E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010	WD/PHM	DATE	ENCI	RCLEMENT WEL	DING SPEEVES	•
contractor N/A Sub-Contractor N/A sate of Weld 4-25-83 Roll Weld N/A Fixed Position Weld 5-G welder B. Powell Mark P-8 Mark Sub-Contractor N/A welder B. Powell Mark P-8 Mark P-8 welder B. Powell Mark P-8 N/A welder Date Joint Trepersure 72 Sub-Contractor welder B. Powell Mind Break Used N/A welder Condition Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A welder Condition Size Joint Length N/A State of Electrode 5/32" 1/6" 1/6" 1/8" 1 State of Electrode 5/32" 1/6" 1/6" 1/8" 1 1 State of Electrode 5/32" 1/6" 1/8" 1 </th <th>19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>and an an</th> <th>Procedure X Test S</th> <th>ic. <u>8A-F1-A-V</u> ic. 18-83</th>	19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000 - 19.000			and an	Procedure X Test S	ic. <u>8A-F1-A-V</u> ic. 18-83
catracter N/A Sub-Contractor N/A ste of Weld 4-25-83 Roll Weld N/A Fixed Position Weld 5-G elder B. Powell Neart P-8 elding Time 20 min. Time of Day 9:00 a.m. Temperature 72 o. seather condition Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A take of Welding Hachite Lincoln Notage 19-21 Apperage 120-150 incast of Electrode Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Joint Length N/A State of Electrode Lincoln Voltage Voltage Joint Length N/A bed So 1 2 4 S 7 Size of Electrode E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 F 6010 sile Specimen Ho 72 73 74 Creas-Section Area 72 73 Meaning Load Team 72 83 Meaning Load Team 72 83 Size of Electrode 72 73 Meaning Load Team 72 73 Meaning Load Team 72 73 Meaning Load Team 72 74 Sign Incluses Strength Meaning Load Team 72 74 Sign Incluses Strength Sign Incluses Strength 74 Sign Incluses Strength 74 Sign Incluses Strength Sign Incluses Strength Sign Incluses Strength	cation	Dana	•		Date	4-25-83
see of Weld 4-25-83 Roll Weld N/A Fixed Topiction Weld 5-G elder B. Powell Hark P-8 elding Time 20 min. Time of Day 9:00 2.ml. Temperature 72 c. Weather Condition Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A detector Melding Machine Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Apperage 120-150 Trand of Electrode Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Apperage 120-150 Fige Xfr. US Steel Pie Specification API 5L GRB Fige Specification 1. 12.750" Wt./Ft. Joint Length N/A Bead So	acrector N	1/A				N/A
welder B. Powell Hark P-8 welder Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A weather Condition Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A weather Condition Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A wate of Weiding Heaching Lincoln Size 300 trand of Electrode Lincoln woltage 19-21 Apperage 120-150 hips Mr. US Steel Pipe Specification API 51 GRB wall Thickness 0.250" Dis. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./Ft. Joint Length N/A Size of Electrose 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 5 7 Size of Electrose 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" site Specimen Ho. site Specimen Ho. site Specimen Ho. site Specimen Ho. </td <td>te of Weld</td> <td>4-25-83</td> <td>Roll Meld</td> <td>N/A</td> <td>Fired Derivice Hold</td> <td>5-G</td>	te of Weld	4-25-83	Roll Meld	N/A	Fired Derivice Hold	5-G
cldimy Time 20 min. Time of Day 9:00 a.m. Temperature 72 72 iseather Condition Inside Building Wind Breat Used N/A lake of Weiding Hachics Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Amperage 120-150 ipp Hfr. US Steel Pipe Specification APT 5L GRB iall Thickness 0.250" Dis. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./Ft. Joint Length N/A state of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 5 7 State of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 5 7 state Specimen No. T: T: T: T: T: T: 74 Cross-Section Dimensions T: T: T: T: T: T: T: Ave. Tensile Strength Mean trass do Tensile Test 0.131 0.286 0.336 0.336 So, of Cas Pockets Per O O O 0 0 0 0 Cross-Sectional Area 0.238 0.131 0.286 0.336 0.336 0.336 0 0	ider B.	Powell			Past Past Past	
Seather Condition Inside Building Wind Break Used N/A State of Weiding Machine Lincoln Size 300 State of Size 300 Size 300 State of Electrode Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Amperage 120-150 Size Dis. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./Ft. Joint Length N/A State of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" - Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" - - Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" - - Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" - - Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" - - Size of Electrode E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 - - - Size Spectron No. T T T - - - - - - - - - - - - -	ldisc Time	20 min.	Time of 1	9:00 a.m.		72
ake of Weiding Machine Lincoln Size 300 brand of Electrode Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Size 300 brand of Electrode Lincoln Voltage 19-21 Apperage 120-150 bipe Mfr. US Steel Pipe Specification API SL GRE ball Thickness 0.250" Dia. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./ft. Joint Length N/A Bead So. 1 2 3 4 5 7 Size of Electrole 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 7 Size of Electrole E 6010 sile Specimen No. 71 72 73 74 Cross-Section Ares	eacher Corditi	n Inside E	suilding		Wind Brook Mand	N/A
Brand of Electrode Lincoln Woltage 19-21 Amperage 120-150 Pipe Mfr. US Steel Pipe Specification API 5L GRB dall Thickness 0.250" Dis. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./Ft. Joint Length N/A Bead No. 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Size of Electroie 5/32" 1/6" 1/6" 1/6" - - Size of Electroie 5/32" 1/6" 1/6" 1/6" - - sile Specimen No. T: T2 T3 T4 Cross-Section Area - - - - Maximut Load - - - - - Ave. Tensile Strength - - - - - Ave. Tensile Strength - - - - - Bick-Break Specimen No. N1 N2 N3 T4 Cross-Sectional Area - - - - Maximut Load - - - - - Reak Specimen No. N1 N2 N3 T4 Cross-Sectional Area - - - - Sig. In. <td< td=""><td>ke of Weldiza</td><td>Haching Lind</td><td>oln</td><td>ۅؾڹڟڟ؋ڔؾڹۯؾڹٷؾڹٵڟڬڲڟڲڹڹٷٵ[ؚ]ڗڹٷڗ^{ڽڹ}ٷڲڲۄ</td><td></td><td>300</td></td<>	ke of Weldiza	Haching Lind	oln	ۅ ؾڹڟڟ؋ڔؾڹۯؾڹٷؾڹٵڟڬڲڟڲڹڹٷٵ [ؚ] ڗڹٷڗ ^{ڽڹ} ٷڲڲۄ		300
Dispersion Notice Dispersion Appersystem Dispersion APT 5L GRE Wall Thickness 0.250" Dis. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./Ft. Joint Length N/A Bead So. 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Size of Electroite 5/32" 1/6" 1/6" 1/6" 1/6" 7 So of Electroite E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 2 sile Specification 10. 11 72 73 74 Cress-Section Area	and of Electro	Me Lincoln	41 eB	19-21		120-150
Adil Thickness 0.250" Dis. 0.D. 12.750" Wt./Tt. Joint Length N/A Bead Ko. 1 2 3 4 5 5 7 Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 1/8" 7 Size of Electrode E 6010 sile Specimen So. T: T2 T3 T4 Cross-Section Ares	ine Mfr U	S Steel		age		API 5L GRB
Bead No. 1<	all Phistoses	0.250" -	17	750" 125	The sherrigerson	N /2
Bead No. 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>• منگیف • الجدان • 2014 </td><td> WT./25.</td><td>Joint</td><td>Leagta</td></td<>			• منگیف • الجدان • 2014 	WT./25.	Joint	Leagta
Size of Electrode 5/32" 1/8" 1	ead \$0.		12		4 5	5 7
Zo of flerzzode E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 E 6010 sile Specimen Ho.	ize of Electro	że	5/32* 1/8	1/8"	L/8" 1/8" -	
sile Specimen 20. 71 72 73 74 Cross-Section Dimensions	o of Electrod	e]	E 6010 E 60	LO E 6010 E	6010 E 6010	
Nick-Break Specizen So. N1 N2 N3 7.4 Cross-Sectional Area 0.238 0.131 0.286 0.336 Bo. of Gas Pockets Per 0 0 0 0 Sq. In. 0 0 0 0 Gas Pockets with Greatost: 0 0 0 0 Dimension Exceeding 1/16 In. 0 0 0 0 Slag Inclusions Greater 0 0 0 0 Thick. in Length 0 0 0 0 Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Yes Amarks on Zick-Break Tests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code limites	easile Strengt			۵۰۰۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵۵		
Nick-Steak Specifien No. Ni N2 N3 74 Cross-Sectional Area of Ereak 0.238 0.131 0.286 0.336 Bo. of Gas Pockets Per Sq. In. 0 0 0 0 Gas Pockets with Greatest Dimension Exceeding 1/16 h. 0 0 0 0 Slag Inclusions Greater Than 1/32 In. Depth and 1/6 In. or 5 the Wall 0 0 0 0 Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Yes Amarks on Zick-Break Tests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code timinits	we. Tensile St temerks on Tens	tile Test <u>Ten</u>	sile tests p	ot required for	fillet welds.	
of 2:eak 0.238 0.131 0.286 0.336 Bo. of Gas Pockets Per 0 0 0 0 Gas Pockets with Greatest 0 0 0 0 Slag Inclusions Greater 1/32 I.a. Depth and 0 0 0 That I/32 I.a. Depth and 0 0 0 0 Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Asmarks on Zick-Break Tests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code timits	we. Tensile St Memarks on Tens	trength	sile tests p	ot required for	<u>fillet welds.</u>	
BO. Of Gas Pockets Per O O O O Gas Pockets with Greatest Dimension Exceeding 1/16 h. O O O O Slag Inclusions Greater Than 1/32 la. Depth and 1/6 in. or 5 the Wall Thick. in Length O O O O Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Aumarks on Zick-Break Jests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code limits	We. Tensile St Wemarks on Tens Nick-Break Spec	trength	sile tests D	ot required for	fillet welds.	- 71
Gas Pockets with Greatest 0 0 0 0 Dimension Exceeding 1/16 h. 0 0 0 0 Slag Inclusions Greater Than 1/32 ln. Depth and 1/32 ln. Depth and 1/32 ln. Depth and 1/32 ln. or 5 the Wall 0 0 0 Thick. in Length 0 0 0 0 0 Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Aumarks on Zick-Break Jests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code limits	We. Tensile St Memarks on Tens lick-Break Spec Trass-Sectional of Ereak	trength Sile Test <u>Ten</u> Lizen So. 1 Area	sile tests p N1 0.238	ot required for 	fillet welds.	
Slag Inclusions Greeter Than 1/32 In. Depth and 1/6 In. or 5 the Wall Thuck. in Length 0	We. Tensile St Memarks on Tens lick-Break Spes Cross-Sectional of Lreak No. of Gas Poch Sq. In.	trength tile Test rizen Ro. 1 Area xets Per	sile tests p N1 0.238 0	<u></u>	<u>Fillet welds.</u> <u>R3</u> 0.286 0	7.4 0.336 0
Thick. in Length 0 0 0 0 Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Yes Remarks on Zick-Break Tests No porosity of inclusions which exceed code limits	We. Tensile St Memarks on Tens Nick-Sreak Sper Tross-Sectional of 2:eak Bo. of Gas Poch Sq. In. 145 Pockets with	trength tile Test tile Test tile Test tile Test there there ther	sile tests p 31 0.238 0	<u>x2</u> 0.131 0	<u>Fillet welds.</u> <u>N3</u> <u>0.286</u> <u>0</u> 0	
Complete Penetration Yes Yes Yes Complete Fusion Yes Yes Yes Aumarka on Zick-Break Tests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code limits	Ave. Tensile St Vemarks on Tens Hick-Break Sper Cross-Sectional of Ereak No. of Gas Pock Sq. In. Gas Pockets wir Dimension Exc 51ag Inclusion Than 1/32 In.	trength tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Ro. 1 Area kets Per th Greatest eeding 1/16 h. s Greater Depth and th i	sile tests p 31 0.238 0 0	ot required for 	<u>Fillet welds.</u> <u>N3</u> 0.286 0 0	74 0.336 0 0
Aunarka on Zick-Break Tests No porosity or inclusions which exceed code limits	Ne. Tensile St Memarks on Tens Rick-Break Sper Trass-Sectional of Ereak Bo. of Gas Pock Sq. In. Gas Pockets wir Dimension Exc Slag Inclusion Than 1/32 In. 1/6 In. or 1 Thick. in Len	trength tile Test tile Test tile Test l Area kets Per th Greatest eeding 1/16 In s Greater Depth and the Wall gth	sile tests p <u>31</u> 0.238 0 0 0	ot required for 	<u>Fillet welds.</u> <u>N3</u> 0.286 <u>0</u> 0 0	774 0.336 0 0 0
AVALAGE ON ALEX-STRAFT TOSLE NO DOTOSITY OF INCLUSIONS WILL PARCED CODE (1) IS	Ave. Tensile St Memarks on Tens Rick-Sreak Sper Tross-Sectional of Ereak Bo. of Gas Poct Sq. In. Sas Pockets wir Dimension Exc Slag Inclusion Than 1/32 In. 1/5 In. or 1 Thick. in Len Complete Penet	trength tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> there the Greatest etting 1/16 h. s Greater Depth and the Well gth	sile tests p 31 0.238 0 0 0 0 Yes	ot required for 	fillet welds. 	
	We. Tensile St Memarks on Tens lick-Break Spec trass-Sectional of Lreak No. of Gas Pock Sq. In.	trength Lile Test <u>Ten</u> Lizen Ro. L Area Kets Per	sile tests p N1 0.238 O	ot required for 	<u>Fillet welds.</u> <u>N3</u> <u>0.286</u> <u>0</u>	
	Ave. Tensile St Memarks on Tens Rick-Break Sper Cross-Sectional of Ereak Bo. of Gas Pock Sq. In. Gas Pockets wi Dimension Exc Slag Inclusion Than 1/32 In. 1/6 In. or 1 Thick. in Len Complete Penet Complete Fusio Remarks on Nic	trength tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test the Second Second the Wall gab ration a the Break Tests	sile tests p <u>31</u> 0.238 0 0 0 <u>Ves</u> <u>Ves</u> <u>Ves</u> No porosity	ot required for N2 0.131 0 0 0 Ves Ves Ves Ves	fillet welds.	
Remarks on Mend Tests Bend tests not required for fillet welds.	Ave. Tensile St Memarks on Tens Rick-Break Sper Cross-Sectional of Ereak No. of Gas Pock Sq. In. Gas Pockets wir Dimension Exc Slag Inclusion Thick in Lens Thick. in Lens Complete Penet Complete Fusio Remarks on Sic	trength tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Test <u>Ten</u> tile Tests <u>Ten</u> tile No. I Area kets Per th Greatest eding 1/16 h. S Greater Depth and the Wall gth Tation a tation a tation <u>Ests</u> <u>Bend</u>	sile tests n <u>1</u> 0.238 0 0 0 <u>Ves</u> <u>Ves</u> <u>Ves</u> <u>No porosity</u> tests not re	ot required for N2 0.131 0 0 0 Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves	fillet welds.	7.4 0.336 0 0 0 0 0 Yes Yes Yes de limits
Remarks on Next Tests Bend tests not required for fillet welds. S Procedure S Qualifying Test J Welter S Line Test At Made At 2120 Dana Ave.	Ave. Tensile St Memarks on Tens Rick-Break Sper Cross-Sectional of Ereak Bo. of Gas Pock Sq. In. Gas Pockets wir Dimension Exc Slag Inclusion That 1/32 In. 1/6 In. or 1 Thick. in Len Complete Fusio Remarks on Nic Remarks on Mer Strocets J Welder /t Made At	ile Test <u>Ten</u> ile Test <u>Ten</u> ile Test <u>Ten</u> ile Test <u>Ten</u> ile Test <u>Ten</u> is Greatest ecting 1/16 In. s Greatest bepth and the Wall gth ration a k-Break Tests <u>Bend</u> ure	sile tests p <u>sile tests p</u> <u>sile tests p</u> <u>o</u> <u>o</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u> <u>ves</u>	ot required for N2 0.131 0 0 0 Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves Ves	fillet welds.	7.4 0.336 0 0 0 0 0 Yes Yes Yes de limits

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES



GAS OPERATIONS

		301.20
» JED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	
APPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD
RWD/PHM	DATE	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES



MAXIMUM ELECTRODE SIZE & NO. OF BEADS *

Wall Thickness t	1/8" Electrode	5/32 [*] Electrode	3/16" Electrode	Total No. of Beads
Less than 0.188	3	2		3-5
0.188" - 0.750"	2**	3	2	5-7
Greater than 0.750	* 2**	5	2	7-9

*Smaller diameter electrodes may be used. **5/32" Electrode optional.

Electrode Diameter	Amperage	Arc Volt
1/8"	90-125	19-21
5/32*	120-150	19-21
3/16"	135-175	19-21

GAS OPERATI

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

· [SSUED	8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING	PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
-	APPROV	ED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-C	N FLANGES, AND FULL
	RWD,	PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELL	DING SLEEVES
	1.0	Oual: The weld	ification of We test weld made ing procedure	elding Procedure: under this specifi for welding on pipe	cation shall qualify the alines:
		A2 00	Certal Group	Diameter Group	Thickness Group
		42,00	o ber and tese	 	(0.100" to and in- cluding 0.500")
					1
		1.01	Test Coupon:	_	·
			The test cou 12" O.D	pon shall be: . API 5L, Gr. B, O.	250" Wall.
		1.02	Welding Proc	cedure Records:	
			Records of t be recorded (Pages 4,5 a construction authorized h	the pipe joint weld: in detail on the fo 6) and shall be adh h, except where a c by the Pipeline Eng	ing procedure shall orms herein provided ered to during subsequent hange is specifically ineer.
		1.0	3 Welding Prod	cedure Essential Va	riables:
			This welding a new process completely : listed below other than procedure w provided th changes:	g procedure shall b dure specification re-qualified when a w are made in the p those given below m ithout the necessit e specification is	e re-established as and shall be ny of the changes rocedure. Changes ay be made in the sy for re-qualification, revised to show these
			(a) Change	in welding process	.
ŧ			(b) Change and 51 in exc	in pipe metal. (F X Grade 42 groups t ess of Grade X42 an	rom ASTM or API 5L to API 5LX groups ad vice verse.)
R. Salar					

: • •

HE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY ND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

¢

501.20

8/8/83 د س	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR	
PPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD COURLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL	
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES	ļ

- (c) Change in joint design. (For butt-welds from V-groove to U-groove, etc. Changes in the dimensions of the welding groove, however, are not considered essential variables.)
- (d) Change in position (for butt welds only).
 (A change from vertical to horizontal or vice versa.)
- (e) Change in pipe size and wall thickness. (For groove welds, a change from one diameter group - wall thickness group combination to another and for fillet welds, a change from one wall thickness group to another group.)
- (f) Change in filler metal. (From one classification group to another. See Page 26.
- (g) Change in filler metal size.
- (h) Decrease in number of root bead welders.
- (i) Change in time lapse between root and second bead.
- (j) Change in direction. (Vertical-down to Vertical-up or vice versa.)
- (k) Change in shielding gas. (From one gas to another, from one mixture of gases to a different mixture of the same gases.)
- (1) Change in flow rate. (Decrease or increase in flow rate.)
- (m) Change in shielding flux. (Change in type or size of flux particles.)

(n) Major change in speed of travel.

مر بر این امراز میرود کنور بر این از این ا

د ا در می است. در ا

JED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-FI-A-V FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCIEMENT WELDING SLEEVES
2.0 <u>Qual</u>	ification Test	<u>t:</u>
Two foll	pipe nipples s lowing all of t	shall be joined as a fabricated tee by the details of the procedure specification.
2.01	Compliance v	with Procedure Specification:
• •	The welding and welding procedure sp	process, pipe material, filler metal procedure shall comply with the specification.
2.02	2 <u>Test Pipe Ma</u>	faterial:
	The pipe mat the same dia specification	aterial shall consist of pipe nipples of iameter group, wall thickness group, and ions as the pipe used in the line.
2.0:	Melding Tec	chnique and Speed:
	The weld sh technique, arc-welding	hall be made using the same wolding and with approximately the same g speed to be used in actual line work.
2.0	4 <u>Test Specim</u>	men - Number and Type:
	The type an follows:	nd number of test specimens shall be as
		Number of Specimens
Pip <u>Dia</u>	e Size, Outsid meter - Inches	de Nick Root Face Side <u>s Tensile Break Bend Bend Bend Total</u>
I2' Gr.	0.D. API 5L B, 0.250" Wal	
2.0	5 Test Specin	men - Removal and Preparation:
	Test specim and shall b	ments shall be removed as shown on Page 22 be prepared for test as shown on Page 23.
2.1	6 Test Recuir	irements:
		notion encoince shall be tected in

The full section specimen shall be tested in accordance with Section 2.081 and it shall meet the requirements of Section 2.084.

HE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY ND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-FL-A-V FOR FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD
APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES

2.07 Tensile Strength:

•

The specimens (Page 21) shall be approximately 9", long and 1" wide. They may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut and no other preparation is needed unless the sides are notched or are not parallel. If necessary, the specimens shall be machined so that the sides are smooth and parallel.

Tensile test specimens shall be broken under tensile load with equipment capable of measuring the load at which failure occurs. The tensile strength shall be computed by dividing the maximum load at failure by the least cross-sectional area of the specimen as measured before load is applied.

The tensile strength of the weld including the fusion zone of each specimen shall be equal to or greater than the specified minimum tensile strength of the pipe material, but need not be equal or greater than the actual tensile strength of the pipe material. If the specimen breaks outside the weld and fusion zone; i.e., in parent pipe material, and meets the specification minimum tensile strength requirements then the weld shall be accepted as meeting the requirements.

If the specimen breaks in the weld or fusion zone and the observed strength is equal to or greater than the specified minimum tensile strength of the pipe material and meets the requirements for soundness as set forth in the Nick-Break Test (Par. 2.084), then the weld shall be accepted as meeting the requirements.

If the specimen breaks below the specified minimum tensile strength of the pipe material, then the weld shall be set aside and a new test weld made.

2.08 Nick Break Test:

The specimens (Page 23) shall be approximately 9" long and 1" wide and they may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut. They shall be notched with a hacksaw on each side at the center of the weld and each notch shall be approximately 1/8" deep.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

5...

ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SAFILAR FC	TELD
APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL	
RWD/PHM	DATE '	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES	
P	2.081 M manner from v semi-automat pipe instead experience i are to be ex may be notch measured fro 2.082 qualifying a automatic we	Nick-break specimens prepared in this welds made with certain automatic and ic processes may fail through the of the weld. When previous testing ndicates failures through the pipe pected, the external reinforcement ed to a depth not to exceed 1/16" m the original weld surface. The nick-break specimens intended for procedure using a semi-automatic or elding process may be macro etched	·
	should be us 2.083 pulling in a ends and str one end and The exposed least 3/4" w	The specimens shall be broken by a tensile machine by supporting the tking the center, or by supporting striking the other end with a harmer. area of the fracture shall be at wide.	
•	2.084 shall show of (a) there show of per sq. in. dimension no inclusions show nor 1/8" or in length, the be at least adjacent in measured as	The exposed surfaces of each specimen complete penetration and fusion and: hall be no more than six gas pockets of surface area with the greatest ot to exceed 1/16", (b) slag shall not be more than 1/32" in depth one-half the nominal wall thickness whichever is shorter, and there shall 1/2" of sound weld metal between clusions. The dimensions should be shown on Page 25.	
2.0	9 <u>Root and Fa</u> The specime long by 1" rounded. T The cover a removed flu These surfa	ce Bend Test: ns (Page 22 ~) shall be at least 8" wide and the long edges shall be hey may be machine-cut or oxygen-cut. and root bead reinforcement shall be sh with the surface of the specimen- aces shall be smooth and any scratches	

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

JED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES

2.091 The specimens shall be bent in a guided bend test jig similar to that shown in Appendix H. Each specimen shall be placed on the die with the weld at mid span. Face bend specimens shall be placed with the face of the weld directed toward the gap and root bend specimens shall be placed with the root of the weld directed toward the gap. The plunger shall be forced into the gap until the curvature of the specimen is approximately U-shaped.

2.092 The bend test shall be considered acceptable if no crack or other defect exceeding 1/8" or 1/2 the nominal wall thickness, whichever is smaller, in any direction is present in the weld or between the weld and the fusion zone after bending. Cracks which originate along the edges of the specimen during testing and which are less than 1/4" measured in any direction shall not be considered unless obvious defects are observed. Each specimen subjected to the bend test shall meet these requirements.

2.10 Side Bend Test:

The specimens shall be at least 8" long by 1/2" wice and the long edges shall be rounded. They shall be machine-cut or they may be oxyger-cut to approximately a 3/4" width and then machined or ground to the 1/2" width. The sides shall be smooth and parallel. The cover and root bead reinforcements shall be removed flush with the surfaces of the specimen.

2.101 The specimens shall be bent in a guided bend test jig similar to that shown in Appendix H. Each specimen shall be placed on the die with the weld at mid span and with the face of the weld at 90 degrees to the gap. The plunger shall be forced into the gap until the curvature of the specimen is approximately U-shaped.

2.102 Each specimen shall meet the Face and Root Bend Test Requirements, Section 2.09.

501.20

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Ka		CTANDARD WEIDING PROCEDURE SA FLAV FOR
ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD
APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES
RWD/PHM	DATE .	

3.0 Production Welding:

This specification shall apply to field welding of new steel pipe or used steel pipe that has been visually examined with care and found to be in good condition, free from split seams or other defects that would cause leakage and provided that weldability has been established either by proof that the pipe has been manufactured in accordance with one of the pipe material specifications listed on Page 27 or by gualification under the provisions of OPSO, Appendix "B", Section II "Steel Pipe of Unknown or Unlisted Specification". 3.01 Welding Machines:

Welding machines shall be operated within the amperage and voltage ranges recommended for each size and type of electrode (Page 18). Gas welding equipment shall be operated with the flame characteristics and tip sizes given in the qualified welding procedure.

3.011 Welding machines and their accessories shall be of size and type suitable for the work and shall be maintained in such condition as to make acceptable welds possible and to assure continuity of operation and safety of personnel.

3.02 Other Equipment:

Hoisting equipment, cutting and beveling equipment, line-up clamps, and hand tools shall be maintained in such condition as to make acceptable welds possible, and to assure continuity of operation and safety of personnel.

3.03 Repair and Replacement:

Any equipment which does not meet these requirements shall be repaired or replaced.

3.04 Welding:

The welding of piping in accordance with this specification shall be performed by qualified welders using qualified procedures. The surfaces to be welded shall be smooth, uniform, free of fins, laminations, tears, scale, slag, grease, paint and other deleterious material which might adversely affect the welding. The joint design and spacing between abutting ends shall be in accordance with the welding.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

		501.20
auled 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
	40000	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD
(PPROVED	APPHOVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES
	·* •	
	5 66 5	All position wolds shall be made with
	the parts to	be joined secured against movement
•	and with ade	muste clearance around the joint to
	allow the we	lder or welders space in which to
	work.	•
	3 049	Mhe such as the shell be such
	that the com	The number of beads shall be such
	uniform cros	s section around the entire
	circumferenc	e of the pipe. At no point shall the
	crown surfac	e be below the outside surface of the
č- -	pipe, nor sh	ould it be raised above the parent
	metal by mor	e than 1/16".
	3 043	Two boads shall not be started at the
	same incatio	The face of the completed weld
	should be an	mrovimately 1/8" creater than the
	width of the	original groove. The completed weld
	shall be the	roughly brushed and cleaned.
_ 3.05	Alignment:	
	The alignmen	t of the abutting ends shall be such
	as to minimi	ize the offset between surfaces. For
	pipe of the	same nominal wall thickness, the
	offset shall	I not exceed 1/16". Any greater
•	offset, prov	rided it is caused by dimensional
	variations,	shall be equally distributed around
	the circumfe	erence of the pipe. Hammering of the
	pipe to obta minimum.	ain proper lineup should be held to a
3.0	6 Clamps:	
	Line-up cla	mps shall be used in accordance with
	the require	ments of the procedure specification.
	When it is	permissible to remove the line-up clamp
	before comp	letion of the root bead, the completed
	part of thi	s bead shall be in approximately equal
l	segments an	d these shall be approximately equally
	spaced arou	nd the circumference of the joint.

-

:

.

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

:

F			501.20		
UED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V	FOR		
APPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET	-WELD		
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES			
3.07	However, whe and condition movement of unduly stress before releas segments use shall be unit of the pipe of not less circumferent <u>Bevels:</u> Pipe ends sh conforming to procedure sp <u>3.071</u> machine tool oxygen cutting by the Engin reasonably is shall be in procedure.	In an internal line-up clamp is used one make it difficult to prevent the pipe, or if the weld will be used, the root bead shall be completed using clamp tension. Root bead ed in connection with external clamps formly spaced around the circumference and shall have an accumulative length than 20 per cent of the pipe be before the clamp may be removed. Anall be provided with mill bevels to the joint design used in the welding pecification. Pipe ends should be field beveled by for machine oxygen cutting. Manual ing may also be used if so authorized neer. The beveled ends shall be smooth and uniform, and dimensions accordance with the qualified welding			
3.08	Weather Cond Welding shall completed we weather cond airborne mo Windshields Engineer sh	ditions: ll not be done when the quality of the eld would be impaired by the prevailing ditions, including but not limited to isture, blowing sands, or high winds. may be used when practical. The all decide if weather conditions are			
3.0	9 <u>Clearance</u> : When the piclearance a be less that trench, the to provide the joint.	pe is welded above ground, the working round the pipe at the weld should not in 16". When the pipe is welded in the bell hole shall be of sufficient size the welder or welders ready access to	1. 		
	-	and the second			

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

* ISSUED 8 /8 /8 3	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR
APPROVED	APPRÖVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES

3.10 Cleaning:

Scale and slag shall be removed from each bead and groove. Cleaning may be done with either hand or power tools.

3.11 Inspection:

The quality of production welds will be determined by either destructive or non-destructive methods. Inspection may be made both during the welding operation or after the weld has been completed. Any weld not meeting the requirements of this specification shall be rejected.

3.12 Defects:

Defects, except cracks, in the root and filler beads may be repaired with prior authorization by the Engineer. Defects, except cracks in the cover pass, may be repaired without authorization. Cracks shall not be repaired. All repairs shall meet the Standards of Acceptability - Nondestructive Testing, Par. 6.0 API Standard 1104, Edition, currently accepted by OPSO.

3.121 Before repairs are made, injurious defects shall be entirely removed to clean metal. All slag and scale shall be removed to clean metal. All slag and scale shall be removed by wire brushing. Preheating of such an area is required.

3.122 Such repaired areas shall be re-radiographed, or inspected by the same means previously used. No further repairs shall be allowed in these areas.

3.123 The Engineer may re-inspect all of a weld containing a repair in the same manner as any production weld.

.: -

. .

5 i.

1

SSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR			
APPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD			
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES			
	*				
	A	PPENDIX TO WELDING PROCEDURE			
	•				
	•				
		·			
		•			
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i					

GAS OPERAT

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

501.20

2

f.	i					501.20	
	SSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WEL	DING PROCE	DURE SA-	F1-A-V FOR	
	APPROVED	APPROVED	COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL				
	RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT	WELDING S	LEEVES		
			Table 1	*			
		Elect	rode Type and	Size for			
		Manual S	hielded Metal	Arc Proce	55		
			-		-		
		Pipe Wall 1	hickness		Pass	Rođ	
		(Inche	es)	Passes	No.	Size	
	I.	5/32 (.156) to	7/32 (.219)	3	1	1/8	
		inclusive			2	5/32 5/32	
				-	-	-,	
	II.	1/4 (.250)		. 3	1 2	5/32 5/32	
					3	3/16	
	III.	9/32 (.281) &	5/16 (.312)	4	1	5/32	
	1	• • •	•		2	5/32	
1		•			3 .	3/16	
	1				4	3/10	
	IV.	11/32 (.344)	£ 3/8 (.375)	5	1	5/32	
					2	5/32	
					3	3/16	
					4	3/16	
					5	3/16	
	Note	1: All electu E 6010 or	rodes are to b E 7010.	e A.W.S. a	pproved		
	Note	2: Minimum nu may be app	mber of passe plied.	s. Additi	onal pas	ses	
	Note	3: Smaller d	iameter electr	odes may b	e used.		

			Contract the second second second second second					
	Electrode	Current	and Vo.	lta	ge Range	25		
			_					
Electrode	Current	(Amps)	Curre	70 nt	(Amps)	Ve	1 1	+e
Size	Min.	Max.	Min.		Max.	Min.		Max.
3/32"	50 -	75	50	-	75	19	6 20	21
1/8"	75 -	100	75	420.	100	19	-	21
5/32"	90 -	150	90	-	1.50	19	-	21
3/16*	130 -	200	130	-	200	19	_	21

130

200

19

21

200

Table 2					
Electrode	Current	and	Voltage	Ranges	

GAS OPERATION



THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES



s.

1

- . . .

501.20 ISSUED 8/8/83 **REVISION NO.** STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR APPROVED APPROVED FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL RWD/PHM DATE ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES SPECIMEN MAY BE MACHINE OR OXYGEN CUT. EDGES SHALL BE SMOOTH AND PARALLEL ÷ APPROX. 1" (25 mm) - APPROX. 9" (230 mm) -WALL THICKNESS WELD REINFORCEMENT SHOULD NOT BE REMOVED ON EITHER SIDE OF SPECIMEN FIGURE 2 TENSILE TEST SPECIMEN 1/8" (3.17 mm) MAX. RADIUS ALL CORNERS SPECIMEN MAY BE MACHINE OR OXYGEN CUT -APPROX. 1" (25 mm) - APPROX. 9" (230 mm) -WELD WELD REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE REMOVED FROM BOTH FACES -WALL THICKNESS FLUSH WITH THE SURFACE OF THE SPECIMEN, SPECIMEN SHALL NOT BE FLATTENED PRIOR TO TESTING. • FIGURE 4 ROOT BEND AND FACE BEND TEST SPECIMEN WALL THICKNESSES OF 0.5 INL 112.7 mm) AND LESS

- -

.

GAS OPERATIONS

501.20

SUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR				
APPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WELD COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL				
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES				
	FOR JOINTS UNDER 2 GENERAL LOCATION	The product of the specimients from the same				
1	••	FIGURE 7				

FIGURE 7

LOCATION OF NICK-BREAK TEST SPECIMENS - FILLET WELD PROCEDURE AND WELDER QUALIFICATION TEST WELDS

. .

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES



GAS OPERATION



- . - ~

.

f.

ISSUED 8/8/83	REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING PROCEDURE SA-F1-A-V FOR	
APPROVED	APPROVED	FILLET WELDS ON STEEL PIPE FOR SOCKET-WEL	
RWD/PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WELDING SLEEVES	
	/2" (12.7 mm) MIN.	MAX. DEPTH 1/32" (.79 mm) MAX. LENGTH 1/8" (3.17 mm) OR 1/2 X WALL THICKNESS	
	DIMEN	ISIONING OF DISCONTINUITIES IN WELD SPECIMENS	
لم	a - ana ana ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang		
N.			
		P	

THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

.

.

501.20

્ર ગામમાં આવેલ ગામમાં આવ્યું છે.

.

ROVED	APPROVED	F.	ILLET WELDS ON	STEEL PI	PE FOR SOCKET-WEL
WD/PHM	DATE		COUPLINGS, SLIP-ON FLANGES, AND FULL		
•					
		Fille: Meta	l Classification G	roabe	
Group	ASTM Spec.*	AWS Spec.*	Shielding Gas	Electrode	Remarks
I	233-64 2316-64	25.1-64 25.5-64		EXX10 EXX11	• .
II	2233-64 2316-64	25.1-64 25.5-64		EXX15 EXX16 EXX18	
IA	2 559-65	<u>25.18-65</u>	Asgon and Oxygen	E605-1 E605-2 E605-3	
v	\$559-65	A5.18-65	Carbon Dioxiĉe	E603-2 E605-3 E705-4 E705-5 E705-6	
VI	AS59-65	A5.18-65	Not Specified	E705-G	Welding power Rot specified.
VII	2559-65	A5.18-65	Carboa Dioxide	2707-1 2707-2 2707-5	
VIII	A559-65	A5.16-65	No Shieldin g	570T-3 570T-4 570T-5	
IX	A559-65	A5.18-65	Not Specified	E7CT-G	Welding pover not specified.
X	\$559-6 5	A5.18-65	and Oxygen	E70U-1	
XI	A251-66	A5.2-66		RG45 RG60 RC65	

shall require separate welder qualification.

27.24

ED 8/8/8	3 REVISION NO.	STANDARD WELDING	PROCEDURE STEEL PIPE	SA-F1-A-V FOR SOCKET	FOR -WELD
		COUPLINGS, SLIP-	-ON FLANGES	AND FULL	~
RWD/ PHM	DATE	ENCIRCLEMENT WEI	DING SLEEVE	S.	
Specification		Gade	Tuj= (1)	SIL'IS (pri)	
API 5L	A25		kw. Ern. s	25,000	
API SL	A		ERN, FK. S	30,000	
API SICIM	8		ERN, IN.S	35.000	
API 515 (2)	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ERW, JPC.	30,000	
API SIS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		ERW, INA	35.000	
API 515	NIG CCCCCCCCCCCCCC	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ERU IPA	42.0:0	
API SLS			EKIT, PAL	45.000	
API SLS	NES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	EKT, ISA	52.000	
API SLS	X60		ERW, ISA	56.450	•
API 3LS	X65		EDGU, (EDG) EDGe tosi i	60.000	
API 51.5 (2)	X 12	* * • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	5004,5705 Ebbr 176 6 756+	00,000	
APT SLX	X46		ERK FR S Des	45.UNU 46.360	
API SLX	X32		ERK W.S. DSA	40,000 69 000	
API SLX	X56		ERM FIC.S. DSA	52.000	
API SLX	X60		ERW. FW. S. DSA	50.000 50 000	
API SLX	X63	*****	ERW, FW. S. DSA	65.000	
• API SLX	70T	******	ERW, FW. S. DSA	70.000	
· API SLU	U20		S. DSA	80.000	
• API SLU	U100		5. 05.1	100.000	
5TM A53	Open Hearth, Basic Oxyg	en, Elect. Furnace	a tt.	25.000	
JT31 A53	Beiseiner		BW	- 30,000	
A5131 A53	A		ern, s	30,000	
45171 452	B		ERW, S	33.000	
ASIA A106	Α		5 .	30.900	
AST\1 4106	8		S	35.000	
ASTM A135	5	* • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	5	40.000	
ASTM A135	R		ERW	30.009	
ASTLI A139	A		eku Elik	35.000	
AST11.1139	B		EFW Flic	30.000	
ASTM ASSI	Class Y-35		5.5 W	35.000	
ASTN AS81	Class Y-42		863.\ 115`1	35,000	
1555 LTRA	Class Y-16		DS 1	\$2.000 16.0m	
ASTAI ABSI	Clars Y-48		115 A	40,000	
ASTA AJSI	Class Y-50		fix.s	10.000 80 000	
ASTM ASSI	Class Y-12		DSA	JU.UKV . 59 Aca	
ISEA KTZA	Class Y-56	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	05.1	- 32.000 56 000	
• ASTM A381	Class ¥-60		DSA	50.000	
ASTM ASSI	Class Y-65	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	125.1	65 000 ·	
ASTM A134	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		EFIT	(3)	
ASTM A155			EFW	(3)	
EEEA KETEA	1		S. ERU	30.000	
ASTJI ASS	3		S. F.R.V	35,000	
EEEA KIGA	4		5	\$5,000	
EEEA KIEA			s. Erv	35.000	
102141 L244	7		s. ERW	35,000	± 1
PPPA ICTCA			s. erv	75.000	
eela ktra	2		S. FRU	45,000	•••
** TTE -				33,000	45
·· • • • • • •	want unche new API Fipe So	-Cilocations are in print, they have no	a yet been formally a	proved	· · ·
e ^ن ها	Aliberta an province of 17204	wreatton, Litter of Fipcher Salcty.		regione de la constructiva. La constructiva de la constructiva de la construcción de la construcción de la construcción de la construcción d	سه و معرود که
(1)	muserculused: BE 4 Furner	bast-schled; ERW - Electric resistance	e webled; 5 - Scamler	s; FW - Flash	
f =1	Intermediate and an intermediate	werden: DS.1 - Dauble submerged-ar	r webbed.		
	KISULL SIC BUSHA	ALL AND LL AND SLY			

•

(3) See applicable place specification for SUVS.

p.27

GAS OPERATI

.

501.20

-

Table of Contents

Section 1	Permit Requirements
Section 2	Copy of Received Permits
Section 3	Public Tree Work Permit Conditions

SECTION 1

.

Known Permit Requirements for 2005 Construction

General Guidelines:

- Streets that have parking restrictions should be considered as restricted hours and should be bid accordingly. No additional compensation will be paid for these streets.
- 11/1/04 CSX rail road is now requiring a 30 day advance notice of the date the crossing is planned.
- If the permitting agency requires restoration other than Cinergy's standards, a written request must be submitted to the job sponsor prior to the final restoration being preformed.
- All final restoration of longitudinal cuts should be rolled even if grind and pave is a requirement of the permit. Cinergy will require all uneven restorations to be redone.
- Permits requiring grind and pave will be done at Cinergy's expense, unless it is do to poor workmanship. In some cases the grind and pave would have been waived if the final restoration was smooth.

City of Cincinnati General Comments

Inspection

Call 352-3451 every morning between 7:30AM & 8:30 AM with Permit Number.

No phone calls on cell phone for inspection.

All traffic control, excavations, backfill, temporary and permanent restoration must be inspected.

When field inspections are made a designated or responsible person must be on job site to take instructions.

Excavation and Restoration

Excavation – Pre-saw full-depth with wet diamond blade saw, brine from saw must be washed down so as not to be tracked by autos or pedestrians into business. Remove spoils every day. nothing left over night.

Brick Streets – Streets that have a brick surface, the City is considering requiring the removal of the bricks to be done with a point bar, there will be limited saw cutting of the trench. These bricks are to be reused for final restoration.

Backfill – CLSM required in all city streets and driveways. See approved Ham-Cin List for approved mixes.

CDF with concrete base restoration – must wait a minimum of 12 hours before pouring concrete

CDF with asphalt base restoration – must wait a minimum of 12 hours before placing asphalt

Flashfill TM - must wait 1-4 hours before pouring concrete or asphalt base

Temporary Street Restoration – 3 options

- 1. 10" crushed stone or slag with a 2" cap of Hot Asphalt Mix #448
- 2. Bring CLSM within 2" of street and cap with 2" of Hot Asphalt Mix #448
- 3. Bring CLSM within 3" of street and cap with 3" of Concrete

Temporary Sidewalk Restoration - 2" of compacted Hot Asphalt Mix # 448

No Cold Mix will be allowed for any temporary restoration, street or sidewalk.

Final Street Restoration –

Concrete Base - 9" Class C Concrete with 2" cap of Hot Asphalt Mix #448. Main arterial roads require concrete to be pinned with #5 Epoxy Coated Rebar. Rebar or keyways will be required at the end of each concrete base pour.

Concrete

Standard Class C Concrete – minimum setup time 5-7 days Class MS Concrete – minimum setup time 24 hours Class FS Concrete – minimum setup time 4 hours

> Internal Vibrator Bull Float Hand floats Broom finish String all castings for grade.

<u>Asphalt</u>

All asphalt restoration must be parallel and perpendicular to the C.L. or curb line
Hot Asphalt Mix #448
Tack coat per ODOT 702.04
3 to 5 ton roller
Scaler per ODOT 705.04 (except in crosswalks)

Asphalt Base

<u>Arterial Road</u> – 2-5" lifts of Asphalt Item 304 with a 2" cap of Asphalt Item 448 <u>Residential</u> – 2-4" lift of Asphalt Item 304 with a 2" cap of Asphalt Item 448

All Brick surface streets must be restored in kind.

Final Sidewalk and Driveway Restoration – 5" Class C Concrete for sidewalks and 7" Class C Concrete for driveways.

Any excavation through a curb ramp will require complete replacement of the curb ramp and upgraded to meet current ADA requirements.

Maintenance of Traffic

Follow all rules for maintenance of traffic. Item 614 ODOT Traffic Safety Manual

Advance warning signs for traffic pattern.

Use of a uniformed police officer with cruiser may be required when working in or within 50' of a signalized intersection. Contact the Cincinnati Police Detail Unit at 352-2583 to coordinate.

No Parking Signs - Contact appropriate police district for policy and procedure

Some streets may have restricted working hours.

Miscellaneous

Street Plates – Plates will be required to be pinned, welded and ramped as necessary. No over night noise. Silence plates with expansion paper, tar paper or ramp plates.

Contact Urban Forestry at 861-9070 when working within 15' of a tree in the public right-of-way.

Special circumstances to be decided / directed by the City Engineer.

05-8311-2 Module 311

City of Covington

- Permit Received
- Some of these streets have brick pavers that have been resurfaced over. When excavating these streets, stockpile the bricks and the City of Covington will stop by to pick them up.
- There will be no staging of material on the street. Any staging off the street must have written permission from the property owner or the city.
- See appendix "E" of the 2006 Bid Specifications, "City of Covington Restoration Ordinance."

05-8312-0 Module 312

City of Fort Thomas

• No current issues

State of Kentucky

- Work Hours are 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
- Steel main must be used under the road.
- KDOT must be contacted prior to start of work.
- Damaged traffic loops must be replaced ASAP
- Flowable fill will be required as backfill.

04-8319-8 Module 319

City of Park Hills

• No current issues

05-8331-0 Module 331

City of Cincinnati

- See General Comments from The City of Cincinnati
- Major Streets will have work restrictions between the hours 7 a.m. and 9 a.m., and from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.
- Side streets will not have any restrictions unless posted.
- No night work will be allowed if a resident is within 500 feet of the construction area.

Cincinnati Urban Forestry

- Has requested to be invited to the pre-construction meeting.
- See Section 3 for guidelines.

05-8353-4 Module 353

City of Cincinnati

- See General Comments from The City of Cincinnati
- Major Streets will have work restrictions between the hours 7 a.m. and 9 a.m., and from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.
- Side streets will not have any restrictions unless posted.
- No night work will be allowed if a resident is within 500 feet of the construction area.

Cincinnati Urban Forestry

- Has requested to be invited to the pre-construction meeting.
- See Section 3 for guidelines.

05-8354-2 Module 354

City of Middletown

• No current issues

05-8362-5 Module 362

City of Cincinnati

- See General Comments from The City of Cincinnati
- Major Streets will have work restrictions between the hours 7 a.m. and 9 a.m., and from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.
- Side streets will not have any restrictions unless posted.
- No night work will be allowed if a resident is within 500 feet of the construction area.

City of Silverton

• No current issues

Cincinnati Urban Forestry

- Has requested to be invited to the pre-construction meeting.
- See Section 3 for guidelines.

02-7338-3 Plainfield Rd.

City of Deer Park

- Permit Received
- All driveway aprons will be replaced with concrete
- All ramps at corners are to be replaced with new ADA compliant ramps
- All downspouts are to be replaced
- Strongly recommend that the entire project be videotaped prior to construction

04-1019-1 Wm. H. Taft

.

City of Cincinnati

- See General Comments from The City of Cincinnati
- Major Streets will have work restrictions between the hours 7 a.m. and 9 a.m., and from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.
- Side streets will not have any restrictions unless posted.
- No night work will be allowed if a resident is within 500 feet of the construction area.

Cincinnati Urban Forestry

- Has requested to be invited to the pre-construction meeting.
- See Section 3 for guidelines.

04-1005-0 E. Mitchell Ave.

City of Cincinnati

- See General Comments from The City of Cincinnati
- Major Streets will have work restrictions between the hours 7 a.m. and 9 a.m., and from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.
- Side streets will not have any restrictions unless posted.
- No night work will be allowed if a resident is within 500 feet of the construction area.

Cincinnati Urban Forestry

- Has requested to be invited to the pre-construction meeting.
- See Section 3 for guidelines.

City of St. Bernard

- Permit Received
- No current issues

04-1069-6 Hamilton Ave.

City of Cincinnati

- See General Comments from The City of Cincinnati
- Major Streets will have work restrictions between the hours 7 a.m. and 9 a.m., and from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.
- Side streets will not have any restrictions unless posted.
- No night work will be allowed if a resident is within 500 feet of the construction area.

City of Mt. Healthy

• No current issues

City of North College Hill

• No current issues

SECTION 2

Cinergy Corp. 139 East Fourth Street P.O. Box 960 Cincinnati, OH 45201

September 13, 2004

Mr. Terry Hughes City Engineer City of Covington 638 Madison Avenue Covington, Kentucky 41011

Dear Mr. Hughes:

Ref: I.D. #05-8311-2

Permission is requested by The Union Light Heat Power Co. to install gas main and services as per the attached.

Permit Drawing Package

COVINGTON

Permission is hereby granted per this request.

g Date

Daniel J. Schuler/AL

Daviel J. Schuber/AL

Permit No.

Job Sponsor

For any additional information, please call me at

Copy:

D. Westenberg w/ print Permit Book 1. D. J. Schuler 2. Folder

Attachment: 2 prints



July 21, 2005

Mr. Dave O'Leary Service Director Deer Park 4250 Matson Avenue Cincinnati, OH 45236

City of Deer Park 7777 Blue Ash Road Deer Park, OH 45236

CINERGY CG&F

Dear Mr. O'Leary:

Ref: I.D. #02-7338-3

Permission is requested by The Cincinnati Gas Electric Co. to install gas main and services as per the attached.

Permit Drawing Package

DEER PARK

Duniel J. Schuler/Al

Daniel J. Schuler/AL Job Sponsor

Permission is hereby granted per this request.

With stipulations as noted below

For any additional information, please call me at

Copy:

Dennis Westenberg w/ print Permit Book 1. D. J. Schuler

2. Folder Sanitation Dept. w/2 prints

Attachment: 2 prints

Date 8-24-05 Permit No.

*RESTORATION:

- -- All Driveway aprons will be replaced in concrete
- -- All ramps at corners are to be replaced with new ADA compliant ramps
- -- All downspouts are to be replaced
- -- Grinding and resurfacing of the streets will be determined after completion of the project

I strongly recommend that the entire project be videotaped prior to construction.

Cinergy Corp. 139 East Fourth Street P.O. Box 960 Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960

August 4, 2005

Mr. Joe Kempe Service Director City of St. Bernard 110 Washington Street Cincinnati, OH 45217

Dear Mr. Kempe

Ref: I.D. #04-1005-0

Permission is requested by The Cincinnati Gas Electric Co. to install gas main and services as per the attached.

Permit Drawing Package

ST. BERNARD

Durial J. Schuldt Daniel J. Schuler/AL

Job Sponsor

vice Director empe Date Permit No.

Permission is hereby granted per this request.

For any additional information, please call me at

Copy:

D. Westenbergw/ printPermit Book1.D. J. Schuler2.FolderSanitation Dept. w/2 prints

Attachment: 2 prints


SECTION 3

٠

.

Schuler, Daniel

Hunt, Robin [Robin.Hunt@cincinnati-oh.gov]
Tuesday, October 19, 2004 4:06 PM
Cinergy-Gas: Mark Prebble (E-mail); Miller Pipeline: Steve Ferrell (E-mail); Schuler, Daniel
McNamara, Cindy; Ernst, Susan; Dickman, Matt
Cincinnati Urban Forestry: Public Tree Work Permit Conditions for Gas Main Upgrades

Attachments:

BoringPermitConditions.doc



BoringPermitConditi ons doc (44

10.19.04

As discussed during the preconstruction meeting for Module 335, please find universal permit conditions for working in the vicinity of Cincinnati street trees. The Cincinnati Parks - Urban Forestry has developed the attached file, in an effort to more clearly communicate general/ universal standards for installing pipeline within close proximity to City street trees. This is important given the broad scope and long duration of the proposed gas main upgrade work.

Matt Dickman (513/368.0949) will be the City-wide contact person for the gas main upgrade work.

Please contact me or Matt Dickman if you have any questions.

Robin O. Hunt Urban Forester Ohio Certified Arborist - OH-184 Cincinnati Parks - Natural Resource Management Section/ Urban Forestry 3215 Reading RD Cincinnati, OH 45229 Phone: 513/ 861.9070 Fax: 513/ 861.8669 E-mail: Robin.Hunt@cincinnati-oh.gov

<<BoringPermitConditions.doc>>

Public Tree Work Permit Conditions for: *Cinergy* - Gas Department

• **DEFINITIONS**:

- NRMS Natural Resource Management Section of the Cincinnati Park Board – 513/ 861-9070, 3215 Reading Road, Cincinnati, Ohio, 45229
- <u>dbh (diameter breast height)</u> Diameter of tree trunk or stem – measurement standardized at 4½ feet above ground.
- **Contractor** Agent of applicant, performing actual work.

• **STANDARDS**:

1. <u>Trenching Standards:</u> A copy of "*Trenching & Tunneling Near Trees: A Field Pocket Guide for Qualified Utility Workers*", by Dr. James R. Fazio is on file at the NRMS office and by its reference is made a part of the permit. Additional copies may be obtained by contacting the National Arbor Day Foundation (NADF) – 100 Arbor Avenue, Nebraska City, NE 68410, (402) 474-5655. Information about this standard may also be obtained from the NADF website: <u>www.arborday.org/dmerchdetail.cfm?id=62</u>. The



contractor is advised to obtain and keep copies at the office and to use with their employees.

- 2. <u>ANSI A-300</u> The most current edition of the American National Standards Institute Standard for Tree Care Operations.
- 3. **NAA** The most current edition of the National Arborist Association Standards for Pruning of Shade Trees, Guying of Shade Trees, Fertilizing Shade and Ornamental Trees, Lightning Protection Installation Systems for Shade Trees and Pesticide Application Operations.

NOTE: Copies of the ANSI A-300 and NAA standards are also on file at the NRMS office and by this reference are made a part of this contract.

 NOTIFICATION: Applicant or Contractor to contact NRMS at least one day in advance whenever excavation work is anticipated.

- **INSPECTION**: A NRMS representative shall meet on site to oversee excavation and boring work near street trees.
- <u>NO-TRENCH ZONE</u>: A No-Trench Zone shall extend from the trunk of street trees within the project work zone. This standard is based upon NADF - *Trenching & Tunneling Near Trees: A Field Pocket Guide for Qualified Utility Workers*, by Dr. James R. Fazio. This No-Trench Zone approximates and extends a radius from each tree of:

 $\mathbf{r} = \mathbf{8} * \mathbf{D}$, where \mathbf{D} = trunk diameter at dbh (dbh is the tree trunk diameter standardized at 4.5-feet above grade).

Street Trees within 15-feet of proposed trenching OR boring shall be noted on the drawings with the respective No-Trench radii clearly demarcated and noting the respective dbh of the tree.

- **BORING/ TUNNELING**: techniques shall be employed within the No-Trench Zones. Work pits for tunneling shall be situated *outside* of these zones. Borings shall be made at a minimum depth of 36-inches below grade.
- EQUIPMENT: including outriggers shall not be placed directly on or against any portion of a tree, including its roots.
- EQUIPMENT & MATERIAL STORAGE: Equipment, material and soil, including construction aggregate, shall <u>not</u> be placed within 15feet of City street trees.
- <u>TREE DAMAGE</u>: Applicant/ Contactor shall be subject to a compensatory payment to NRMS for any tree damaged and/ or removed, per CMC 743-17. NRMS staff, in accordance with the Council of Tree and Landscape Appraisers (Guide to Appraisal of Trees and Other Plants in Ohio, 6TH ed.), shall assess the tree; determine its value and its diminution in value. Applicant/ Contactor shall bear any removal or remediation costs.
- <u>ROOTS</u>: Contractor is not to cut roots greater than two inches in diameter. If larger roots are encountered, the Contractor is directed to contact NRMS and <u>not</u> proceed until NRMS has inspected conditions.
- <u>ROOT PRUNING</u>: Damaged tree roots shall be pruned to prevent and limit root decay. Contractor/ applicant shall keep a handsaw with sharp tri-cut, hollow ground saw blade, or a Sawz-All[®] type saw on the job site. Any crushed or torn roots on the tree side shall be cut cleanly and immediately - within 30 minutes. A sharp bypass hand-pruner may be used on smaller roots.